




ljifo ;"rL

qm=;+= zLif{s kfgf g+=





 (_  3/ b}nf]df ;]jf . 

 #_  u|fxssf] nflu ;Dk"0f{ n3'ljQLo ;]jfx?sf] Kofs]h . 

-s_ b[li6 -VISION_ 

 $_ n3l' jQ ;j] fn ] cfo cfhg{  / ;DkQLdf al[ 4 ub5{ , h;n ] ul/aL lgjf/0fdf ;xofu]  k¥' ofpbF  } zfGtL / ;dG' glt Nofp5F  .

 ^_  ljgf s'g} e]befj -n}+lËs, hflto, /fhgLlts, Pj+ cGo_ ;dfj]zL ljQLo ;]jfx? lbg] nIo /fVb5 . 

 !_ ;b:o ePkl5 art clgjfo{ ug{'kg]{ . 

 &_ cfjlws t/ lgoldt ls:tf -;fFjf Aofh_ e'QmfgL . 

 $_  n3'ljQ ;]jfsf] nflu ljQLo cg'zf;g clgjfo{ . 

 @_  n3' ljQLo ;]jfx? k|fKt ug{ kfpg' ljkGgsf] dfgj clwsf/ xf] . 
 #_  art eljiosf] cfly{s ;antfsf] nflu xf] .

 %_  n3'ljQ ;fd'lxstf / ;fdflhs ljsf;sf] nflu xf] . 

;+:yfsf] k[i7e"ld

æ;'v / ;d[l4sf] cfwf/, ;a}sf] nflu :j/f]huf/Æ eGg] d"n dGqnfO{ cfTd;fy u/L cl3 a9]sf] o; ljQLo ;+:yfn]  ul/aL 
lgjf/0f cleofgdf n3'ljQ sfo{qmdnfO{ s]lG›t u/L nlIft ju{, If]q / ;d'bfonfO{ pTk|]/ssf] e'ldsf lgefpb} n3' pBd tyf 
Joj;fo ug{ k|]l/t ub}{ ;fdflhs cfly{s ?kfGt/0fsf] cfwf/ to u/]sf] 5 . 

 Joj;flos n3'ljQ ;+:yfåf/f n3'ljQLo ;]jfx? k'¥ofO{ ul/aL lgjf/0fdf ;xof]u k'¥ofpg' .

 &_  u|fxssf] ;b\efj / ;xof]un] g} ;+:yf rNg] s'/fdf ;+:yf ljZj:t 5 . 
-ª_ p2]Zox? -OBJECTIVES_ 

-u_ /0fgLlt -STRATEGIES_ 

 *_  kf/bzL{, l56f] / 5l/tf] ;]jf k|jfx . 

 %_  dlxnf, blnt, hghflt / cNk;+Vosx?nfO{ k|fyldstf . 

 !)_ shf{ ;fydf cGo ;]jfx?sf] ;dL>0f . 

 !_  ljkGg ju{ klg OdfGbf/ / a}+lsË of]Uo x'G5g\ . 

g]kfn /fi6« a}+saf6 æ3Æ ju{sf] Ohfhtkq k|fKt u/L sDkgL /lhi6«f/sf] sfof{nodf ldlt @)^^÷)$÷)* ut] ljlwjt ?kdf btf{ 
eO{ ldlt @)^^÷)(÷)! ut] b]lv :j/f]huf/ n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf lnld6]8sf] gfdaf6 ljQLo sf/f]af/ ub}{ cfPsf] 5 . :yfkgf 
sfndf ltg lhNnfaf6 cfˆgf] sf/f]jf/ z'? u/]sf] o; n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yfsf] sfo{If]q xfn /fli6«o :t/ /x]sf] / ag]kf–%, 
sfe|]knf~rf]sdf s]lGb|o sfof{no /lx t/fO{ tyf kxf8L #^ lhNnfx?df o; ljQLo ;+:yfn] (! j6f zfvf sfof{nox? dfkm{t 
cfˆgf] n3'ljQ sfo{qmd ;~rfng ub}{ cfPsf] 5 . xfn ljQLo ;+:yf !,#%,@&^ hgf eGbf a9L u|fxs ;b:ox?sf] cfly{s 
;xofqLsf] ?kdf cuf8L al9/x]sf] 5 .

:j/f]huf/ n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf ln= k/Dk/fut a}+lsË ;+:yf dfq geO{ ul/a, ljkGg tyf lk5l8Psf dlxnf lbbLalxgLx?nfO{ 
cfly{s ;xfotf k|bfg ug]{ Ps ;an ljQLo ;+:yfsf] ?kdf :yflkt eO{ ;s]sf] 5 . o; ljQLo ;+:yfn] ljQLo ;fIf/tf nufot 
cy{tGqsf cGo ;Defljt If]q h:t}M s[lif, kz'kfng, Jofkf/, Joj;fosf] j[l4 ljsf;, /fli6«o pTkfbg a9fpg], nlIft ju{sf] 
hLjg:t/ psf:g], ;b:onfO{ cfTdlge{/ agfpg], pTkflbt j:t'sf] ahf/ l;h{gf ug]{, ljQLo kx'Frsf nflu n3' shf{ tyf art, 
n3' aLdf / n3' a}+lsË sf/f]af/ ub}{ cfPsf] 5 . g]kfn h:tf] ljsf;f]Gd'v / clwsf+z u|fld0f a:tL ePsf] b]zdf ljQLo 
;dfj]zLs/0f / ul/aL lgjf/0fsf nflu pko'Qm ljQLo cf}hf/sf] ?kdf o; :j/f]huf/ n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf ln= n] ;b}j sbd 
a9fpg ;+slNkt /x]sf] 5 .

:j/f]huf/ n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf lnld6]8

 7fpF ljz]ifsf] cfjZostf cg';f/ gofF 9fFrfx? åf/f n3' ljQLo ;]jf k'¥ofO{ hgtfsf] cfo:t/ a9fpg' . 

 @_  nlIft ju{sf] nflu n3' ljQLo ;]jfx? . 

 ^_  t'ngfTds ?kdf ;fgf] shf{sf] nflu ;d"x hdfgL / 7"nf] shf{sf] nflu lwtf] hdfgL . 

-3_ cfwf/e"t d"No / dfGotfx? -CORE VALUES_ 

 !_  sfo{If]q leqsf ;a} u|fxsx?nfO{ ;a} k|sf/sf lbuf] n3'ljQ ;]jfx? k|bfg ug]{ . 

-v_ cleofg -MISSION_ 
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`_  ;+rfns ;ldlt M o; n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yfsf] ;+rfns ;ldlt lgDgfg';f/ /x]sf] 5 . 

5_  sfo{If]q M

 -s_ z]o/ k"FhL 

 – r'Qmf k"FhL ?= &*,#(,@$,$)#÷–

 -ª_  cGo s'g} bfloTjx? 

 :j/f]huf/ n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf lnld6]8 ag]kf % sfe|]knf~rf]]s s]lGb|o sfo{no /lx /fli6«o:t/ sfo{ If]q ePsf] ljQLo 
;+:yf xf] . t/fO{ tyf kxf8L #^ lhNnfx?df o; ljQLo ;+:yfn] (! j6f zfvf sfof{nox? dfkm{t laQLo ;]jf k|bfg ul//x]sf] 
5 .

-h_ k"“hL ;+/rgf M  ljQLo ;+:yfsf] cf=j= @)*@÷)*# c;f]h d;fGt ;Dddf b]xfo adf]hLdsf] k"FhL /x]sf] 5 M

 

 – clws[t k"FhL ?=*)),))),)))÷–

 a}+s tyf ljQLo ;+:yf ;DalGw P]g @)&# cg';f/ æ3Æ ju{sf n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yfn] ug{ kfpg] sfo{x? ug]{5 . sfo{If]qdf 
:yfoL a;f]af; u/]sf g]kfnL gful/s dWo] ljkGg ju{sf JolQm cfod"ns sfo{df ;lqmo ?kn] efu lng OR5's Ps 
kl/jf/af6 Ps hgf dlxnf d'VotM o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] ;b:o aGg ;Sb5g\ . ;b:o agfpg'cl3 % lbg;Ddsf] clgjfo{ 
;d"x tflnd lbO ;+:yfsf] gLlt–lgod / sfo{ljlw Pj+ k|lqmofaf/] hfgsf/L u/fOG5 . b'O{ jf ;f]eGbf a9L ;d"x u7g ePkZrft\ 
s]Gb| u7g u/L n3'ljQ sfo{qmdsf] z'?jft ljlwjt ?kdf ul/G5 . s]Gb| g} sfo{qmd ;~rfng ul/g] ynf] xf] . s]Gb|sf] a}7s 
dfl;s ?kdf ;~rfng ul/G5 .

em_  ;+:yfks ;d"x M
 l5d]s ;dfh ;]jf ;+:yf ;lxt g]kfn ;/sf/, jfl0fHo a}+s, ljsf; a}+ssf k"j{ sd{rf/Lx?, n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yfx? nufot 

lzIf0f ;]jfsf JolQmx?, OlGhlgo/, ;dfhzf:qL, Joj;foL tyf u[lx0fLx? u/L s'n !&^ hgf o;sf ;+:yfksx? x'g'x'G5 . 

6_  C0f nufgL / Joj:yfkg M

 -u_  ljleGg a}+s tyf ljQLo ;+:yf af6 lnOg] ljkGg ju{ shf{ 
 -v_  ;b:osf] art 

 – hf/L k"FhL ?=&*,#(,@$,$)#÷–

 C0f nufgL s'g} klg pTkfbgzLn sfo{sf] nflu ljleGg lzif{sdf ul/g]5 . s[lif pTkfbg, s[lifhGo pTkflbt Jofkf/, 
kz'Jofkf/, v'›f Jofkf/, ;]jf Jofkf/, 3/]n' pBf]u / cGo lzif{sx?df nufgL ul/g]5 . u|fxs ;b:onfO{ shf{ lng ;lhnf] 
xf]; eGg] p4]Zon] ;+:yfsf] shf{ ;fwf/0ftof #M@ cg'kftdf nufgL ul/g] Joj:yf ul/Psf] 5 . o;sf ;fy} shf{sf] >f]t 
lgDg x'g]5g\ M 

 -3_  ljQLo ;+:yfsf] cfGtl/s hu]8f / sf]ifx? 

 dflysf ;a} >f]tx?n] shf{ sf/f]af/nfO{ lg/Gt/tf lbg ;xof]u k'¥ofO{ /x]sf 5g\ .

 @_  u|fdL0f hgtfx?nfO{ a}lsË afgL a;fpg], art ;+sng u/fO{ /fd|f] sfo{df kl/rfng u/fpg] . 

 %_  u|fxsx?nfO{ :j/f]huf/sf] dfWodaf6 /f]huf/L ;[hgf ug{ ;xof]u k'¥ofpg] . 
 ^_  cfˆgf] sfo{If]q leqsf] k|To]s ljkGg 3/ kl/jf/sf] Ps hgfnfO{ n3'ljQ ;]jf k'¥ofpg] . 
 &_  u|fxsx?;Fu lgoldt / /fd|f] ;DaGw agfpg] . 
-r_ sfo{x? M

 $_  u|fxsx?nfO{ n3' ljQLo ;]jfx?åf/f cfly{s ?kdf ;an agfpg] . 
 #_  ;b:ox?nfO{ gofF yk ljQLo ;]jfx? pknAw u/fpg] . h:t} shf{sf] ljdf, ljk|]if0f ;]jf cflb . 
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qm=;+= ljBdfg ;+rfnssf] gfd Kfb 
!= >L 1fg]G› k|;fb kf08] cWoIf -;+:yfks ;d"xaf6 k|ltlglwTj_ 
@= >L pbo /fh vltj8f ;+rfns -;+:yfks ;d"xaf6 k|ltlglwTj_ 
#= >L lq laqmd kf08] ;+rfns -;+:yfks ;d"xaf6 k|ltlglwTj_ 
$= >L s[i0f aGhf8] ;+rfns -;j{;fwf/0f ;d"xaf6 k|ltlglwTj_ 
%= >L ;d/ 9sfn ;+rfns -;j{;fwf/0f ;d"xaf6 k|ltlglwTj_ 
^= >L t]h bQ vs'/fn ;+rfns -;j{;fwf/0f ;d"xaf6 k|ltlglwTj_ 
&= >LdtL lx/f b]aL lai6 ;+rfns -:jtGq k|ltlglwTj_ 



 ljQLo ;+:yfaf6 lgDg lzif{sx?df shf{ nufgL ul/G5 . tL x'g M

 *_ k]jf jrt M ;b:ox?n] lghL cfh{g h:t} k]jf, bfg, pkxf/ h:tf >f]tx?af6 k|fKt /sd hDdf ug{ ;Sg]5g\ . o; 
artdf ;b:on] Go"gtd ?=!)).– df vftf vf]Ng ;Sg]5g\ . o;df Go"gtd dlxgfel/ b}lgs df}Hbftdf &=%Ü 
dfl;s ?kdf Aofh kfpg] Joj:yf /x]sf] 5 . 

 (_ s]Gb| cg'zf;g sf]if art M s]G› cg'zf;g sf]if jrt ;b:ox?n] s]G›nfO{ pTs[i6 cg'zf;gdf /fv] jfkt s]G›nfO{ 
;+:yfn] pknAw u/fP/ /flvg] jrt xf] . of] art ;b:ox?nfO{ :jf:Yo, lzIff, b}ljs ljklQ / Ifdtf cleal[ 4sf ]
nflu Joj:yf ul/Psf ] 5 . o; artdf jflifs{  &=%Ü sf b/n ] qd} fl;s Aofh kfpg ] Joj:yf /xs] f ] 5 . 

 !)_ :j/f]huf/ ;dfof]hg art M ;b:on] ls:tf tyf artsf nflu cu|Ld ?kdf hDdf ul/Psf] /sd x'g]5 / o; 

   ;b:ox?;Fu d'Votof lgDg lzif{sdf art u/fOg]5 . tL x'g\ M 

 %_ rf8kj{ afn art M o; art of]hgf cGtu{t afnaflnsfn] rf8kj{ tyf cGo ;dodf hDdf u/]sf] artdf b}lgs 
cf}ift df}Hbftdf jflif{s &=%Ü Aofh u0fgf u/L pknAw u/fOg] 5 . 

 ^_ s]Gb| sf]if art M of] art dlxgfsf] k|lt JolQm ?= %÷– sf] b/n] ul/G5, of] art s]G›sf] ;fd'lxs sfo{df Go"gtd 
?=%)).– /flv vr{ ug{ kfOg]5 . o; artdf jflif{s &=%Ü sf b/n] q}dfl;s Aofh kfpg] Joj:yf /x]sf] 5 . 

 &_ :j/f]huf/ pHjn eljio lglw art of]hgf M :j/f]huf/ pHjn eljio lglw ayt of]hgf cGtu{t s'g}klg ;b:on] 
?=%)÷–, ?=!))÷– / %) n] efu hfg] /sdsf] lx;fan] dfl;s ?kdf hDdf ug]{5g\ . o; k|sf/sf] jrt ( jif{df 
8]9 u'0ff / !$ jif{df bf]Aa/ /sd lbOg]5 jf ;'?jft b]lv ( jif{ gk'Ub} lar}df 5f]8\bf &=%Ü Jofh lbOg]5 . o;} u/L ( 
jif{ k'/f eO{ !$ jif{ gk'uL lardf 5f]8\bf klg 8]9 u'0ff g} lbOg]5 . xfn g]kfn /fi6« a}+sn] o; k|s[ltsf cfjlws jrt 
ug{ gkfO{g] lgb]{zg u/]sf]n] ;f]lx cg';f/ o; k|sf/sf] gof+ jrt ug{ aGb ul/Psf] 5 . 

 @_ :j/f]huf/ afn art M ;b:ox?n] cfˆgf ;Gtfgsf] ;'/Iffsf nflu dfl;s ?kdf Go'gtd ?= @))÷– jf ;f] eGbf a9L 
art ug{ ;lsg] / b}lgs cf}ift df}Hbftdf jflif{s &=%Ü Aofh u0fgf u/L pknAw u/fOg] 5 . 

 !_  dfl;s art M k|lt ;b:o k|lt dlxgf ?= @))÷– clgjfo{ ?kdf art ug{' kg]{5 . ;'Ts]/L, la/fdL, ;fdflhs sfo{, 
zl} Ifs sfod{ f ;f ] art lemSg kfpg ] Joj:yf /xs] f ] 5 . o; artdf jflifs{  &=%Ü sf b/n ] qd} fl;s Aofh eQ' mfgL xg' 5]  . 

7_  art / lgIf]k kl/rfng M 

gf]6 M  ;+:yfsf] cfwf/b/df # k|ltzt lk|ldod yk ul/  x'g cfpg] b/ jf jfl0fHo a}+ssf] kl5Nnf] dfl;s cf};t cfwf/b/df (Ü 
yk ubf{ x'g cfpg] b/ h'g sd x'G5 ;f]xL cg';f/ Jofhb/ sfod ul/g]5 / blnt, d'Qm sd}of, jfbL, xlnof, åGå lkl8t, Psn 
dlxnf, ckfË tyf h]i7 gful/sx?nfO{ n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yfx?af6 k|jfx x'g] ljkGg ju{ shf{df lng] Aofh b/df ! k|ltzt 
laGb'n] ;x'lnot lbg] ul/Psf] 5 .

 #_  b}ljk|sf]k art M ;b:onfO{ klxnf] shf{ nufgL ubf{ Go"gtd ?=!))).– art ug{'kg]{ / o; artdf jflif{s &=%Ü sf 
b/n] q}dfl;s Aofh e'QmfgL x'g]5 . ;fy} b}ljs 36gf kbf{ tTsfn o; artdf /x]sf] /sd lemSg kfpg] Joj:yf /x]sf] 
5 . 

 $_ :j]lR5s art M of] artdf ?= !))÷– df vftf vf]nL cfjZostf cg';f/ Go'gtd ?= ! b]lv clwstd  
?=!,%),)))÷– ;Dd b}lgs ! k6s art /fVg ;lsg]5 . o;df Go"gtd ?= !))÷– vftfdf /fvL Go"gtd ?=! b]lv 
?=%,)),))).– ;Dd ga9fO{ lbgdf Ps k6s /sd lemSg ;lsg]5 . o; artdf jflif{s &=%Ü sf b/n] q}dfl;s 
Aofh kfpg] Joj:yf /x]sf] 5 . 
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l;=g+= shf{ lzif{s shf{ nufgL l;df ;]jf z'Ns s}lkmot 
! ;fwf/0f÷Joj;fo shf{ ?=%,)),)))÷– !=#Ü ?=#),)))÷– ;Dd ! Ü dfq ;]jf z'Ns nfUg] 
@ Joj;fo j[l4 shf{ ?=&,)),)))÷– !=#Ü  
# s]Gb| 3/ shf{ ?= %),)))÷– –  
$ n3'pBd shf{ ?=!%,)),)))÷– !Ü lwtf] ;'/If0f /fv]/ dfq 
% j}slNks phf{ shf{ ?=@,)),)))÷– !=#Ü  
^ b}lj k|sf]k shf{ ?=@),)))÷– !=#Ü  
& cfsl:ds shf{ ?=%),)))÷– !=#Ü  
* :j/f]huf/ shf{ ?=&,)),)))÷– !=#Ü  
( j}b]lzs /f]huf/ shf{ ?=%,)),)))÷– !=#Ü  
!) Joj;flos shf{ ?=&,)),)))÷– !=#Ü  
!! sf]le8–!(, ;/n shf{ ?=!,)),)))÷– !Ü  
!@ 3/ lgdf{0f shf{ ?=#,)),)))÷– !=#Ü  
!# ;fwf/0f shf{ -JolQmut_ ?=@%,)))÷– !=#Ü kfl/jfl/s hdfgLdf k|bfg ug{ ;lsg] 



 !_  ;b:osf] ljdf ;]jf M art ug]{ ;b:osf] jflif{s ?kdf lglZrt z'Ns lnO{ ;b:o / ;b:osf] cleefjssf] d[To', 
;b:o ;'Ts]/Lsf] cj:yfdf, b}lj ljkQLsf] sf/0fn] a:g] af; :yfgsf] IftLsf] cj:yfdf /fxt k'Ug] ul/  s|]i6 
dfO{qmf]nfOkm OG:of]/]G; ln= ;+u ;Demf}tf ul/ ;b:osf] ljdf ul/Psf] 5 .

 !@_  So"=cf/ sf]8 ;]jf

-8_  ljQLo ;+:yfsf cGo ;]jfx? M 

9_ ck]lIft kl/0ffdx?M 

 #_  u|fdL0f ls;fg / ljkGg kl/jf/sf] :j/f]huf/L a9\g] 

 *_  ljQLo ;fIf/tf sfo{qmd  

 $_  :yfgLo] If]qsf] ljsf;

 !#_ :j/f]huf/ sd{rf/L tna art vftf M ljlQo ;+:yfdf sfo{/t sd{rf/Lx?sf] tna e'QmfgL ;xh / ;/n tl/sfn] 
xf]; eGg] clek|fon] ;+rfngdf /x]sf] o; art vftfdf jflif{s &=%Ü sf b/n] q}dfl;s ?kdf Aofh pknAw 
u/fO{g]5 .

 !@_ :j/f]huf/ ;'gf}nf] art of]hgf M ;b:ox?nfO{ pRr Jofhb/ pknAw u/fpg] clek|fon] Go"gtd ?=%)) n] vftf 
vf]Ng ;lsg] ul/ of] art of]hgf ;+rfngdf NofOPsf] xf] . vftf ;+rfngdf cfO{;s] kl5 ;b:on] dfl;s ?kdf 
art ug'{kb{5 . ;b:on] h'g;'s} ;dodf klg cfˆgf] cfjZostf cg';f/ o; artnfO{ lemSg / /fVg ;Sg]5g\ . o; 
artdf jflif{s (Ü sf b/n] q}dfl;s Aofh kfpg] Joj:yf /x]sf] 5 .

 #_  7'nf kz'wg aLdf sfo{qmd M s'g} ;b:on] 7'nf kz'kfngsf] nflu shf{ lng' ePdf of] ;]jf k|bfg ul/G5 . o; cGtu{t 
7'nf kz' lsGg shf{ ln+bf shf{df jflif{s !Ü lk|ldod /sd hDdf ug{' kb{5 . o;/L shf{sf] lk|ldod /sd hDdf 
u/]kl5 olb ;fdfGo cj:yfdf kz' dof]{ eg] ()Ü Ifltk"tL{ kfOG5 . of] ;]jf lgIf]k tyf shf{ ;'/If0f sf]if ;+u ;Demf}tf 
u/L k|bfg ul/Psf] 5 . 

 ^_  ;/sf/L /fhZjdf j[l4 x'g]
 &_  ul/aL Go"lgs/0fdf ;xof]u k'Ug

     ljQLo ;+:yfn] cfjZostf cg';f/ cGo ;]jf klg pknAw u/fpg]5, tL x'g\ M 

 &_  jflif{s s]G› e]nf 

 %_  Joj;flos ;Nnfx  

 !!_ :j]lR5s JolQmut art M g]kfn /fi6« a}ssf] ;s{'n/ cg';f/ aGb ul/Psf] t/ vftf vf]ln;lsPsf] ;b:ox?nfO{ 
calw e/ lg/Gt/tf lbg ;lsg] Joj:yf cg'?k art cjlwsf] cg';f/ (Ü–!)Ü ;Dd Aofhb/ k|bfg ul/g] 5 .

 !$_ ;'/Iff art M ;b:o / ;b:osf] shf{sf] ljdf jfktsf] /sd hDdf ul/Psf] /sd x'g]5 / ;f]lx artaf6 jflif{s ?kdf 
ljdf z'Ns e'QmfgL ul/g]5 . o; artdf b}lgs df}Hbftsf] cfwf/df jflif{s &=%Ü sf b/n] q}dfl;s ?kdf Aofh 
pknAw u/fO{g]5 . 

 ^_  aflnsf lzIff ;]jf

 %_  ;fdflhs If]qsf] ljsf; / ;fdflhs dWo:ytf

 (_  Ifdtf clej[l4sf] nflu lzkd'ns tflnd ;+rfng

 !_  ljlQo kx'Fr

 !!_  df]afOn a}lsË   

 @_ ;b:osf] shf{sf] ljdf ;]jf M u|fxs ;b:ox?n] shf{ ln+bf shf{sf] ljdf jfkt ljdf sDkgL;Fu ul/Psf] ;Demf}tf 
cg';f/ lk|ldod lnO{G5 . o;/L shf{ lng] ;b:o jf u|fxssf] xsjfnf -shf{ lng] ;dodf tf]lsPsf] AolQm_ sf] 
d[To' ePdf zt k|ltzt /sd u|fxs ;b:on] Ifltk"lt{ jfkt kfpF5g\ . o; ;]jfsf] nflu ;'o{Hof]tL nfOkm OG:of]/]G; 
sDkgL ln=, s|]i6 dfO{qmf]nfOkm OG:of]/]G; ln= / ufl8{og dfOqmf] nfOkm OG:of]/]G; ln= cfO{PdO{ nfOkm OF:of]/]G;;+u 
;Demf}tf ul/Psf] 5 . ;fy} ;+:yfn] lgIf]k tyf shf{ ;'/If0f sf]if ;+u klg ;Demf}tf ul/ shf{sf] ;'/If0f ul/Psf] 5 .

 $_  ljk|]if0f ;]jf  

 @_  dlxnf ;zlQms/0f

 !)_  P;=Pd=P; cn6{ 

artdf b}lgs df}Hbftsf] cfwf/df jflif{s &=%Ü sf b/n] q}dfl;s ?kdf Aofh pknAw u/fO{g]5 . 
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cfb/0fLo z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx?,
:j/f]huf/ n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf lnld6]8sf] ldlt @)*@÷)(÷)( ut] a'waf/ lbp;f] $M!) ah] a;]sf] ;+rfns ;ldltsf] @(( cf}+ 
a}7ssf] lg0f{o cg';f/ o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] ;qf}F jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;ef lgDg ldlt, ;do / :yfgdf b]xfosf ljifodf 5nkmn ug{ a:g] 
ePsf] x\'Fbf sDkgL P]g, @)^# sf] bkmf ̂ &-@_ adf]lhd ;Dk"0f{ z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx?sf] hfgsf/Lsf] nflu of] ;"rgf k|sflzt ul/Psf] 
5 .
sfo{qmdM
ldlt M– @)*@ df3 )# ut] zlgjf/ -tbg';f/ !& hgj/L, @)@^ O{=;+=_
;do M– lbgsf] !!M#) ah]  
:yfg M– g]kfn k|1f k|lti7fg, sdnfbL, sf7df08f} .
5nkmnsf ljifox?M

 $_  o; ljQLo ;+:yfn] cGo O{hfhtkqk|fKt s'g} Ps jf Ps eGbf a9L pko'Qm n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yfx? Ps cfk;df 
ufEg]÷ufleg] -Merger_ jf k|fKtL -Acquisition_ ug]{, ;dembf/L kq -Memorandum of Understanding_ df 
x:tfIf/ ug]{, ;f] sf] cfwf/df ;}4flGts :jLs[ltsf nflu g]kfn /fi6« a}+s ;dIf lgj]bg lbg], ;DklQ tyf bfloTjsf] d"Nof+sg 
k|ltj]bg -Due Diligence Audit Report_ tof/ ug{ k/fdz{bftf, d'Nof+sgstf{ tyf n]vf k/LIfsx? lgo'Qm ug]{ tyf 
ufEg]÷ufleg] Pjd\ k|flKt;Fu ;DalGwt k|rlnt sfg"g tyf lgb]{zgx? cg'?k ckgfpg' kg]{ tyf ug'{ kg]{ ePdf ;Dk"0f{ 
cfjZos sfo{, k|s[ofx? k'/f u/L clGtd :jLs[lt lng], clGtd :jLs[lt kZrft ;f]sf] sfof{Gjog ug]{ tyf ;f] ;Gbe{df 
lgofds lgsfox?af6 lgb]{zg u/] adf]lhdsf ljj/0fx? pknAw u/fpg] sfo{ cuf8L a9fpg ;~rfns ;ldltnfO{ 
clVtof/L k|Tofof]hg ug]{ ;DaGwdf .

 !_  ;+rfns ;ldltsf] tk{maf6 cWoIfHo"åf/f k||:t't x'g] cfly{s jif{ @)*!÷)*@ sf] jflif{s k|ltj]bg pk/ 5nkmn u/L kfl/t 
ug{] .

 @_  af]g; z]o/ hf/L  kZrft ljQLo ;+:yfsf] hf/L tyf r'Qmf k"FhL j[l4 x'g] ePsfn] ljQLo ;+:yfsf] hf/L / r'Qmf k"FhL j[l4 ug]{ / 
;f]xL adf]lhd k|jGwkqdf ;+zf]wg ug]{ .   

s= ;fdfGo k|:tfjx?

v= ljz]if k|:tfjx?
 !_  ;+rfns ;ldltn] k|:tfj u/] adf]lhd cf=j= @)*!÷)*@ ;Ddsf] ljt/0fof]Uo d'gfkmfaf6 ljQLo ;+:yfsf] xfn sfod r'Qmf 

k"FhL ?= &*,#(,@$,$)#÷– sf] !$=@%Ü sf] b/n] x'g] ?= !!,!&,)(,@@&=$# /sd a/fa/sf] af]g; z]o/ hf/L ug]{ k|:tfj 
kf/Lt ug]{ .

           ;+rfns ;ldltsf] cf1fn]

 @_ n]vf k/LIfssf] k|ltj]bg ;lxt @)*@ cfiff9 d;fGt;Ddsf] jf;nft, ;f]xL ldltdf ;dfKt ePsf] cf= j= @)*!÷)*@ sf] 
gfkmf gf]S;fg lx;fa, gub k|jfx ljj/0f tyf ;f] ;Fu ;DalGwt cg';"rLx? pk/ 5nkmn u/L kfl/t ug{] .

               sDkgL ;lrj

 %_  ljQLo ;+:yfsf] k|aGwkq tyf lgodfjnLsf bkmf tyf lgodx?df ul/Psf] yk tyf ;+zf]wgsf ;DaGwdf lgodgsf/L 
lgsfoaf6 kl/dfh{g jf ;+zf]wg jf k]m/abn ug{ ;'emfj jf lgb]{zg ePdf ;f]xL cg'?k cfjZos kl/dfh{g, ;+zf]wg jf 
km]/abn ug{ ;~rfns ;ldltnfO{ k"0f{ clVtof/L k|bfg ug]{ . 

 #_ sDkgL P]g, @)^# sf] bkmf !!! cg';f/ n]vf k/LIf0f ;ldltsf] l;kmfl/z adf]lhd cf=j= @)*@÷)*# sf] n]vf k/LIf0f 
ug{sf nflu n]vf k/LIfssf] lgo'lQm tyf lghsf] kfl/>lds lgwf{/0f ug]{ -lk=Pn=cf/=lh P;f]l;o6\; k"g lgo'lQmsf nfuL 
of]Uo x'g'x'G5_ . 

 $_  ;+rfns ;ldltn] k|:tfj u/] adf]lhd xfn sfod r'Qmf kF"hL ?= &*,#(,@$,$)#÷– sf] )=&%Ü n] x'g cfpg] ?= 
%*,&(,$##=%( gub nfef+z /sd -af]gz z]o/sf] s/ k|of]hgfy{ ;d]t_ kfl/t ug{] .

u= ljljw 

 %_ ;j{;fwf/0f z]o/wgLx?sf] tk{maf6 ;~rfns ;ldltdf k|ltlglwTj ug]{ # -ltg_ hgf ;+rfnsx?sf] lgjf{rg ug]{ .

 #_ cWoIf tyf ;~rfnsx?sf] j}7s eQf j[l4 ug]{ / ;f]xL adf]lhd ljQLo ;+:yfsf] lgodfjnLdf ;+zf]wg ug]{ . 
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%_  k|ltlglw lgo'lQm ul/;Sg' ePsf] z]o/wgLn] s'g} sf/0fjz To:tf] k|ltlglw jb/ ul/ cfkm} ;efdf pkl:yt eO{ 
xflh/L k'l:tsfdf b:tvt ug'{ k/]df To:tf] k|ltlglw jb/ ul/ cfkm} ;fwf/0f ;efdf pkl:yt eO dtbfg ug{ rfx]df 
;f] sf] lnlvt ;'rgf ;ef z'? x'g' eGbf slDtdf @$ 306f cufj} ljQLo ;+:yfdf btf{ ug'{ kg]{5 .

!!_  cGo yk hfgsf/L rflxPdf o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] s]lGb|o sfof{nodf ;Dks{ ug{'[x'g cg'/f]w 5 .
!@_ lgjf{rg ;DaGwL sfo{qmd M ldlt @)*@÷)(÷@) ut]sf] /fli6«o b}lgs klqsfdf k|sfzg ug'{sf ;fy} ljQLo 

;+:yfsf] j]j;fO{6 / ljQLo ;+:yfsf] s]lGb|o sfof{nosf] ;'rgf kf6Ldf ;d]t k|sfzg÷6fF; ul/g]5 .

!_  ;qf}F jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;ef k|of]hgsf] nflu ldlt @)*@÷)(÷!* ut] o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] z]o/ bflvn vf/]h aGb 
x'g]5 . ;fy}, ldlt @)*@÷)(÷!& ut] ;Dd g]kfn :6s PS;r]~h lnld6]8df sf/f]af/ eO{ tf]lsPsf] ;do leqdf 
gfd;f/L eO{ o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] z]o/ /lhi6«f/ >L PgPdla Soflk6n lnld6]8, afn'jf6f/, sf7df08f}+df /x]sf] 
z]o/ nutdf sfod ePsf z]o/wgLx? Dffq ;fwf/0f ;ef tyf af]g; z]o/sf nflu of]Uo x'g]5g .

#_  ;qf}F jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efsf] k|ltj]bg z]o/wgLx?sf] 7]ufgfdf x'nfs÷s'l/o/ jf cGo s'g} dfWodaf6 k7fO{g]5 . 
s'g} sf/0fjz pk/f]Qm k|ltj]bg k|fKt ug{ g;Sg' x'g] z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx?n] o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] j]j;fO{6 
www.slbbl.com.np df klg x]g{ ;Sg' x'g]5 . ;fy}, ljQLo ;+:yfsf] s]lGb|o sfof{no ag]kf–% sfe|]knf~rf]s jf 
ljQLo ;+:yfsf] z]o/ /lhi6«f/sf] sfof{no PgPdla Soflk6n lnld6]8, jfn'jf6f/, sf7df08f}+ / ;ef x'g] lbgdf 
;ef :ynaf6 ;d]t k|fKt ug{ ;Sg' x'g]5 .

$_  jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efdf efu lngsf] nflu k|ltlglw -k|f]S;L_ lgo'lQm ug{ rfxg] z]o/wgLx?n] k|f]S;L kmf/fddf 
;fwf/0f ;ef x'g' eGbf sDtLdf $* 306f cufj} ljQLo ;+:yfsf] s]Gb|Lo sfof{no ag]kf –%, sfe|]knf~rf]sdf btf{ 
u/L ;Sg' kg{]5 . o;/L k|ltlglw lgo'lQm ul/Psf] JolQm ;d]t ljQLo ;+:yfsf] z]o/wgL x'g' cfjZos 5 . k|ltlglw 
kmf/d -k|f]S;L_ lb+bf cfˆgf] ;d"xsf] z]o/wgLnfO{ dfq lbg'kg]{5 . 

^_  gfafns jf lalIfKt z]o/wgLx?sf] tkm{af6 ;+/Ifs :jodn] ;efdf efu lng, 5nkmn ug{, k|ltlglw lgo'QmL ug{ / 
dt lbg ;d]t kfpg]5g\ . z]o/wgLsf] nut lstfadf ;+/Ifssf] ?kdf gfd pNn]v ePsf] JolQmnfO{ dfq ;+/Ifssf] 
?kdf dfGotf lbOg]5 .

&_  ;fwf/0f ;efdf efu lng] k|To]s z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx?n] clgjfo{ ?kdf ;ef x'g] :yfgdf /x]sf] pkl:ylt 
k'l:tsfdf b:tvt ug'{kg]{5 . z]o/wgL pkl:ylt k'l:tsf laxfg !)M#) ah]b]lv v'Nnf /xg]5 .

*_  jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efdf efu lng cfpFbf hfFbf nfu]sf] vr{ nufot cGo s'g} k|sf/sf] vr{sf] ;f]wegf{ ljQLo 
;+:yfaf6 pknAw gx'g] Joxf]/f cg'/f]w 5 .

!)_  s'g} z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx?nfO{ ljQLo ;+:yfsf] ;+DaGwdf s'g} lh1f;f eP To:tf] Aoxf]/f lnlvt ?kdf ;ef x'g' 
eGbf & lbg cufj} ljQLo ;+:yfsf] s]Gb|Lo sfof{nodf k7fpg' x'g cg'/f]w ub{5f}+ . t/ o;nfO{ 5nkmn / kfl/t x'g] 
k|:tfjsf] ?kdf ;dfj]z ul/g] 5}g .

;qf}+ jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;ef ;DaGwL yk hfgsf/L

(_  z]o/wgLx?af6 p7]sf k|Zg, lh1f;f jf dGtJox?sf] ;DaGwdf ;+rfns ;ldltsf] tkm{af6 cWoIf jf lghaf6 
cg'dlt k|fKt JolQmn] hjfkm lbg ;Sg]5g\ .

@_  jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efdf efu lng cfpFbf cfˆgf] kl/ro v'Ng] lxtu|fxL vftf vf]lnPsf] lxtu|fxL kl/ro 
gDa/÷z]o/ k|df0fkq jf gful/stf jf cGo sfuhft lnO{ cfO{lbg'x'g cg'/f]w 5 . ;+:yfaf6 k|ltlglwTj ug]{ ePdf 
;DalGwt ;+:yfsf] cflwsfl/s kq k]z ug'{ kg]{5 .
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cfb/0fLo z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx?,

 sf]/f]gf dxfdf/L kl5 k|efljt ePsf Jofkf/ Joj;fo ;'wf/f]Gd'v x'g g;Sg', dWok"j{ tyf ?;–o'qm]g o'4 / To;af6 ljZj 
cy{tGqdf k/]sf] k|efj, cfly{s ultljlw ;':ttf tyf n3'ljQ / ;xsf/L If]qk|lt gsf/fTds k|rf/ k|;f/n] ubf{ o; cfly{s 
aif{df klg k|efj k/]sf] x'Fbf n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yfx?sf] shf{ k|jfxdf ;+s'rg cfPsf] cj:yf 5 . a}Fs tyf ljQLo ;+:yfx? 
lj?4sf ;+3if{ nufot ultljlwsf sf/0f ljutsf jif{ b]lv ;du| ljQLo If]qdf k|efj k/];u} o; ;+:yfsf] n3'ljQ 
sfo{qmddf ;d]t k|efj kl//x]sf] 5 . h;sf] kl/0ffd :j?k ljQLo ;+:yfn] nufgL u/]sf shf{sf] ls:tf / Aofh c;'nL ;d]t 
k|efljt eO{ cfDbfgLsf] 7"nf] lx:;f shf{ gf]S;fgL Joj:yfdf vr{ n]Vg'k/]sf] cj:yf 5 . Jofj;fo lj:tf/df sl;nf] 
lgofdsLo gLltsf sf/0f Joj;fo j[l4 gx'g' / ljQLo ;+:yfsf] l:y/ nfutsf] vr{ eO/xg] xF'bf s'n cfDbfgLdf k|efj k/]sf] 
5 . oBlk ut jif{sf] t'ngfdf o; jif{sf] v'b gfkmfdf a9f]Q/L cfPsf] Aoxf]/f oxfFx?nfO{ hfgsf/L u/fpFb5' . o:tf] k|lts"n 
kl/l:yltdf ;d]t ;+:yfn] hf]lvd Joj:yfkgdf clws s]lGb|t /xL Joj;fodf ;+s'rg cfpg glbg o; ;+:yf k|of;/t 
/x]sf] 5 . h;sf] k|ltkmn o; cfly{s jif{sf] ;fy} cfufdL cfly{s jif{x?df ;d]t b]lvg] oxfFx?nfO{ ljZjf; lbnfpg rfxG5' 
. ljut b'O{ cfly{s jif{sf k|d'v kl/;"rsx?sf] b]xfo adf]lhdsf] t'ngfTds ljj/0fn] ljQLo ;+:yfsf] cfly{s sf/f]af/ 
tTsflng kl/l:yltnfO{ dWogh/ ubf{ ;Gtf]ifhgs g} /x]sf] b]lvG5 . 

 æ;'v / ;d[l4sf] cfwf/, ;a}sf] nflu :j/f]huf/Æ eGg] d"n l;4fGtsf ;fy :yfkgf ePsf] o; :j/f]huf/ n3'ljQ ljQLo 
;+:yf lnld6]8sf] ;qf}+ jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efdf pkl:yt cfb/0fLo z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx?, k'j{ ;+rfnsHo"x?, cfdlGqt 
cltlyHo"x?, lgodgsf/L lgsfosf k|ltlglwHo"x?, ljleGg ;+:yfx?af6 k|ltlglwTj ub}{ kfNg' ePsf dxfg'efjx?, afx\o 
n]vfk/LIfsHo", cfGtl/s n]vfk/LIfsHo", ljQLo ;+:yfsf sd{rf/Lx?, kqsf/Ho"x? Pj+ pkl:yt cGo ;Dk"0f{ dxfg'efjx?nfO{ 
ljQLo ;+:yfsf] ;~rfns ;ldlt Pj+ d]/f] JolQmut tkm{af6 xflb{s :jfut tyf clejfbg JoQm ug{ rfxG5' .

cfb/0fLo z]o/wgL dxfg'efjx?,

 ca d o; ul/dfdo ;efdf ;~rfns ;ldltsf] tkm{af6 ljQLo ;+:yfsf] ;qf}+ jflif{s k|ltj]bg, cfly{s jif{ @)*!÷)*@ 
sf] ljQLo ljj/0fx?, cfly{s jif{ @)*!÷)*@ sf] n]vfk/LIfssf] k|ltj]bg, g]kfn /fi6« a}+ssf] lgb]{zg cg';f/ tof/ kfl/Psf] 
jf;nft, gfkmf gf]S;fg lx;fj tyf ;f]sf] afF8kmfF8, gub k|jfx ljj/0f, O{SjL6Ldf ePsf] kl/jt{gsf] ljj/0fx? ;fy} o; ljQLo 
;+:yfn] xfl;n u/]sf] pknlAw, ;fdgf ug{' k/]sf r'gf}tL / rfn' jif{sf] sfo{qmdx? nufot ljljw ljifox?df b]xfo adf]lhdsf] 
k|ltj]bg oxfFx? ;dIf k]z u/]sf] 5' . pQm k|ltj]bg dfly 5nkmn ub}{ ;'emfj ;lxt ;dy{g ul/lbg'x'g cg'/f]w ub{5' .

!_  ljQLo ;+:yfsf] ut jif{sf] sf/f]af/sf] l;+xfjnf]sg M

 g]kfn /fi6« a}+saf6 æ3Æ ju{sf] Ohfhtkq k|fKt u/L sDkgL /lhi6«f/sf] sfof{nodf ldlt @)^^÷)$÷)* ut] ljlwjt ?kdf 
:yfkgf eO{ @)^^÷)(÷)! ut] b]lv æ:j/f]huf/ n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf lnld6]8Æ sf] gfdaf6 ljQLo sf/f]af/ ub}{ cfO{ /x]sf] 5 . 
o; ljQLo ;+:yfn] u/LaL Go'lgs/0f cleofgdf / ljkGg tyf u|fld0f If]qsf kl/jf/x?nfO{ nlIft ul/ ljQLo kx'+r k'¥ofpg] / 
nlIft ju{ tyf ;d'bfosf] cfly{s ;fdfhLs ?kfGt/0fsf] nflu n3'ljQ sfo{qmdnfO{ s]lG›t u/L nlIft ju{, If]q / ;d'bfonfO{ 
pTk|]/ssf] e"ldsf lgefpFb} n3'pBd tyf Joj;fo ug{ k|]l/t ub}{ ;fdflhs cfly{s ?kfGt/0fsf] nflu cuf8L al9/x]sf] 5 . 
sfe|]knf~rf]s, dsjfgk'/ / lrtjg ul/ # lhNnfaf6 ;]jf z'? u/]sf] o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] xfn /fli6«o :t/ sfo{If]q /x]sf] / b]zsf] 
#^ lhNnfdf (! zfvfx?af6 n3'ljQ ;]jf k|bfg ul//x]sf] Joxf]/f ;Ddflgt ;efdf hfgsf/L u/fpg rfxG5' .

ag]kf–%, sfe|]knf~rf]s
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 o; If]qdf b]lvPsf] ljifd kl/l:yltsf] cWoog ubf{ xfnnfO{ ;b:o tyf shf{sf] u'0f:t/ sfod /fVg g} r'gf}tLk'0f{ x'g] 
b]lvPsf]n] u'0f:t/ sfod ug]{ k|of; :j?k ;b:ox?;+usf] cGt{lqmof sfo{qmd, l;kd'ns tfnLd, s]Gb| e]nf sfo{qmd dfkm{t 
ljQLo ;fIf/tfdf ljz]if hf]8 lbO{ dlxnf ;zlQms/0fsf] cleofgnfO{ ljz]if Wofg lbO{Psf]] 5 . k|lts'n cj:yf /x'Gh]n 
;b:o lj:tf/ tyf cGo lj:tf/sf] sfo{qmdnfO{ ;'/lIft tj/n] ;+rfng ug{] lglt lnO{Psf] 5 . @)*! c;f]h d;fGtsf] 
t'ngfdf rfn' cfly{s jif{ @)*@÷)*# sf] c;f]h d;fGtdf ljQLo ;+:yfsf] d'Vo ljQLo kl/;"rsx?sf] t'ngfTds 
cj:yf o; k|sf/ /x]sf] 5 . 

@_  k|ltj]bg tof/ ePsf] ldlt ;Dd rfn' jif{sf] pknAwL / eljiodf ug{'kg{] sfo{of]hgfsf] ;DaGwdf 

;+rfns ;ldltsf] wf/0ff M 

 o; ;+:yfn] @)&& >fj0f ! ut] b]lv lgIf]k tyf shf{ ;'/If0f sf]if;Fu shf{sf] ;'/If0f ug]{ ;Demf}tf u/]sf] 5 . ldlt @)*@ 
c;f/ d;fGt ;Dd ljQLo ;+:yfn] u/]sf] s'n shf{ nufgL ?= 9,43,44,05,371.36 -cIf?kL gf} c/a lqrfln; s/f]8 
rf}jfln; nfv kfFr xhf/ ltg ;o PsxQ/ bzdnj ltg 5 _ dfq dWo] ?= 9,35,26,46,263.2 -cIf?kL gf} c/a k}lt; 
s/f]8 5lJj; nfv 5ofln; xhf/ b'O{ ;o lq;¶L bzdnj b'O{ gf}_dfq -((=!#Ü_ shf{ /sd ;'/lIft u/L ;lsPsf] Joxf]/f 
;ef ;dIf hfgsf/L u/fpg rfxG5' ;fy} @)*@ c;f/ ;Dd C0fLaf6 c;'n x'g g;s]sf] ;'/If0f ul/Psf] shf{sf] s'n !)^# 
hgfsf] bflj ul/Psf] klxnf] ls:tf jfkt -&)Ü_ hDdf ? #,!),#*,!$!=^( -ltg s/f]8 bz nfv c7\lt; xhf/ Ps ;o 
Psrfln; bzdnj 5 gf}_ lgIf]k tyf shf{ ;'/If0f sf]ifaf6 lnPsf] hfgsf/L u/fpb5' . To;} u/L ljQLo ;+:yfn] ;b:o tyf 
C0fLx?sf]] ljleGg ljdf sDkgLx?df u/]sf] shf{sf] ljdf jfkt o; cf=j df s'n ;+Vof $$( hgfsf] s'n ? 
*,(@,)^,$@#÷– bfaL ul/ C0fL jf C0fLsf] kl/jf/nfO{ e'QmfgL ul/Psf] 5 .

ljj/0f cf=j= @)*!÷)*@ cf=j= @)*)÷)*! km/s k|ltzt s}lkmot 
Zf]o/ k"FhL 78,39,24,403 67,11,04,993.00 16.81  
hu]8f tyf sf]ifx¿ 45,25,12,858.66 34,44,63,325.06 31.37  
art 4,49,73,30,470.65 3,73,35,53,067.08 20.46  
v'b shf{ 9,26,76,70,834.21 8,07,17,45,626.83 14.82  
ltg{ a+fls shf{ ;fk6 4,19,28,72,279.95 38,588,62,589.21 8.66  
s'n zfvf ;ª\Vof 91 91 0.00  
s'n ;b:o ;ª\Vof 1,35,276 1,25,884 7.46  
s'n C0fL ;ª\Vof 54,475 48,983 11.21  
v"b d'gfkmf 22,06,20,352.90 11,14,05,667.70 98.03  
jf;nftsf] cfsf/ 10,14,97,34,367.92 8,74,68,83,342.31 16.04  

 

qm=;+= ljj/0f @)*@÷)*# c;f]h dlxgf 
;Ddsf] ljj/0f 

@)*!÷)*@ c;f]h dlxgf 
;Ddsf] ljj/0f 

k|ult 
k|ltzt 

!= s'n zfvf ;ª\Vof 91 91 
 @= s'n ;b:o ;ª\Vof 1,37,577 1,27,229 8.13 

#= s'n C0fL ;ª\Vof 55,208 51,437 7.33 
$= s'n afFsL shf{ -¿_ 9,65,85,06,823.95 8,68,40,84,965.07 11.22 
%= s'n art -¿_ 4,68,24,06,949.81 3,85,78,89,142.24 21.37 
^= ltg{ a+fls shf{ ;fk6 -¿_ 4,27,68,29,625.53 4,14,39,79,727.90 3.21 
&= s'n Jofh tyf cfDbfgL -¿_ 36,69,26,154.74 33,15,28,660.77 10.68 
*= s'n vr{ -¿_ 29,41,16,681.32 27,89,13,978.36 5.45 
(= ;+rfng gfkmf -?=_ 7,28,09,473.42 5,26,14,682.41 38.38 
!)= v'b gfkmf -¿_ 5,06,47,969.50 3,68,30,277.68 37.52 
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 s'n k"FhL ?= !,%&,)),)))÷– -cIf?kL, Ps s/f]8 ;GtfpGg nfv dfq_ af6 :yfkgf ePsf] o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] r'Qmf k"FhL 
@)*@ cfiff9 d;fGtdf ?= &*,#(,@$,$)#÷– -cIf?kL, c7\xQ/ s/f]8 pgfGrfln; nfv rf}lj; xhf/ rf/ ;o ltg 
dfq_ k'u]sf] 5 . ;fy}, cf=j= @)*!÷)*@ ;Ddsf] ljt/0f of]Uo d'gfkmfaf6 ;+rfns ;ldltn] k|:tfj u/]sf] !$=@% k|ltzt 
-?= 11,17,09,227.43_ af]g; z]o/ o; ;efsf] :jLs[t kZrft yk e} s'n r'FQmf k'FhL ?= 89,56,33,630.43 -cIf?kL, 
pgfgAj] s/f]8 5kGg nfv t}lt; xhf/ 5 ;o lt; bzdnj rf/ ltg dfq_ sfod /xg] s'/f o; ul/dfdo ;efnfO{ hfgsf/L 
u/fpFb5' .

%_  k|ljlw ljsf;

 ljQLo ;+:yfdf sfo{/t sd{rf/Lsf] sfo{Ifdtf clej[l4 ug{ cfGtl/s tyf afXo tflndsf] Joj:yf ul/Psf] 5 . ljQLo 
;+:yfs} cfof]hgfdf ljQLo ;+:yfdf cfa4 jl/i7 sd{rf/L tyf ;DalGwt ljifosf lj1 afXo k|lzIfsaf6 cfGtl/s 
tflnd ;~rfng ug]{ ul/Psf] 5 . a}+s tyf ljQLo ;+:yf ;DaGwL tflnd lbg] ;+:yfx¿n] cfof]hgf u/]sf ljQLo ;+:yfsf] 
cfjZostf adf]lhdsf afXo tflnddf klg sd{rf/Lx¿nfO{ ;xefuL u/fOPsf] 5 . o:tf tflndn] sd{rf/Lx¿df ljQLo 
;+:yfsf] p2]Zo k|flKtsf nflu cfjZos kg]{ 1fg / ;Lksf] ljsf; ePsf] 5 . @)*@ c;f/ d;fGt ;Dddf sfo{/t s'n 
sd{rf/L ;+Vof %!! -dlxnf sd{rf/L @)*, k'?if sd{rf/L #)#_ hgf dWo] !% j6f cfGtl/s tflnddf s'n ;xefuL $^* 
hgf, afXo #$ j6f tflnddf !@^ hgf / j}b]lzs ! j6f tflnd tyf cWoog e|d0fdf s'n !) hgf ;xefuL u/fOPsf] lyof] 
. cfly{s jif{ @)*!÷)*@ Dff cfGtl/s, afXo / j}b]lzs u/L s'n %) j6f tflndsf] dfWodaf6 ̂ )$ hgf sd{rf/Lx¿nfO{ 
k|lzlIft u/fOPsf] lyof] . o; cf=j df sd{rf/LnfO{ lbOPsf] cfGtl/s tyf jfXo tflnddf ljQLo ;+:yfn] s'n 
%),$^,!@* vr{ u/]sf] 5 . ljQLo ;+:yfdf cfa4 ;b:onfO{ cfTdlge{/ / Joj;foL agfpgsf nflu lgoldt ¿kdf tflnd 
;~rfng ul/Psf] 5 . u|fxs ;b:osf] dfu / Joj;fosf cfwf/df @ b]lv $ lbg] tflndx? zfvfdf cfof]hgf ePsf] lyof] . 
o:tf tflndn] Joj;fo ;DaGwL ;fdfGo 1fg dfq ePsf JolQmn] klg Joj;fo ;~rfngsf] nflu cfjZos 1fg / ;Lk 
k|fKt u/]sf 5g\ . ;dLIff cf=j=@)*!÷)*@ df s'n !!,@#( hgf ;b:o tyf ;b:osf kl/jf/sf ;b:onfO{ ljleGg 
Jofj;flos l;kd"ns tflnd lbOPsf] lyof] .

^_  n3'ljQ sfo{qmd ;'wf/sf efjL sfo{qmd

 ljQLo ;+:yfn] b}lgs sf/f]af/sf] clen]v /fVg, l:y/ ;DktLsf] ljj/0f /fVg, :6s clen]v /fVg, sd{rf/Lsf] ljj/0f, 
sd{rf/Lsf] xflh/L tyf sd{rf/Lsf] tna tyf eQf s]Gb|Lo sfof{noaf6 ljt/0f ug]{ u/L / cfGtl/s ljk]|if0f ug{ tyf 
cg'udg k|0ffnLnfO{ r':t /fVg MFin ;ˆ6j]o/ ;+rfng ul//x]sf] 5 . To;} u/L ;L;L Sofd]/f h8fg u/L ;Dk'0f{ zfvf 
sfof{nox?nfO{ cg'udg tyf lgoGq0f ug{ ;Sg] ul/ b'?:t agfOPsf] 5 . ;fy} ;b:ox?nfO{ ls:tf tyf art e'QmfgL ug{ 
;xhtfsf] nflu Esewa / Khalti dfkm{t e'QmfgL ug]{ Joj:yf ldnfOPsf] 5 . ;b:ox?sf] sf/f]af/nfO{ b'?:t /fVgsf] nflu 
sf/f]jf/sf] hfgsf/L lbg SMS ;]jf tyf ljQLo sf/f]jf/ ;xhtfsf nflu Mobile Banking ;]jf k|bfg u/fO{Psf] 5 . 
Joj;fo u/L/x]sf ;b:ox?sf] nfuL /sd hDdf ug{sf nflu QR Code pknAw ul/Psf] 5 . o; If]qdf lelqPsf ljleGg 
gofF k|ljlwsf] ljsf;;+u} cfˆgf ;b:ox?nfO{ klg cfw'lgs k|ljlw tkm{ cEo:t agfpFb} n}hfg' kg]{ st{Joaf]wsf ;fy o; 
k|sf/sf ;]jfnfO{ klg yk ul/ cfw'lgs ljB'tLo k|ljlw dfkm{t sf/f]af/ ug{ ;b:ox?nfO{ pTk|]l/t ug{] gLlt lnO{Psf] 5 . 
cfufdL lbgdf yk cfw'lgs k|ljlwsf] k|of]u u/L ;]jfnfO{ l56f] 5l/tf] ?kdf k|bfg ul/g]5 .

#_  ljQLo ;+:yfsf] k"“hL la:tf/ gLlt M

$_  sd{rf/L, ;b:o tflnd tyf j[lQ ljsf;

 n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yfx?sf] ;]jfn] cfly{s cj:yf sdhf]/ /x]sf JolQmx?nfO{ cuf8L a9fpg' kg{]df n3'ljQ ;+:yfx? 
larsf] c:j:Yo k|lt:kwf{n] ;b:osf] Ifdtf eGbf a9L shf{x? k|jfx eO{ sltko ;b:ox? clt C0f u|:ttfdf ;d]t kg{ 
uPsf] b]lvG5 ;fy} sltko ca:yfdf Ps ;b:on] w]/} hgfsf] shf{ rnfO{lbg] sf/0faf6 ;d]t ;d:of pTkGg ePsf] 5 . 
sf]le8sf] k|efj To;kl5 cy{tGqdf k/]sf] k|efj, cfly{s ultljlw ;':ttf tyf n3'ljQ / ;xsf/L If]qk|lt gsf/fTds 
k|rf/ k|;f/, a}Fs tyf ljQLo ;+:yfx? lj?4sf ;+3if{ nufot ultljlwsf] sf/0f shf{ gltg]{ k|j[lQ a9L /x]sf] ;Gbe{df 
cfufdL lbgdf b]lvg ;Sg] ;d:ofnfO{ Go"g ug{ ;3g ?kdf shf{ ljZn]if0f u/L dfq shf{ k|jfx ug]{ / shf{sf] ;b'kof]uLtf 
hf]8 lbOg]5  . ;b:ox?sf] Ifdtf clej[l4sf] nflu ljleGg k|sf/sf ;Lk tyf Ifdtf clej[l4 tflndx? / Joj;flos 
;Nnfx lbg] sfo{nfO{ klg lg/Gt/tf lbg] gLlt lnO{Psf] 5 . 
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&_  /fli6«o tyf cGt/f{li6«o kl/l:yltaf6 sDkgLsf] sf/f]af/nfO{ c;/

 cfkm' /x]sf] ;dfh, ;d'bfo / hgtf k|lt ToxfF sfo{/t /x]sf ;+3 ;+:yfx?sf] ;fdflhs bfloTj /x]sf] x'G5 . o;nfO{ k'/f ug{sf] 
nflu ;fdflhs lxt x'g] sfddf s'g} g s'g} ?kdf ;+nUg x'g' g}lts lhDd]jf/L klg xf] . o;} tYonfO{ dgg\ u/L g]kfn /fi6« a}+sn] 
u/]sf] gLltut Joj:yf cg';f/ ;+:yfn] ;dflhs pQ/bfloTj ;DaGwL sfo{ ug{ x/]s cfly{s jif{sf] d'gfkmfsf] !Ü /sd 
5'6\ofO{ ;+:yfut ;dflhs pQ/bfloTj sf]if v8f ul/Psf] 5 . o; sf]ifaf6 x/]s jif{ s]xL /sd ;fdflhs sfo{x?df vr{ ug{] 
ul/Psf] 5 . o; ljQLo ;+:yfn] ;+:yfut ;fdflhs pQ/bfloTj sf]ifdf ePsf] /sdnfO{ ;~rfns ;ldltn] :jLs[t u/L 
nfu" u/]sf] pQm sf]if ;~rfng ;DalGw sfo{ljwL adf]lhd x'g] u/L cfly{s jif{ @)*!÷)*@ df b]z el/sf ljleGg 
:yfgx?df leGg–leGg k|s[ltsf] sfo{qmdx? ;+rfng u/]sf] lyof] . ;+:s[lts ;+/rgfsf] k|j{wg, ljQLo ;fIf/tf, lzIff, 
:jf:Yo ;DaGwL ;fdflhs kl/of]hgf h:tf ;fdflhs sfo{ jfkt ljlQo ;+:yfn] lgDgfg';f/ ;fdflhs sfo{ ;DkGg u/]sf] 
lyof] .

 /fli6«o tyf cGt/f{li6«o kl/l:yltaf6 AolQm tyf ;+3;+:yfx?sf] cfodf cfPsf] ;+s'rgsf sf/0f /f]huf/Lsf cj;/x? sd 
x'b} hfg' / x/]s AolQmx?sf k]zf tyf Aoa;fo 36\bf] cj:yfdf ePsf] x'+bf tTsfn} cy{tGqsf] cj:yf ;'wf/ x'g] ;+s]t 
b]lvPsf] 5}g\ . ljleGg pBf]uwGbf tyf Aoa;fo / /f]huf/Lsf cj;/ 36\bf] qmddf ePsf]n] a}+s tyf ljQLo ;+:yfdf kof{Kt 
t/ntf sfod /x]sf] / 36\bf] Aofhb/df klg shf{ j[l4 x'g g;s]sf] sf/0f a}+s tyf ljQLo ;+:yfsf] cfDbfgLdf k|ToIf c;/ 
b]lvg uPsf] x'Fbf cfufdL lbgdf yk hf]lvd x'g] ;+s]t b]lvPsf] 5 . o; ;DaGwdf kl/l:yltsf] d'Nofs+g ul/ cy{tGqnfO 
rnfodfg u/fpgsf nflu lgofds lgsfox?n] lbg k|ltlbg gLltut ;'wf/ ul/ /x]sf]n] ;f] sf] cj:yfnfO{ dWogh/ ub}{ 
;+:yfn] klg shf{ lj:tf/sf] gLltnfO{ cToGt ;'Id ljZn]if0f ul/ sfo{ ul/ /x]sf] Aoxf]/f ;ef ;dIf hfgsf/L u/fpg rfxG5'. 

*_  dh{/ tyf PlSjlh;g 

 o; ljQLo ;+:yfn] ufEg]÷ufleg] -dh{/_ tyf k|flKt k|of]hgsf] nflu ljleGg ;+:yfx?;+u 5nkmn ul/ ;+:yfsf] lxtnfO{ 
dWo]gh/ ul/ ag]kf–!#, sfe|]knf~rf]s s]Gb|Lo sfof{no /x]sf] ljg g]kfn n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf ln=;Fu ldlt @)*@ kf}if ( 
ut] k|flKt ;DjlGw k|f/lDes ;xdlt ePsf] 5 . 

(_  ;+:yfut ;fdflhs pQ/bfloTj

 Ø s~rgk'/ lhNnf k'g{jf; gu/kflnsf j8f g+= )# l:yt sflnsf ahf/ Joj:yfkg ;ldltsf] ljleGg v]n tyf 
sfo{qmd cfly{s ;xof]u,

 Ø d}gfkf]v/ zfvf sfof{no / afFs] l;l6 c:ktfnsf] ;+o'St ;xsfo{df Ps lbg] lgMz'Ns :jf:Yo lzlj/ 

 Ø zfvf sfof{no /fhfk'/ alb{ofdf ;+rfng ePsf] Ps lbg] ljQLo ;+fIf/tf sfo{qmd .

 Ø gjnk/f;L lhNnf ljgoL lqj]0fL ufpFkflnsf j8f g+= )& df cjl:yt >L lzjk'/u9L dlGb/ kl/;/ ;+/If0fsf] nflu 
;xof]u .

 Ø zfvf sfof{no >Lk'/ afFs] cGt{ut n3'ljQ sd{rf/L d~r, afFs]n] cfof]hgf u/]sf] Unf]an dgL jLs – @)@% ljlQo 
hfu/0f sfo{qmdsf] nflu cfly{s ;xof]u .

 Ø zfvf sfof{no /fhfk'/sf] /fhfk'/ u]?jf n3'ljQ sd{rf/L d~r4f/f cfof]lht Unf]an dgL jLs – @)@% ljlQo 
hfu/0f sfo{qmdsf] nflu cfly{s ;xof]u .

 Ø zfvf sfof{no rf}dfnf cGt{ut uf}/Lu+uf n3'ljQ sd{rf/L ldng s]Gb|, s}nfnLn] cfof]hgf u/]sf] Unf]an dgL jLs 
– @)@% ljlQo hfu/0f sfo{qmdsf] nflu cfly{s ;xof]u .

 Ø zfvf sfof{no af}lgofn] k|x/L sfof{no, ;8sk'/ s}nfnLnfO{ jf6/ lkmN6/ ;xof]u .

 Ø g]kfn ljlQo ;+:yf sd{rf/L ;+3, g]kfn /fi6« a}+s l;4fy{gu/ ;ldltsf] /mkGb]xLdf cfof]hgf ePsf]  ;'k/ l;S; 
skf]{/]6 sk lqmqm]6 6'gf{d]06–@)*@ sfo{qmddf Aofg/ k|fof]hg .

 ;+:yfut ;fdflhs pQ/bfloTj ;+u ;+DalGwt sfdx?nfO{ cfufdL lbgdf klg lg/Gt/tf lbO{g]5 .

 Ø zfvf sfof{no ax'j/Ldf ;+rfng ePsf] Ps lbg] ljQLo ;+fIf/tf sfo{qmddf .
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!)_  u|fxs ;+/If0f tyf ljQLo ;fIf/tf sfo{qmd

 ljQLo ;+:yfsf] bLuf]kgf / ;kmntfsf] cfwf/ eg]sf] o;sf] ;]jf k|lt ;Gt'i6 u|fxs g} x'g\ . cfˆgf u|fxs ;b:ox? ;+:yf;Fu 
cfj4 u/fO{ /fVg pgLx?sf] ;+/If0f / ljsf;df Wofg lbg' cfjZos x'G5 . o; ljQLo ;+:yfn] cfˆgf u|fxssf] ;+/If0f / 
ljsf;sf] nflu ;b:o ;'/If0f sf]ifsf] /sd / cfly{s jif{sf] v"b d'gfkmfsf] !=%Ü / !%Ü eGbf a9L nfef+zsf] #%Ü /sd 
5'6\ofO{ pQm sf]ifdf hDdf ePsf] /sdaf6 k|fKt Aofh ;d]t ;f]lx sf]ifdf hDdf ul/ u|fxs ;+/If0f sf]if :yfkgf u/L ;+rfngdf 
NofPsf] 5 . o; sf]ifaf6 u|fxs ;b:ox?sf] ;fd'lxs lxt, ;d:ofdf k/]sf C0fLx?sf] ;'/If0f, pgLx?sf] lzIff / Ifdtf 
ljsf;, ;Lk ljsf; nufotsf sfo{sf] nflu /sd vr{ ug{] ul/Psf] 5 . ;du|df u|fxs ;b:onfO{ ljleGg lsl;dsf 
;Lkd"ns tflnd k|bfg ug]{, s[lif / kz'kfngsf] Jojxfl/s lzIff k|bfg ug]{, k|fs[lts k|sf]ksf] sf/0faf6 tyf c;fWo 
/f]uaf6 ;d:ofdf k/]sfnfO{ /fxt lbg], pTs[i6 s]Gb|nfO{ k'/:s[t ug]{, ;b:o tyf cleefjs ;lDdlnt cGt/lqmofTds s]Gb| 
e]nf tyf ljQLo ;fIf/tf sfo{qmd, k|;"lt vr{ k|bfg ug]{, ;b:osf 5f]/f–5f]/LnfO{ lzIffdf k|f]T;fxg ug{ /sd k|bfg ug]{, 
:jf:Yo tyf cf}ifwf]krf/ nufotdf o; sf]if dfkm{t vr{ ug]{ sfo{ ePsf] 5 . cf=j= @)*!÷)*@ sf] z'?jftdf  ljQLo 
;+:yfdf u|fxs ;+/If0f sf]ifdf /x]sf] /sd ?= 2,59,95,168.78 -cIf?kL b'O{ s/f]8 pGgf;f7L nfv kGrfgAa] xhf/ Ps 
;o c7\;7L bzdna ;ft cf7 dfq_ dWo] cf=j= @)*!÷)*@ df hDdf ?= 1,26,48,900.01    -cIf?kL, Ps s/f]8 
5lAa; nfv c7\rfln; xhf/ gf} ;o bzdna z'Go Ps dfq_ vr{ ePsf] 5 . ;f]xL cf=j=df ;f] /sd nfufgL u/] afkt 
k|fKt Jofh cfDbfgL / gfkmf af6 k|fKt /sd ul/ ;f] sf]ifdf cf=j= @)*!÷)*@ sf] cGTodf ?=  1,82,91,916.03 -
cIf?kL, Ps s/f]8 aof;L nfv PsfgAa] xhf/ gf} ;o ;|f]x| bzdna z'Go ltg dfq_ /sd /x]sf] 5 . vr{ lj:t[t ljj/0f tn 
tflnsfdf pNn]v ul/P cg';f/sf] lzif{s adf]lhd /x]sf] 5 . 

 cfly{s jif{ @)*!÷)*@ df ;+rfns ;ldlt tklzn cg';f/ /x]sf] 5 . 

 o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] sf/f]af/ ;+rfng ug{] l;nl;nfdf ;Da4 ;a} kIfx?;Fu ;'dw'/ ;DaGw /xFb} cfPsf] 5 . ljQLo ;+:yf 
Joj:yfkg / sd{rf/Lx? aLrsf] ;'dw'/ ;DaGwsf] sf/0f Joj:yfkgnfO{ sd{rf/Lx?sf] k"0f{ ;xof]u /x]sf] 5 . o;} u/L g]kfn 
/fi6« a}+s, sDkgL /lhi6«f/sf] sfof{no, lwtf]kq af]8{, a}+s tyf ljQLo ;+:yfx? nufot ;Dk"0f{ cGo ;Da4 ;+:yfx?;Fu 
;'dw'/ ;DaGw /x]sf] 5 . cfufdL lbgdf ;d]t ;+:yfut ;'zf;g Pj+ Joj;flos ;DaGw lj:tf/df ljQLo ;+:yf k|lta4 
/x]sf] s'/f oxfFx? ;dIf /fVg rfxG5' .

!@_ ;+rfns ;ldlt

!!_  Joj:yfkg tyf Joj;flos ;DaGw 

l;=g lzif{s /sd 

1  u|fxsx?sf] :jf:Yo tyf kf]if0f÷;'Ts]/L :ofxf/ vr{          4,976,685.00 

2  ;d:ofdf k/]sf C0fLsf] Joj;fosf] ;'/If0f Pjd\ k'gM:yfkgf 1,995,555.00 

3  u|fxsx?sf ;Gtfgsf] ljBfno :t/sf] lzIff 1,958,400.00  

4  u|fxsx?sf] nfuL ljQLo ;+fIf/tf / Ifdtf ljsf; sfo{qmd 3,718,260.01 

 hDdf  12,648,900.01 
 

qm=;+= ljBdfg ;+rfnssf] gfd Kfb lgo'lQm ldlt s}lkmot 

! >L 1fg]G› k|;fb kf08] cWoIf @)&(÷!@÷!!  

@ >L lq ljqmd kf08] ;+rfns @)&(÷!@÷!!  
# >L pbo /fh vltj8f ;+rfns @)&(÷!@÷!!  
$ >L s[i0f aGhf8] ;+rfns @)&*÷)&÷@&  
% >L ;d/ 9sfn ;+rfns @)&*÷)&÷@&  
^ >L t]h bQ vs'/fn ;+rfns @)&*÷)&÷@&  
& >LdtL lx/f b]aL lji6 :jtGq ;+rfns @)&(÷)&÷@@   
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 o; ljQLo ;+:yfnfO{ ;'zf;g sfod u/L :jrflnt 9+un] ;+rfng ug{ ljleGg lgoGq0f k|0ffnL cjnDag ul/Psf] 5 . o;sf 
nflu zfvfx?df lgoldt ?kdf cg'udg ug{ cg'udg clws[t /flvPsf] 5 . h;af6 s]G›Lo sfof{nosf] tkm{af6 zfvfsf] 
;a} sfo{df lg/LIf0f tyf lgoGq0f ul/G5 . afXo ;|f]taf6 cfGtl/s n]vf k/LIfs lgo'Qm ul/ cfGtl/s n]vf k/LIf0f ug{] 
ul/Psf] 5 . o;/L cfGtl/s n]vf k/LIf0f ubf{ jif{df k|To]s zfvfsf] slDtdf @ k6s n]vf k/LIf0f ug]{ ul/Psf] 5 . afXo 
n]vfk/LIfsaf6 jflif{s ?kdf a}wflgs n]vf k/LIf0f ug{] ul/Psf] 5 . o;}u/L g]kfn /fi6« a}+s af6 jflif{s ?kdf ul/g] :ynut 
lg/LIf0f / u}/–:ynut lg/LIf0fn] klg cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|0ffnLnfO{ ;3fp k'¥ofPsf] 5 .

 Ø ;+:yfsf] ljlgodfjnL cg';f/ sfo{ ug]{ Joj:yf ldnfO{Psf],

 Ø ;b:ox?sf] nflu ljQLo ;fIf/tf, cGt{lqmof sfo{qmd, lgMz'Ns :jf:Yo lzlj/, :jf:Yo hgr]tgfd"ns sfo{qmd, 
ljleGg l;kd"ns tfnLd tyf bIftf clej[l4 sfo{qmd ;+rfng ul/Psf],

 !_  >L dgf]h s[i0f pk|]tL – k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t– ;+of]hs 
 @_  >L /fh]Gb| k|;fb Gof}kfg] – ;xfos dxfk|jGws -cf=n]=k= ljefu_– ;b:o 

 cfGtl/s lgoGq0fsf] sfo{nfO{ r':t /fVg ljQLo ;+:yfsf] tkm{af6 ul/Psf] k|of;x? 

 $_  >L dw' ;'bg kGt – jl/i7 clws[t -hf]lvd Joj:yfkg ljefu_– ;b:o 

 Ø cg'udg clws[tx?af6 lgoldt zfvfsf] :ynut lg/LIf0f u/fO{ ;dod} ;d:ofsf] klxrfg / ;dfwfg tyf zfvfdf 
x'g ;Sg] unt lqmofsnfknfO{ lg?T;flxt ul/Psf],

 Ø ;Dk'0f{ zfvf sfo{nox?df l;=l;=Sofd]/f h8fg u/L s]lGb|s[t ul/Psf],

 %_  >L ;/f]h kf}8]n – jl/i7 clws[t -;fdfGo ;]jf ljefu_– ;b:o

 #_  >L dw';'bg clwsf/L – ;xfos k|jGws -shf{ ljefu_– ;b:o 

 ^_  >L lg/f]h k|;fb kf}8]n– clws[t -n]vf ljefu_– ;b:o

 Ø jfof]d]l6«s xflh/L k|0ffnL nfu" ul/Psf],

 Ø sd{rf/Lx?sf] Ifdtf clej[l4sf] nflu cfGtl/s tyf jfx\o tflnddf ;xefuL u/fO{Psf],

!$_  Joj:yfkg pk–;ldlt

 Ø zfvfx?n] dfl;s ?kdf s]G›Lo sfof{nodf ug{'kg{] l/kf]l6{Ë ;dodf ug]{ Joj:yf ldnfO{Psf],

 Ø ljQLo ;+:yfn] g]kfn /fi6« a}+sdf ug{] dfl;s / q}dfl;s l/kf]l6{Ë lgoldt ?kdf ul/Psf], 

     o; ljQLo ;+:yfdf ;+:yfsf] b}lgs sfo{ ;'rf? ?kn] ;~rfng ug{sf] nflu ;ft ;b:o /x]sf] Joj:yfkg pk–;ldlt /x]sf] 5 . 
h;sf] d'Vo sfo{ ;+rfns ;ldltsf] lg0f{ox?nfO{ sfof{Gjog u/fpg' xf] . rfn' cf=j=df of] pk–;ldlt lgDgfg';f/ /x]sf] 5 .

 Ø s]lGb|s[t ;ˆ6j]o/ k|0ffnL nfu" ul/ yk Jojl:yt ul/Psf],

 &_  >L uf]kfn /fh lji6 – k|jGws -k|zf;g ljefu_ – ;b:o ;lrj 

 ;+rfns ;ldltn] u}/ sfo{sf/L ;+rfns >L ;d/ 9sfnHo"sf] ;+of]hsTjdf n]vfk/LIf0f pk–;ldlt u7g u/LPsf] 5 . 
h;df k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[tåf/f lgo'Qm Ps hgf ;b:o / cfGtl/s n]vf k/LIf0f ljefu k|d'v ;b:o ;lrj /xg] Joj:yf 
/x]sf] 5 . o; pk–;ldltsf] sfd st{Jo / clwsf/ g]kfn /fi6« a}+s tyf sDkgL P]gn] tf]s]sf] lgb{]zg adf]lhd /x]sf]5 . 

 Ø k|To]s zfvfdf jflif{s ?kdf s]G› k|d'v / pk–k|d'vx?sf] pkl:yltdf ul/g] Ps lbg] s]Gb| e]nf tyf ljQLo ;fIf/tf 
tyf u|fxs u'gf;f] ;+sng sfo{qmd ug]{ u/]sf] 5 h;df s]G› k|d'v, pk–k|d'v jf s]G›sf k|ltlglwx?n] ljQLo 
;+:yfsf] sfo{qmdx?, ;]jf k|jfx, sd{rf/Lsf] ;]jf k|jfx / cfr/0f af/] ;b:ox?sf cGo s'g} klg ;d:of / ug' f;fx? 
;g' j' fO { ul/G5 . o;/L ul/g ] ;fdl' xs ug' f;f ] ;g' j' fOa{ f6 klg cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k0| ffnLdf ;xofu]  ku' s] f ] 5 .

!^_  sd{rf/L ;]jf ;'ljwf pk–;ldlt

!%_ n]vfk/LIf0f pk–;ldlt

 ;+rfns ;ldltn] u}/ sfo{sf/L ;+rfns >L pbo /fh vltj8fHo"sf] ;+of]hsTjdf sd{rf/L ;]jf ;'ljwf pk–;ldlt u7g 
u/LPsf] 5 . h;df sfo{sf/L k|d'v tyf n]vf ljefu k|d'v ;b:o / hgzlQm Joj:yfkg ljefu k|d'v ;b:o ;lrjdf /xg] 
Joj:yf 5 . o; pk–;ldltsf] sfd st{Jo / clwsf/ g]kfn /fi6« a}+ssf] lgb{]zg adf]lhd tf]lsPsf] 5 .

!#_  cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|0ffnL / ;f] sf] lj:t[t ljj/0f
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 ;+rfns ;ldltn] u}/ sfo{sf/L ;+rfns >L lq ljqmd kf08]Ho"sf] ;+of]hsTjdf hf]lvd Joj:yfkg pk–;ldlt u7g u/]sf] 
5 . h;df ;+rfng ljefu k|d'v ;b:o Pj+ shf{ ljefu k|d'v ;b:o ;lrjdf jf hf]lvd Joj:yfkg ;DaGwL sfo{ ug]{ 
cnUu} OsfO{ ePdf ;f]sf] k|d'v ;b:o–;lrj x'g] Joj:yf /x]sf] 5 . ;fy} n]vf k/LIf0f pk–;ldltsf ;+of]hs kb]g ;b:o 
/xg] Joj:yf 5 . o; pk–;ldltsf] sfd st{Jo / clwsf/ g]kfn /fi6« a}+ssf] lgb{]zg adf]lhd tf]lsPsf] 5 . 

 ;+rfns ;ldltn] u}/ sfo{sf/L ;+rfns >LdtL lx/f b]jL lji6Ho"sf] ;+of]hsTjdf ;DklQ z'l4s/0f pk–;ldlt u7g u/]sf] 
5 . h;sf] ;b:odf shf{ ljefu k|d'v ;b:o / ;~rfng -ck/];g_ jf cg'kfngf ljefusf ljefuLo k|d'v ;b:o–;lrj 
x'g]5 . ;+:yfsf] k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t ;ldltsf] kb]g ;b:o x'g]5 . o; ;ldltsf] sfd st{Jo / clwsf/ g]kfn /fi6« 
a}+ssf] lgb{]zg adf]lhd tf]lsPsf] 5 .

 cf=j= @)*!÷)*@ sf nflu ;fwf/0f ;efaf6 ldlt @)*@÷)!÷@( ut] lgo'Qm x'g' ePsf n]vf k/LIfs P.L.R.G.  

Associates, Chartered Accountants n] n]vf k/LIf0f ug{' ePsf] 5 . o; k|ltj]bgsf ;fy ;+nUg n]vf k/LIf0f k|ltj]bg 
/ n]vf ljj/0fx?n] ljQLo ;+:yfsf] oyfy{ l:yltsf] lrq0f u/]sf] 5 . n]vf k/LIfssf] k|ltj]bg pk/ ;+rfns ;ldltsf] 
tkm{af6 s'g} pNn]Vo l6Kk0fL /x]sf] 5}g . 

@!_  cfef/ k|s6 M

   wGojfb Û 

               cWoIf

!&_  hf]lvd Joj:yfkg pk–;ldlt

!*_ ;Dklt z'l4s/0f cg'udg pk–;ldlt

!(_ n]vf k/LIf0f k|ltj]bgdf s'g} s}lkmot pNn]v u/]sf] eP ;f] pk/ ;+rfns ;ldltsf] k|ltlqmof

@)_  ljQLo ;+:yfsf] :yL/ ;DklQ vl/b of]hgf 

 ljQLo ;+:yfn] lrtjg lhNnfsf] e/tk'/ d=g=kf= j8f g+= !@ df ! s¶f ( w'/ hUuf vl/b u/L /fv]sf] 5 . cfufdL lbgdf 
;+:yfn] s]G›Lo sfof{no / cGo zfvf sfof{nox?sf] nfuL ljQLo ;+:yfsf] Ifdtf cg';f/ cfˆg} 3/ hUuf vl/b ug{] of]hgf 
/fv]sf] 5 . 

 n3'ljQsf] dfWodaf6 ;+;f/e/sf ljkGg ju{sf] pTyfgsf nflu kxnstf{ k|fWofks 8f= df]xDdb o'g';k|lt xflb{s cfef/ 
k|s6 ub{5' . o;} u/L o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf ;Dk"0f{ z]o/wgLx? k|lt klg cfef/ k|s6 ub{5' . o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] ;~rfngdf 
dxTjk'0f{ e'ldsf lgjf{x ug{x'g] ;~rfns ;ldltsf ;fyLx?sf] ct'nlgo of]ubfgnfO{ ljz]if wGojfb lbg rfxG5' . o;sf 
;fy} gLlt lgdf{0f ug{ / ;f] sf] sfof{Gjog ug{ ;xof]u ug{'x'g] ;Dk"0f{ sd{rf/L ;fyLx?nfO{ cfef/ k|s6 ub{5' . o;}u/L n]vf 
k/LIfs >L lk=Pn=cf/=lh Pzf]l;P6\;, rf6{8 Psfp06]06\;, cfGtl/s n]vf k/LIfs >L jfO=lj=P;= P08 Pzf]l;o6\; 
rf6{8 Psfp06]06\;, nfO{ klg xflb{s cfef/ k|s6 ub{5' . o;} u/L g]kfn /fi6« a}+s, sDkgL /lhi6«f/sf] sfof{no, lwtf]kq af]8{, 
g]kfn ;/sf/sf ;Dk"0f{ lgsfox? nufot o; ljQLo ;+:yf;Fu k|ToIf / ck|ToIf ;DaGw /x]sf] Pg=Pd=aL=P=, 
l;=Pd=Pkm=g]kfn, l;=P;=8L=, nufot Pg=Pd=aL= Soflk6n ln=, ;"o{Hof]tL nfO{km O{G;'/]G; ln=, s|]i6 dfO{qmf] nfO{km 
OG;'/]G; ln=, ufl8{og dfOqmf] nfOkm OG:of]/]G; ln=, /fli6«o jfl0fHo a}+s ln=, s[lif ljsf; a}+s ln=, g]kfn a}+s ln=, s'df/L 
a}+s ln=, g]kfn P;=aL=cfO{= a}+s ln=, k|e' a}+s ln=, glan a}+s ln=, ;flgdf a}+s ln=, g]kfn OGe]i6d]G6 d]3f a}+s ln=, 
Unf]an cfOPdO{ a}+s ln=, PgPdaL a}+s ln=, Pg=cfO{=l; Pl;of a}+s ln=, Hof]tL ljsf; a}+s ln=, ;f+u|Lnf 8]enkd]06 a}+s 
ln=, zfOg /];'Ëf 8]enkd]06 a}+s ln=, ul/df ljsf; a}+s ln=, sfdgf ;]jf ljsf; a}+s ln=, cfO{=;L=Pkm=;L= kmfOgfG; 
ln=, ;]G6«n kmfOgfG; ln=, hfgsL kmfO{gfG; sDkgL ln=, uf]vf{h kmfOgfG; ln=, dN6Lkk{; kmfOgfG; ln=, ;fgf ls;fg 
ljsf; n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf ln=, km:6{ dfOqmf] kmfOgfG; n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf ln=, Pe|/]i6 a}+s lnld6]8, l;4fy{ a}+s 
lnld6]8, df5fk'R5«] a}+s, k|f]u|]lze kmfOgfG; lnld6]8, nufotsf a}+s tyf ljQLo ;+:yfx?nfO{ Pj+ k|ToIf / ck|ToIf ?kdf 
;xof]u k'¥ofpg] ;a} JolQm / ;+:yfx?k|lt xflb{s wGojfb 1fkg ub{5' . ljz]if ?kdf xfdLnfO{ lg/Gt/ ;]jf ug{ dxTjk"0f{ df}sf 
lbO{ ljQLo ;+:yfsf] pGglt / k|ultsf] cfwf/sf] ?kdf ljQLo ;+:yfsf] bLuf]kgfdf dxTjk'0f{ of]ubfg lbg] cfb/0fLo ;Dk"0f{ 
u|fxs ;b:ox? k|lt xflb{s s[t1tf JoQm ub{5' .

           1fg]G› k|;fb kf08]

           ;~rfns ;ldlt
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 ljZjdf b]lvPsf] e"–/fhg}lts o'4, cfoftd'lv cy{tGq / ;f]n] ;[hgf u/]sf] pRr d'b|fl:kmtL, cfly{s ultljlwdf ;':ttf, 
v'nf ahfl/s0fdf g]kfnL s[ifsn]] pTkflbt a:t'df nfut gkfpg] ;d:of, a}Fs tyf ljQLo ;+:yfx? lj?4sf ;+3if{ nufotsf 
sf/0fn] shf{ dfudf sld cfPsf] 5 ;fy} dWok'j{ / ¿; o'qm]g åGåsf sf/0f ljZj cy{tGqdf ;[hgf ePsf] cGof}nsf] 
jftfj/0fn] x/]s If]qdf c;/ kf/]sf] 5 . b]zsf] cy{tGqsf] d"n ;|f]tsf] ¿kdf /x]sf] j}b]lzs /f]huf/Lsf] nflu d'Vo 
uGtJosf] ¿kdf /x]sf] vf8L d"nsdf dWok'j{df ePsf] åGån] a}b]lzs /f]huf/Lsf cj;/ 36\g ;Sg] b]lvG5 . /fli6«o 
cy{tGqsf d'Vo ;"rsx¿df cfPsf] ;'wf/n] b]zsf] ;du| cfly{s If]qdf ;'wf/sf ;+s]t b]lvPsf] 5 . xfn a}+lsË If]qdf 
nufgLsf] nflu k|ofKt t/ntf sfod /x]sf] 5, h;sf] sf/0f a}+ssf] Jofhb/ klg 36\b} hfg' / shf{ nufgLsf] ;Ldf a[l4n] 
s]lx ;'wf/sf] ;+s]t b]lvPsf]] 5 .

 ;dLIff cjlw cf=j= @)*!÷)*@ sf] cGTo ;Dddf cfO{k'Ubf ;+:yfn] u/]sf] k|ult ljj/0f ;fy} cl3Nnf] cf=j= sf] t'ngfdf 
;dLIff cf=j= df ePsf] x]/km]/nfO{ lgDgfg';f/ k|:t't ul/Psf] 5 . 

 c_  k|ltj]bg tof/ kfbf{ ;Ddsf] ljQLo ;+:yfsf] cfly{s l:ylt M

  rfn' cf=j=@)*@÷)*# sf] c;f]h dlxgf;Ddsf] k|ult ljj/0f ut cf=j=sf] ;f]xL cjlwsf] t'ngfdf lgDg cg';f/ 
k|:t't ul/Psf] 5 . ul/Psf] 5 .

;+rfns ;ldltsf] k|ltj]bgdf v'nfpg' kg]{ sDkgL P]g @)^# sf] bkmf !)(-$_ ;“u 
;DalGwt cGo yk ljj/0fx?

ljj/0f cf=j= @)*!÷)*@ cf=j= @)*)÷)*! km/s k|ltzt 
Zf]o/ k"FhL 783,924,403.00 671,104,993.00        16.81  
hu]8f tyf sf]ifx¿ 452,512,858.66 344,463,325.06        31.37  
art 4,497,330,470.65 3,733,553,067.08       20.46  
v'b shf{ 9,267,670,834.21 8,071,745,626.83       14.82  
ltg{ a+fls shf{ ;fk6 4,192,872,279.95 3,858,862,589.21         8.66  
s'n zfvf ;ª\Vof 91 91           -    
s'n ;b:o ;ª\Vof 135,276.00 125,884.00         7.46  
s'n C0fL ;ª\Vof 54,475.00 48,983.00        11.21  
v"b d'gfkmf 220,620,352.90 111,405,667.70       98.03  
jf;nftsf] cfsf/ 10,149,734,367.92 8,746,883,342.31       16.04  

 

ljj/0f cf=j= @)*@÷)*#  
-c;f]h d;fGt;Dd_ 

cf=j= @)*!÷)*@  
-c;f]h d;fGt;Dd_ 

km/s k|ltzt 

s'n zfvf ;ª\Vof 91 91           -    
s'n ;b:o ;ª\Vof 137,577 127,229         8.13  
s'n C0fL ;ª\Vof 55,208 51,436          7.33  
s'n afFsL shf{ -¿_ 9,658,506,823.95 8,684,084,965.07        11.22  
s'n art -¿_ 4,682,406,949.81 3,857,889,142.24        21.37  
ltg{ a+fls shf{ ;fk6 -¿_ 4,276,829,625.53 4,143,979,727.90          3.21  
s'n Jofh tyf cfDbfgL -¿_ 366,926,154.74 331,528,660.77       10.68  
s'n vr{ -¿_ 294,116,681.32 278,913,978.36         5.45  
;+rfng gfkmf -?=_ 72,809,473.42 52,614,682.41       38.38  
v'b gfkmf -¿_ 50,647,969.50 36,830,277.68        37.52  
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u_  u|fxs ;+/If0f sfo{qmd cGtu{t ;b:ox¿sf] cfo cfh{g a9fpgsf] nflu cGo ;b:o s]lGb|t sfo{qmdx¿nfO{ ljz]if 
k|fyldstf lbg] p2]Zon] cfjZos ah]6sf] ;d]t Joj:yf ug]{ . ;fy}, ;f] sfo{qmdnfO{ k|efjsf/L ¿kdf cuf8L a9fpg] .

`_  ;b:osf] shf{df ;+VofTds eGbf klg u'0f:t/df Wofg lbg'kg]{ x'gfg] shf{sf] k|ToIf ;b'kof]uLtf x'g] If]q 5gf}6 ul/ shf{ 
lj:tf/ ug]{ .

ª_  sd{rf/L Joj:yfkg tyf sd{rf/Lsf] Ifdtf clej[l4 k|lqmofnfO{ yk k|efjsf/L agfpgsf nflu df}h'bf Joj:yfsf] ;dLIff 
tyf kl/dfh{g ug]{ . 

em_  ljQLo ;]jf gk'u]sf] :yfgx¿ kQf nufO{ ;+:yfsf] ljQLo ;]jf lj:tf/ ub}{ hfg] .

r_  cfjZos gLlt tyf lgb]{lzsfx¿ ;do ;fk]If ¿kdf lgdf{0f tyf kl/dfh{g ub{} hfg] .
5_  cfjZostf cg';f/ ljleGg ;+:yfx¿;Fu ;xsfo{ u/L ljkGg tyf ul/a ;d'bfosf] hLjg:t/ ;'wf/ ug{sf] nflu ljz]if kxn 

ug]{ .
h_  cGo s'g} n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf k|flKt ug]{ jf Ps cfk;df ufEg]÷ufleg] sfo{ ug{sf nflu pko'Qm ljQLo ;+:yfsf] klxrfg / 

5gf}6 ug]{ u/L k|lqmof ;d]t cufl8 a9fpg] .

s_  ;b:osf /f]hfO Pj+ rfxgf cg'?ksf gofF ;'ljwf / sfo{qmdx¿ yk ul/g]5 . o;n] ljQLo ;+:yfsf] k|lt:kwf{Tds Ifdtf cem 
j[l4 x'g]5 .

v_  ;b:o÷cleefjsnfO{ C0f lnP/ ;~rfng u/]sf] Joj;fo ;DaGwL tflndsf] Joj:yf ul/g]5 . o:tf tflnd ;s];Dd 
;DalGwt :yfgLo tx;Fu ;dGjo u/L :yfgLo :t/df g} ;~rfng ug]{ .

3_  ljQLo ;+:yfsf] ;]jf k'u]sf] 7fpFdf a9L pTkfbgzLn If]qsf] klxrfg u/L nufgLdf j[l4 ub}{ hfg] . 

6_  xfnsf] ;do kl/j]z cg';f/ n3'ljQ If]qdf klg Digitalization ug'{k5{ eGg] cjwf/0ff /x]sf] x'+bf ;f]sf] ljsf; / k|of]u 
ul/ ;b:ox?nfO{ cem} k|efjsf/L Pj+ r':t b'?:t ;]jf k|bfg ug]{ .

9_  o; ljQLo ;+:yfn] k|bfg ug]{ ;]jf ;'ljwfsf ;fy} ljkGg ju{sf] pTyfgdf k'¥ofPsf] of]ubfgsf ljifodf u|fxs ;b:o tyf 
cleefjs;Fu cGtlqm{of sfo{qmdsf] cfof]hgf u/L xfn n3'ljQ ;+:yfx¿ k|lt ;[hgf ePsf e|dx¿ lrg]{ .

 o; ljQLo ;+:yfn] cfkm";Fu ;Da4 ;a} ;/f]sf/jfnf lgsfox¿;Fu ;f}xfb{k"0f{ ;DaGw sfod /fVb} cfPsf] 5 . ljQLo 
;+:yfn] ljleGg ;+3;+:yf, sDkgL, JolQmx¿ lardf Jofj;flos ;DaGw sfod /fVb} cfPsf] 5 . Jofj;flos ;DaGwnfO{ 
yk k|uf9 ug]{ ljZjf;sf ;fy ljQLo ;+:yfn] cfˆgf ultljlw tyf sf/f]af/x¿ ;~rfng ul//x]sf] 5 / ;+:yfn] ;f] qmdnfO{ 
eljiodf klg lg/Gt/tf lbg] of]hgf /fv]sf] 5 .

 ;ldIff cf=j=df ;+rfns ;ldltdf x]/km]/ gePsf] .

Ø u|fxs ;b:ox?sf] w]/}j6f n3'ljQ ;+:yfjf6 C0f lng] k|j[lQ . 
Ø u|fxs ;b:on] Pssf] shf{ csf{n] rnfO lbg] j9\bf] k|j[lQ .

Ø ljleGg lsl;dsf] n3'ljQ lj?4sf] sfo{qmdsf sf/0fn] lgoldt sfo{ ;+rfng b]lv C0f nufgL, c;'nLdf kf/]sf] k|lts"n 
c;/ .

 o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] sf/f]af/nfO{ d'Vo u/L lgDglnlvt s'/fx¿n] c;/ kfg{] b]lvG5 . o:tf] c;/x¿af6 ar]/ ljQLo 
;+:yfnfO{ k|efjsf/L 9+uaf6 cufl8 a9fpg ;+:yf k|oTgzLn 5 M

Ø n3'ljQ If]qdf ePsf] c:j:y k|lt:kwf{ .
Ø shf{ ;'rgf ;+oGqsf] k|efjsf/L k|of]usf] sl7gfO{ . 

Ø lgodgsf/L lgsfojf6 ;do ;dodf hf/L x'g] lgb]{zgx? . 

Ø bIf / cg'ejL sd{rf/Lsf] knfog . 

 ldlt @)*@÷)!÷@( ut] ;DkGg !^cf}+ jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efdf lgo'Qm P.L.R.G Associates, Chartered 
Accountants n] cf=j= @)*!÷)*@ sf] n]vf k/LIf0f ug'{ ePsf] n]vf k/LIf0f k|ltj]bgn] ljQLo ;+:yfsf] oyfy{ 
cj:yfsf] lrq0f u/]sf] 5 . o; k|ltj]bgdf s'g} gsf/fTds l6KKf0fL /x]sf 5}gg\ / n]vf k/LIf0f k|ltj]bg k|lt ;rfns 
;ldltsf] s'g} l6Kk0fL /x]sf] 5}g .
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 ;ldIff jif{df s'g} lsl;dsf] z]o/x? hkmt ug]{ sfo{ gePsf] .

 o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] ;xfos sDkgL gePsf] .

 o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] ;xfos sDkgL gePsf] .

 ;+:yfn] cf=j=@)*!÷)*@ cGTosf] ljt/0fof]Uo d'gfkmfaf6 ;f]xL cjlwdf sfod r'Qmf k'FhL ?=&*#,(@$,$)#=)) sf] 
15.00 k|ltzt h;df af]g; z]o/ afkt 14.25 k|ltzt -?=!!,!&,)(,@@&=$#_ / gub nfef+z -s/ k|of]hgfy{_ 0.75 
k|ltzt -?=%*,&(,$##=%(_ ul/ s'n ?= 117,588,661.02 nfef+z l;kmfl/; u/]sf] 5 .

 ljut cfly{s jif{df cfwf/e"t z]o/wgLx?af6 ljQLo ;+:yfnfO{ 5'§} ?kdf s'g} hfgsf/L k|fKt ePsf] 5}g .

 s_ ;+rfns ;ldlt kbflwsf/L 

 v_ Joj:yfkg pk–;ldlt kbflwsf/L 

 ljQLo ;+:yfsf ;+rfns Pj+ Joj:yfkg kbflwsf/L sDkgLsf] z]o/ sf/f]jf/df ;+nUgtf /x]sf] hfgsf/L sDkgLnfO{ k|fKt 
gePsf] .

qm=; ljBdfg ;+rfnssf] gfd Kfb ;+:yfks z]o/ 
;+Vof 

;j{ ;fwf/0f 
z]o/ ;+Vof 

s'n z]o/ ;+Vof k|ltzt 

!= >L 1fg]Gb| k|;fb kf08] cWoIf 33,008.00 12,292.00 45,300.00 0.58% 

@= >L pbo /fh vltj8f ;+rfns 95,374.00 - 95,374.00 1.22% 

#= >L lq ljs|d kf08] ;+rfns 33,008.00 302.00 33,310.00 0.42% 

$= >L s[i0f aGhf8] ;+rfns - 277.00 277.00 0.00% 

%= >L ;d/ 9sfn ;+rfns - 1,965.00 1,965.00 0.03% 

^= >L t]hbQ vs'/fn ;+rfns - 2,592.00 2,592.00 0.03% 

&= >Ldlt lx/f b]aL lji6 ;+rfns - - - 0.00% 
 

qm=; sd{rf/Lsf] gfd xfnsf] Kfb z]o/ :jfldTj lsQf k|ltzt 
!= >L dgf]h s[i0f pk|]tL k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t       2,286.00  0.0292Ü 
@= >L /fh]Gb| k|;fb Gof}kfg] ;xfos dxf k|aGws                -    0.0000Ü 
#= >L uf]kfn /fh lji6 k|aGws             1.00  0.0000Ü 
$= >L dw';'bg clwsf/L ;xfos k|aGws           72.00  0.0009Ü 
%= >L dw';'bg kGt jl/i7 clws[t           59.00  0.0008Ü 
^= >L ;/f]h kf}8]n jl/i7 clws[t          431.00  0.0055Ü 
&= >L lg/f]h k|;fb kf}8]n clws[t           39.00  0.0005Ü 
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 ljQLo ;+:yfdf ;'zf;g sfod u/L :jrflnt 9+un] ;+rfng ug{ ljleGg cfGt/Ls lgoGq0f k|0ffnL cjnDag ul/Psf] 5 . 
ljQLo ;+:yf ;+rfns ;ldltn] k|rlnt sfg"g / g]kfn /fi6« j}+sjf6 hf/L lgb]{zgsf] clwgdf /lx n]vf k/LIf0f pk–;ldlt, 
;DkQL z'l4s/0f cg'udg pk–;ldlt, hf]lvd Joj:yfkg pk–;ldlt / sd{rf/L ;]jf ;'ljwf pk–;ldlt ul/ rf/j6f 
;ldltx? u7g ul/Psf] 5 . cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|0ffnLnfO{ r':t b'?:t kfg{ cfGtl/s n]vf k/LIf0f ljefunfO{ ;+rfns 
;ldlt cGt{utsf] n]vf k/LIf0f pk–;ldlt dftxt :jtGq ljefusf] ?kdf /flv afXo lj1 lgo'lQm ul/Psf] 5 . ljleGg 
pk–;ldltx? To;sf nflu lgoldt cg'udg, cfGtl/s n]vf k/LIf0f, k|zf;lgs lgoGq0f, sDKo'6/s[t clen]v k|0ffnL, 
dfl;s ?kdf sd{rf/Lsf] :j–d'NofÍgsf] Joj:yfsf ;fy} x/]s ljifodf dfl;s nIo sfod ul/ jflif{s of]hgf tyf 
sfo{qmdsf] Joj:yf ul/Psf] 5 . To;}u/L ljQLo ;+:yf ;+rfngsf] nflu cfjZos ljleGg ljlgod tyf lgb]{lzsfx? Tfof/ 
ug{], cfjZostfg';f/ kl/dfh{g ug{] / ;f]xL cg'?k sfo{ ;+rfng ug{] ul/Psf] 5 .

 o; pk–;ldltn] cfGtl/s n]vf k/LIf0f ;DaGwL lj:t[t sfo{ k|0ffnL tof/ u/L ;f]sf] cfwf/df cfGtl/s n]vf k/LIf0f 
u/fpg] u/]sf] / k|rlnt sfg'g tyf g]kfn /fi6« a}+saf6 hf/L ul/Psf lgodg Joj:yfx? kfngf u/]÷gu/]sf] ;DaGwdf ;dLIff 
ug]{ ul/Psf] 5 . o; pk–;ldltn] ;+:yfsf] ;du| ljQLo cj:yf, cfGtl/s lgoGq0f, n]vf k/LIf0f of]hgf / cfGtl/s n]vf 
k/LIf0fdf cf}+NofOPsf ljifox?df cfjlws ?kdf ;dLIff u/L ;f] ;DaGwdf ckgfpg' kg]{ ;hutf tyf sbd af/] 
Joj:yfkgnfO{ cfjZos lgb]{zg lbg], cfGtl/s n]vf k/LIf0fdf cf}+NofOPsf ljifox? ;DaGwL ;'emfj k]z ug]{ sfo{ ub{5 . 

 -v_ x|f;s§L P+j kl/zf]wg vr{ ?= 21,570,019.60

 pk–;ldltdf k|ltlglwTj ug'{x'g] ;+rfnsx¿nfO{ k|lt a}7s eQf ¿= ̂ ,%))=)) -s/ ;lxt_ sf b/n] k|bfg ul/Psf] 5 . ;fy} 
pQm j}7sdf ;xefuL x'Fbf vfhf pknAw u/fOPsf] 5 . cf=j= @)*!÷)*@ df pQm ;ldltsf] s'n $ j6f a}7s a;]sf] lyof] . 

 ;b:o ;lrj M >L /fh]Gb| k|;fb Gof}kfg] -cf=n]=k ljefu k|d'v_

 o; cltl/Qm, pk–;ldltn] afXo n]vf k/LIfsn] k]z u/]sf] n]vf k/LIf0f k|ltj]bgdf cf}+NofOPsf s}lkmotx? pk/ ;dLIff 
u/L ;'wf/fTds sbd rfNg Joj:yfkgnfO{ lgb]{zg lbg] nufot g]kfn /fi6« a}+saf6 ;+:yfsf] lg/LIf0f tyf ;'kl/j]If0f u/L 
;+:yfnfO{ k]z u/]sf] k|ltj]bgdf cf}FNofOPsf s}lkmotx?sf] sfof{Gjog eP÷gePsf] ;DaGwdf ;dLIff u/L tL ljifox?sf] 
clen]v /fvL ;+rfns ;ldltnfO{ ;d]t hfgsf/L u/fpg] / ;+:yfsf] sfd sf/afxLdf lgoldttf, ldtJolotf, cf}lrTotf, 
ke| fjsfl/tf h:tf s/' fx? cjnDjg eP÷gePsf ] af/ ] ;dLIff u/L ;r+ fns ;ldltnfO { cfjZos ;e' mfj klg lbg ] u/s] f ] 5 .

 ljut cfly{s jif{df o; ljQLo ;+:yf;Fu ;DalGwt ;Demf}tfx?df o; sDkgLsf s'g} ;+rfns tyf lghsf glhssf] 
gft]bf/sf] JolQmut :jfy{ g/x]sf] .

 -s_ sd{rf/L vr{ ?= 255,755,396.98

 -u_ cGo ;~rfng vr{ ?= 82,809,281.25

 ;dLIff jif{df ljQLo ;+:yfn] cfˆgf] z]o/ cfkm} vl/b u/]sf] 5}g .

 cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|0ffnLnfO{ k|efjsf/L agfpgsf nfuL ljQLo ;+:yfdf ePsf / x'g;Sg] hf]lvdx? Joj:yfkg u/L ljQLo 
;+:yfnfO{ pTs[i6 Pj+ ;jn?kdf ;+rfng u/L nufgLstf{x?sf] lxtsf] ;+/If0fsf] nflu ;+rfns ;ldltn] k|rlnt sfg"g tyf 
g]kfn /fi6« j}+sjf6 hf/L x'g] lgb]{zgsf] clwgdf /lx hf]lvd Joj:yfkgsf nfuL cfjZos gLlt, sfo{ljwLx? agfO{ nfu" 
u/]sf] 5 . 

 ;ldIff jif{df o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] s'n Joj:yfkg vr{ lgDg adf]lhd ?= 360,134,697.83 /x]sf] 5 . 

 o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] n]vf k/LIf0f pk–;ldlt lgDgfg';f/ /x]sf] 5 . 
 ;+of]hs M >L ;d/ 9sfn -u}/ sfo{sf/L ;+rfns_
 ;b:o M >L uf]kfn /fh lji6 -k|zf;g ljefu k|d'v_
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 ljQLo ;+:yfsf ;+rfns, k|aGw ;+rfns, sfo{sf/L k|d'v, sDkgLsf cfwf/e"t z]o/wgL jf lghsf] glhssf gft]bf/ jf 
lgh ;+nUg /x]sf] kmd{, sDkgL jf ;+u7Lt ;+:yfn] sDkgLnfO{ s'g} /sd a'emfpg afFsL /x]sf] 5}g .

 ;~rfns ;ldltdf a}7s eQf jfkt cWoIfnfO{ k|lt a}7s ? &,))).– tyf cGo ;~rfnsnfO{ k|lt a}7s ? ̂ ,%)).– a}7s 
eQf, kqklqsf afkt ?= !,))).– k|ltdlxgf / ;+rf/ vr{ afkt ?= !,))).– k|ltdlxgf  k|bfg ug]{ ul/Psf] 5 . cf=j 
@)*!÷)*@ df ;~rfns ;ldlt tyf pk–;ldltx?sf] a}7s eQf jfkt hDdf ? (&^,))).– / kqklqsf Pjd\ ;+rf/ jfkt 
?= !^*,))).– e'QmfgL ul/Psf] 5 .

 k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t >L dgf]h s[i0f pk|]tL / Joj:yfkg txsf cGo kbflwsf/Lx?sf] s"n ;'lawfx?,

 sDkgL P]g, @)^# sf] bkmf !&% adf]lhd ;Da4 sDkgL lar sf/f]af/ gePsf] .

/x]sf] nfeFfz /sd g/x]sf] .

 ;ldIff cfly{s jif{df ;+:yfn] sfo{ ;~rfng tyf sfo{qmd lj:tf/ ubf{ cfjZos kg]{ ;DklQx? v/Lb u/]sf] -ljj/0f ;+nUg 
jf;nftsf] gf]6 $=!! df pNn]v u/]sf]_ eP klg bkmf !$! sf] k|lts'n x'g] u/L ;DklQ v/Lb ul/Psf] 5}g .

 

Kfb Gffd k|ltlglwTj ;d'x lgo'Qm ldlt hDd e'QmfgL /sd 

cWoIf >L 1fg]Gb| k|;fb kf08] ;+:yfks @)&(=!@=!! 157,000.00  

;~rfns >L lq laqmd kf08] ;+:yfks @)&(=!@=!! 180,000.00  

;~rfns >L pbo /fh vltj8f ;+:yfks @)&(=!@=!! 167,000.00  

;~rfns >L s[i0f aGhf8] ;j{;fwf/0f @)&*=)&=@& 128,000.00  

;~rfns >L ;d/ 9sfn ;j{;fwf/0f @)&*=)&=@& 193,000.00  

;~rfns >L t]h bQ vs'/fn ;j{;fwf/0f @)&*=)&=@& 140,000.00  

;~rfns >LdtL lx/f b]jL lji6 :jtGq @)&(=)&=@@ 179,000.00  

qm=; ljj/0f k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t cGo kbflwsf/L ÷ Joj:yfkg 
!= Tfna tyf eQf 2,002,000.00 4,992,865.47 
@= ;fdflhs ;'/Iff sf]if afkt 168,000.00 521,063.37 
#= af]g; 231,016.34 489,867.66 
$= labf – 15,150.00 
 hDdf 2,401,016.34 6,018,946.50 
%= ;+Vof ! ^ 

 

S|m=;= cf=j /sd ? 
! @)^(÷)&) ^@,)%%=() 
@ @)&)÷)&! #$,&!$=!% 

hDdf (^,&&)=)% 
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  Ø ;~rfng vr{df ePsf] lg/Gt/sf] j[l4,

u/]sf] 5 . k"FhL ahf/df nufgLstf{sf] pT;fx k"j{s ;xeflutf ePsf] / o; ;+:yf k|lt z]o/ ahf/df ;sf/fTds 
k|efj /x]sf] 5 .

 s=  cfGtl/s ;d:of / r'gf}tL M 

  Ø ;dodf C0f c;'nLdf ;d:of,

  Ø u|fxs ;b:on] ;b:otf Tofu ug'{,

  Ø sfo{If]qdf a9\bf] r'gf}tLsf] ;fdgf ug{ ;Sg] hgzlStsf] cefj,

  Ø sfo{z}nLdf pNn]Vo ;'wf/ x'g g;Sg',

  Ø nfdf] ;dob]lv ljQLo ;+:yfn] k|jfx ug]{ ;]jfdf vf;} kl/j{tg x'g g;Sg' cflb .

lwtf]kq btf{ lgisfzg lgodfjnL @)&# sf] lgod @^ sf] pk–lgod -@_ ;“u ;DalGwt ljj/0f

ljj/0f cflZjg d;fGt kf}if d;fGt r}q d;fGt cfiff9 d;fGt 

clwstd d"No ?= 1250.00 1,034.00 1,159.40 1,035.00 

Go"gtd d"No ?= 843.00 875.40 881.00 780.00 

clGtd d"No ?= 994 909.00 960.10 1,021.03 

s'n sf/f]af/ z]o/ lsQf 2,273,370.00 600,856.00 1,118,865.00 832,001.00 

s'n sf/f]af/ ;+Vof 17,583.00 4,749.00 11,168.00 9,720.00 

s'n sf/f]af/ lbg 57.00 55.00 56.00 63.00 
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  Ø kl/:s[t ;]jf / gofF ;'ljwf yk u/L nufgL la:tf/ ug]{,

 

  Ø cy{tGqdf ultzLntf cfpg g;Sg',

  Ø n3'ljQsf] lj¿4df ;~rflnt sfo{qmdx¿,

  Ø ;do ;dodf cfOkg]{ b}ljs k|sf]k tyf dxfdf/L,

  Ø lgodgsf/L lgsfoaf6 ;do ;dodf ;+;f]wg x'g] gLltut lgb]{zgx¿,

  Ø b'u{d e]udf ljQLo ;]jf k|jfxsf nflu cfjZos k"jf{wf/sf] sdL,

  Ø Joj;fosf] nflu Jofj;flos jftfj/0fsf] cefj,

  Ø bIf hgzlSt ljb]z knfog x'g' cflb .

  Ø df}lb|s ahf/df ;do ;dodf x'g] c:jefljs kl/jt{g,

 

  Ø u|fxs ;+/If0f sfo{qmdnfO{ pRr k|fyldstf lbg] .

  Ø clwstd ¿kdf k|ljlwsf] pkof]u u/L cgfjZos vr{ s6f}tL ug]{

  Ø hf]lvd Joj:yfkgsf] nflu cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|0ffnLnfO{ r':t b'¿:t agfpg],

  Ø ;+:yfut ;'zf;gsf] ;'b[9Ls/0fdf k|fyldstf lbg] .

  Ø k|ljlwsf] clwstd pkof]u u/L ;]jfsf] u'0f:t/ j[l4 ug]{,

  Ø hgzlQmsf] sfo{Ifdtf j[l4sf nflu sfo{qmdsf] Joj:yf ug]{ / bIf hgzlQm knfog /f]Sg],

  Ø shf{ nufgL ubf{ u'0f:t/ sfod ug]{,

  Ø k|fs[lts hf]lvd Go"gLs/0fsf nflu aLdfsf] Joj:yf ug]{,

 o; ljQLo ;+:yfn] ljBdfg P]g sfg'g tyf lglt lgod / lgodgsf/L lgsfoaf6 k|fKt lgb]{zg cg';f/ cfˆgf] Joj;fo 
;+rfng ub}{ cfPsf] 5 . ;+rfns ;ldlt, n]vf k/LIf0f pk–;ldlt tyf Joj:yfkg pk–;ldltn] ;+:yfut ;'zf;gnfO{ pRr 
k|fyldstfdf /fVb} cfjZos gLlt lgodsf] sfof{Gjogdf hf]8 lbFb} cfPsf] 5 . ;fy} cfGtl/s n]vf k/LIf0f ljefu, jfx\o 
n]vf k/LIf0f ;+:yf tyf g]kfn /fi6« a}+saf6 ;do ;dodf x'g] lgl/If0faf6 k|fKt ;'emfjsf] kfngf ub}{ ;+:yfut ;'zf;gnfO{ 
;'b[9 agfpg ;+rfns ;ldlt tyf Joj:yfkg pk–;ldlt sl6j4 /x]sf] 5 .

 gePsf] .
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 -v_  ;+:yfsf] z]o/ ;+/rgf ;DaGwL ljj/0f -;+:yfks, ;j{;fwf/0f tyf cGo_ M

 -u_  ;+rfns ;ldlt ;DaGwL ljj/0f M 

 -s_ ;+rfns ;ldltsf] cWoIfsf] gfd tyf lgo'lQm ldlt M 

!=  ;+rfns ;ldlt ;DaGwL ljj/0f  

  >L 1fg]Gb| k|;fb kf08], @)&(÷!@÷!!

;+:yfut ;'zf;g ;DaGwL jflif{s cg'kfngf k|ltj]bg

;"rLs[t ;Ël7t ;+:yfsf] gfd :j/f]huf/ n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf lnld6]8  

7]ufgf, Od]n / j]e;fO{6 ;lxt  ag]kf–%, sfe|]knf~rf]s  
O{d]n M INFO@SLBBL.COM.NP   
j]e;fO{6 M WWW.SLBBL.COM.NP  

kmf]g Gf+=  )!!–^^!)^), ^^%#$* 

k|ltj]bg k]z ul/Psf] cf=j  @)*!÷)*@ 
 

l;=g+= z]o/wgL z]o/ ;ª\Vof lsQfdf k|ltzt  r'Qmf k"FhL /sd 

!= ;+:yfks ;d"x -s_ 4,133,006.81 52.72Ü 413,300,681.00 

@= ;j{;fwf/0f ;d"x -v_ 3,706,237.22 47.28Ü 370,623,722.00 

hDdf 7,839,244.03 100.00Ü 783,924,403.00 
 

qm= 
;+ 

;+rfnssf] gfd 7]ufgf 
k|ltlglwTj 
ePsf] ;d"x 

z]o/ 
;+Vof 

lgo"lQm ePsf] 
ldlt 

kb tyf 
uf]klgotfsf] zky 

lnPsf] ldlt 

;+rfns 
lgo"lQmsf] 

tl/sf -ljlw_ 

! >L 1fg]Gb| 
k|;fb kf08] 

uh'/L–*, wflbª ;+:yfks 45,300 @)&(÷!@÷!! @)&(÷!@÷!$ lgjf{lrt 

@ >L pbo /fh 
vltj8f 

jL/u+h–!!, k;f{ ;+:yfks 95,374 @)&(÷!@÷!! @)&(÷!@÷!& lgjf{lrt 

# >L lq ljj|md 
kf08] 

k[YjLgf/fo0f–
)(, uf]vf{ 

;+:yfks 33,310 @)&(÷!@÷!! @)&(÷!@÷!& lgjf{lrt 

$= >L s[i0f 
aGhf8] 

a'4e"dL–@, 
slknj:t' 

;j{;fwf/0f 277 @)&*÷)&÷@& @)&*÷)&÷@& lgjf{lrt 

% 
>L ;d/ 9sfn 

zlgZr/]–(, 
emfkf 

;j{;fwf/0f 1,965 @)&*÷)&÷@& @)&*÷)&÷@& lgjf{lrt 

^ >L t]hbQ 
vs'/fn 

Hjfnfd'vL–&, 
wflbË 

;j{;fwf/0f 2,592 @)&*÷)&÷@& @)&*÷)&÷@& lgjf{lrt 

& >LdtL lx/f 
b]aL lai6 

gfufh'{g–!, 
sf7df8f}+ 

:jtGq - @)&(÷)&÷@@ @)&(÷)&÷@! dgf]lgt 
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;+rfns ;ldltsf] a}7sdf ;+rfns jf j}slNks ;+rfns pkl:yt eP – gePsf]  
-gePsf] cj:yfdf a}7ssf] ldlt ;lxt sf/0f v'nfpg]_M 
cg'kl:yt ;+rfnssf] gfd sf/0f 
>L pbo /fh vltj8f JolQmut sfo{sf] nfuL pkTosf aflx/ /xg'ePsf] . 
>L s[i0f aGhf8] 3/fo;L sfo{sf] Jo:ttf . 
>LdtL lx/f b]aL lai6 3/fo;L sfo{sf] Jo:ttf . 
>L t]hbQ vs'/fn 3/fo;L sfo{sf] Jo:ttf . 
>L t]hbQ vs'/fn 3/fo;L sfo{sf] Jo:ttf . 
>L ;d/ 9sfn 3/fo;L sfo{sf] Jo:ttf . 
>L s[i0f aGhf8] 3/fo;L sfo{sf] Jo:ttf . 
>L pbo /fh vltj8f JolQmut sfo{sf] nfuL pkTosf aflx/ /xg'ePsf] . 
>L t]hbQ vs'/fn 3/fo;L sfo{sf] Jo:ttf . 
>L s[i0f aGhf8] 3/fo;L sfo{sf] Jo:ttf . 

 

 
 

a}7s ldlt 
2081/04/21 
2081/06/21 
2081/06/21 
2081/07/21 
2081/09/17 
2081/09/27 
2081/11/21 
2081/12/21 
2082/01/28 
2082/03/29 

 

 

 ;+rfns ;ldltsf] a}7s ;~rfng ;DaGwL ljj/0f M  

 – ;+rfns ;ldltsf] a}7s ;DaGwL cGo ljj/0f M 

 – s'g} ;+rfns ;ldltsf] a}7s cfjZos u0fk'/s ;+Vof gk'uL :ylut ePsf] eP ;f]sf]  ljj/0f M 

qm= 
;+= 

o; cf=j= @)*!÷)*@ df 
a;]sf] ;+rfns  ;ldltsf] 

a}7ssf]  ldlt 

pkl:yt 
;+rfnssf]  

;+Vof 

j}7ssf] lg0f{odf leGg  
dt /fvL x:tfIf/ ug]{  

;+rfnssf] ;+Vof 

ut cf=j @)*)÷)*! df a;]sf] 
;+rfns ;ldltsf] a}7ssf] ldlt 

! 2081/04/21 6 ) 2080/04/21 
@ 2081/05/17 7 ) 2080/05/21 
# 2081/05/27 7 ) 2080/06/23 
$ 2081/06/21 5 ) 2080/07/21 
% 2081/07/21 6 ) 2080/08/21 
^ 2081/08/21 7 ) 2080/09/22 
& 2081/09/05 7 ) 2080/09/28 
* 2081/09/17 6 ) 2080/10/15 
( 2081/09/27 6 ) 2080/11/02 
!) 2081/10/21 7 ) 2080/11/25 
!! 2081/11/21 6 ) 2080/12/21 
!@ 2081/12/02 7 ) 2081/01/04 
!# 2081/12/21 6 ) 2081/01/21 
!$ 2082/01/02 7 ) 2081/02/21 
!% 2082/01/28 6 ) 2081/02/32 
!^ 2082/02/21 7 ) 2081/03/21 
!& 2082/02/29 7 ) 2081/03/31 
!* 2082/03/20 7 ) – 
!( 2082/03/31 6 ) – 
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;+rfns ;ldltsf] a}7sdf pkl:yt ;+rfnsx¿, 5nkmn ePsf] ljifo /  tT;DaGwdf 
ePsf] lg0f{osf] ljj/0f -dfO{Go"6_ sf] 5'§} clen]v /fv] g/fv]sf]M 

/fv]sf] 

;+rfns ;ldltsf] b'O{ nuftf/ a;]sf] j}7ssf] clwstd cGt/ -lbgdf_ M #) lbg 

;+rfns ;ldltsf] a}7s eQf lgwf{/0f ;DaGwdf a;]sf] jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efsf] ldlt @)&*÷)&÷@& 

;+rfns ;ldltsf] k|lt j}7s eQf ?=                                    cWoIf M 
cGo ;+rfns M 

?=&,))).– 
?= ^,%)).– 

cf=j= @)*!÷)*@ sf] ;+rfns ;ldltsf]                 M s'n j}7s eQf vr{ ?= 
                                                      M kqklqsf Pj+ ;+rf/ vr{ ?=      

?.976,000.– 
?.168,000.– 

 

@=     ;+rfnssf] cfr/0f ;DaGwL tyf cGo ljj/0f 

;+rfnssf] cfr/0f ;DaGwdf ;DalGwt ;+:yfsf] cfrf/ ;+lxtf eP÷gePsf]  M  gePsf]  

Psf3/ kl/jf/sf] Ps eGbf a9L ;+rfns eP ;f] ;DaGwL ljj/0f M gePsf]  

;+rfnsx?sf] jflif{s ?kdf l;sfO{ tyf k"g{tfhuL sfo{qmd ;DaGwL ljjj/0f M  
qm= 
;= 

laifo ldlt 
;xefuL ;+rfnssf] 

gfd 
;xefuL 

;+rfnssf] ;+Vof 
tflnd ;+rfng 
ePsf] :yfg 

!= 

æ;:yfut ;'zf;g, 
hf]lvd Joj:yfkg tyf 
cfGtl/s lgoGq0f 
k|0ffnL Æ 

@)*!÷!)÷!* >L 1fg]Gb| k|;fb kf08] ! 

ldlynf ofqL 
lgjf;, 
hgsk'/wfd, 
wg'iff, g]kfn 

 

ePsf] 

k|To]s ;+rfnsn] cfkm" ;+rfnssf] kbdf lgo'Qm jf dgf]gog ePsf] kG„ lbgleq b]xfosf s'/fsf] lnlvt 
hfgsf/L u/fPsf]÷gu/fPsf] / gu/fPsf] eP ;f]sf] ljj/0f M   
§ ;+:yf;Fu lgh jf lghsf] Psf3/sf] kl/jf/sf] s'g} ;b:on] s'g} lsl;dsf] s/f/ u/]sf] jf ug{ nfu]sf] 

eP ;f] sf] ljj/0f,  
§ lgh jf lghsf] Psf3/sf] kl/jf/sf] s'g} ;b:on] ;+:yf jf ;f] ;+:yfsf] d'Vo jf ;xfos sDkgLdf 

lnPsf] z]o/ jf l8a]Gr/sf] ljj/0f,   
§ lgh cGo s'g} ;Ël7t ;+:yfsf] cfwf/e"t z]o/wgL jf ;+rfns /x]sf] eP To;sf] ljj/0f, 
§ lghsf] Psf3/sf] kl/jf/sf] s'g} ;b:o ;+:yfdf kbflwsf/L jf sd{rf/Lsf] x}l;otdf sfd ul//xsf] 

eP ;f]sf] ljj/0f . 

 
 
 
 
 

u/fPsf] 
 

 

§ ;+rfnsn] p:t} k|s[ltsf] p2]Zo ePsf] ;"lrs[t ;+:yfsf] ;+rfns, tnjL kbflwsf/L, sfo{sf/L 
k|d'v jf sd{rf/L eO{ sfo{ u/]sf] eP ;f]sf] ljj/0f M  

gePsf] 

§ ;+rfnsx?nfO{ lgodg lgsfo tyf cGo lgsfox?af6 s'g} sf/jfxL ul/Psf] eP ;f]sf] ljj/0f M gePsf] 
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 -3_  cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|0ffnLsf] nflu s'g} ;ldlt u7g eP÷gePsf] u7g gePsf] eP ;f]sf] sf/0f M ePsf] .

#=  ;+:yfsf] hf]lvd Joj:yfkg tyf cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|0ffnL ;DaGwL ljj/0f

 -cf_ ;ldltsf] a}7s ;+Vof  M cf=j= @)*!÷)*@ – % j6f
 -O_  ;ldltsf] sfo{ ;DaGwL 5f]6f] ljj/0f M 
  ;ldltn] ljBdfg hf]lvd klxrfg tyf Joj:yfkgsf] kof{Kttf / pko'Qmtf ;DaGwdf ;+rfns ;ldltnfO{ hfgsf/L 

u/fpg] / pko'Qm k|0ffnLsf] ljsf;sf nfuL ;'emfj lbg], Joj;foLs ultljlwdf lglxt hf]lvdsf] :t/, hf]lvd jxg 
Ifdtf, hf]lvd Joj:yfkgsf nflu ljsf; u/]sf] /0flgltsf] af/]df ;+rfns ;ldltdf ;'emfj k]z ug]{, ;+:yfsf] 
;DklQ ;+/rgf, tL ;DklQx? kl/rfngsf] cj:yf, To;af6 k|fKt ug{ ;lsg] cfo, ;DklQx?sf] u'0f:t/df x'g] 
j[l4÷x|f; / ;DklQ bfloTj ;ldlt -ALCO_ af6 ePsf sfo{x?sf] ;DaGwdf q}dfl;s ?kdf ljZn]if0f÷;dLIff u/L 
;+rfns ;ldltdf k|ltj]bg k]z ug]{, g]kfn /fi6« a}+saf6 hf/L ul/Psf lgb]{zg÷dfu{ lgb]{zg, ;+:yfn] lgwf{/0f u/]sf 
cfGtl/s ;Ldf, ahf/df b]lvPsf] t/ntf / pRr Jofhb/ j[4Laf6 pTkGg x'g ;Sg] hf]lvdsf] klxrfg ul/ cfjZos 
/0fgLlt agfpg, pko'Qm k|rng cg'?k cfjZos gLlt Pjd\ ;+/rgf ljsf; ug{sf nflu ;+rfns ;ldltnfO { ;e' mfj 
lbg ] tyf gk] fn /fi6 « as+} af6 o; ;ldltn ] ug {] egL tfl] sPsf ] sfdx¿ o; ;ldltsf ] sfo { leq kb5{  .

 -u_  cfGtl/s lgoGq0f sfo{ljlw eP÷gePsf] M  ePsf] . 

 -ª_  cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|0ffnL ;ldlt ;DaGwL ljj/0f M 
  -c_ ;ldltsf] ;+/rgf -;+of]hs tyf ;b:ox?sf] gfd tyf kb_
  Ø ;+rfns ;ldlt M >L 1fg]Gb| k|;fb kf08] -cWoIf_, >L pbo /fh vltj8f -;b:o_, >L lq laqmd kf08] 
   -;b:o_, >L s[i0f aGhf8] -;b:o_, >L ;d/ 9sfn -;b:o_, >L t]h bQ vs'/fn -;b:o_, >LdtL lx/f 

b]jL lji6 -;b:o_,
  Ø hf]lvd Joj:yfkg ;ldlt M >L lq laqmd kf08] -;+of]hs_, >L ;d/ 9sfn -;b:o_, >L /fh]Gb| k|;fb 

Gof}kfg] -;b:o_, >L dw' ;'bg kGt -;b:o ;lrj_

   >L lg/f]h k|;fb kf}8]n -;b:o_, >L >L/fd /f]Ssf -;b:o ;lrj_
  Ø sd{rf/L ;]jf ;'ljwf ;ldlt M >L pbo /fh vltj8f -;+of]hs_, >L dgf]h s[i0f pk|]tL -;b:o_, 

  Ø ;DklQ z'l4s/0f cg'udg ;ldlt M >LdtL lx/f b]jL lji6 -;+of]hs_, >L dgf]h s[i0f pk|]tL-;b:o_, 

  Ø n]vf k/LIf0f ;ldlt M >L ;d/ 9sfn -;+of]hs_, >L uf]kfn /fh lji6 -;b:o_, >L /fh]Gb| k|;fb Gof}kfg]    
-;b:o ;lrj_

   >L dw';'bg clwsf/L -;b:o_, >L /fh]Gb| k|;fb Gof}kfg] -;b:o ;lrj_
  -cf_ ;ldltsf] a}7s ;+Vof M

qm=; Gffd Kfb s}lkmot 

! >L lq ljj|md kf08] u}/ sfo{sf/L ;+rfns ;+of]hs 
@ >L ;d/ 9sfn n]vf k/LIf0f ;ldltsf] ;+of]hs  kb]g ;b:o 
# >L /fh]Gb| k|;fb Gof}kfg] sfo{ ;+rfng ljefu k|d'v ;b:o 
$ >L dw' ;'bg kGt hf]lvd Joj:yfkg ljefu k|d'v  ;b:o ;lrj 

 

;ldlt a}+7s ;+Vof 
;+rfns ;ldlt !( 
hf]lvd Joj:yfkg ;ldlt % 
n]vf k/LIf0f ;ldlt $ 
sd{rf/L ;]jf ;'ljwf ;ldlt # 
;DklQ z'l4s/0f cg'udg ;ldlt $ 
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     O_ ;ldltsf] sfo{ ;DaGwL 5f]6f] ljj/0f M
 ljQLo ;+:yfsf] cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|0ffnL / o;sf] k|efjsf/Ltfsf] ;ldIff ug]{ lhDd]jf/L ;+rfns ;ldltdf 
/xG5 . n]vf k/LIf0f ;ldltn] cfGtl/s n]vf k/LIfs, jfXo n]vf k/LIfssf] n]vf k/LIf0f k|ltj]bgx?sf] 
;dLIff u/L ;+rfns ;ldltnfO{ ljQLo ;+:yfsf] cfGtl/s lgoGq0f k|0ffnLsf] af/]df :jtGq /fo k|bfg ub{5 . 
ljQLo p2]Zo k|fKtLsf nfuL hf]lvd axg ug'{k5{ t/ o;sf gsf/fTds k|efjx?nfO{ ;s];Dd sd ug{ ljQLo 
;+:yf ;b}j sl6j4 5 . hf]lvdsf] klxrfg, ljZn]if0f, d"Nof+sg tyf Joj:yfkgsf nflu ljleGg sfo{ ljlwx? 
ckgfOPsf] 5 . sd{rf/Lsf] ;]jf ;'ljwfnfO{ ;do ;fk]If agfpgsf] nflu ljlQo ;+:yfn] ljleGg dfkb08 tof/ 
kf/L nfu" u/]sf] 5 .

-r_ cfly{s k|zf;g ljlgodfjnL eP÷gePsf] M ePsf] . 
 $=  ;'rgf tyf hfgsf/L k|jfx ;DaGwL ljj/0f  

ljifo dfWod ;fj{hlgs u/]sf] ldlt 

jflif{s ;fwf/0f 
;efsf] ;"rgf 

g]kfn ;dfrf/ kq /fli6«o b}lgs 
g]kfn ;dfrf/ kq /fli6«o b}lgs 
;+:yfsf] j]e;fO6 

@)*@÷)!÷)# 
@)*@÷)!÷)$ 
@)*@÷)!÷)# 

ljz]if ;fwf/0f 
;efsf] ;"rgf 

ljz]if ;fwf/0f ;ef gePsf] 

jflif{s k|ltj]bg g]kfn ;dfrf/ kq /fli6«o b}lgs 
;+:yfsf] j]e;fO6 

@)*@÷)!÷)# 
-cf=j= @)*)÷)*!_ 

q}dfl;s k|ltj]bg  cfly{s cleofg /fli6«o b}lgs, ;+:yfsf] j]e;fO6 
g]kfn ;dfrf/ kq /fli6«o b}lgs, ;+:yfsf] j]e;fO6 
g]kfn ;dfrf/ kq /fli6«o b}lgs, ;+:yfsf] j]e;fO6 
g]kfn ;dfrf/ kq /fli6«o b}lgs, ;+:yfsf] j]e;fO6 

klxnf] q}df; M @)*!÷)&÷@( 
bf];|f] q}df; M @)*!÷!)÷@* 
t]:f|f] q}df; M @)*@÷)!÷@# 
rf}yf] q}df; M @)*@÷)$÷@& 

lwtf]kqsf] d"Nodf 
k|efj kfg]{  d"No 
;+j]bgzLn ;"rgf 

!= q}dfl;s ljlQo ljj/0f 
cfly{s cleofg /fli6«o b}lgs, ;+:yfsf] j]e;fO6 
g]kfn ;dfrf/ kq /fli6«o b}lgs, ;+:yfsf] j]e;fO6 
g]kfn ;dfrf/ kq /fli6«o b}lgs, ;+:yfsf] j]e;fO6 
g]kfn ;dfrf/ kq /fli6«o b}lgs, ;+:yfsf] j]e;fO6 

 
klxnf] q}df; M @)*!÷)&÷@( 
bf];|f] q}df; M @)*!÷!)÷@* 
t]:f|f] q}df; M @)*@÷)!÷@# 
rf}yf] q}df; M @)*@÷)$÷@& 

@= nfef+z 3f]if0ff ;DaGwL ljj/0f 
cf=j= @)*!÷)*@ ;Ddsf] ljt/0fof]Uo d"gfkmf af6 
ldlt @)*@÷)(÷)$ ut] -lbpF;f] #M#) ah]_ a;]sf] 
;+rfns ;ldltsf] @(&cf}+ a}7ssf] nfef+z 3f]if0ff 
;DalGw lg0f{o M  
· g]kfn :6s PS;r]Gh / g]kfn lwtf]kq af]8{  

@)*@÷)(÷)^ 

#= a's Snf]h hfgsf/L 
ldlt @)*@÷)!÷@( ut] ;DkGg ;f]x|f}+ jflif{s ;fwf/0f 
;ef k|of]hgfy{ M 
g]kfn :6s PS;r]Gh / g]kfn lwtf]kq af]8{ 
-gf]6M cf=j= @)*!÷)*@sf] jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;ef 
;+rfng x'g afFsL_ 
· g]kfn :6s PS;r]Gh / g]kfn lwtf]kq af]8{ 

@)*@÷)!÷)# 

cGo   
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 -v_  ;'rgf ;fj{hlgs gu/]sf] jf cGo sf/0fn] lwtf]kq af]8{ tyf cGo lgsfoaf6 sf/jflxdf k/]sf] eP ;f] 
;DaGwL hfgsf/L M 

  xfn ;Dd sf/jflxdf gk/]sf] .  

  @)*@÷)!÷@( -!^cf} aflif{s ;fwf/0f ;ef – cf=j=@)*)÷)*!_
 -u_  kl5Nnf] aflif{s tyf ljz]if ;fwf/0f ;ef ;DkGg ePsf] ldlt M 

 -v_  ;+fu7fgLs ;+/rgf ;+nUg ug]{ M 

%=  ;+:yfut ;+/rgf / sd{rf/L ;DaGwL ljj/0f  

  Ø Joj:yfksLo >]0fL M 
   ) jl/i7 sfo{sf/L0fL tx M

    – gfoj sfo{sf/L k|d'v
    – ;xfos dxfk|aGws

    – sfo{sf/L k|d'v

   ) sfo{sf/L0fL tx M
    – k|aGws
    – ;xfos k|aGws

 -s_ sd{rf/Lx?sf] ;+/rgf, kbk"lt{, j[lt ljsfz, tflnd, tnj, eQf tyf cGo ;'ljwf, xflh/ / ljbf, cfrf/ 
;+lxtf nufotsf s'/fx? ;d]l6Psf] sd{rf/L ;]jf zt{ ljlgodfjnL÷Joj:yf eP gePsf] M ePsf]

   ) ;xfos clws[t ÷ Joj:yfkg k|lzIffyL{

   ) ;xfos

    – rfns

   ) t[tLo >]0fL

    – ;xfos rfns

  Ø ;xfos >]0fL M

   ) jl/i7 clws[t

  Ø cu'jf ;b:o >]0fL M

   ) clws[t

   ) jl/i7 ;xfos
   ) ;'k/efOh/

   ) slgi7 ;xfos ÷ ;xfos k|lzIffyL{

   ) rt'y{ >]0fL

   ) l4tLo >]0fL

   ) tflnd] cu'jf ;b:o ->]0fL ljlxg_
  Ø ;xof]uL >]0fL M
   ) rfns

   ) k|yd >]0fL

   ) kfFrf} >]0fL

  Ø clws[t >]0fL M

    – jl/i7 rfns
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   – ;xfos ;+rf/ jfxs ÷ ;+rf/ jfxs k|lzIffyL{

   – jl/i7 ;+rf/ jfxs

 -3_  sd{rf/L ;DaGwL cGo ljj/0f 

  ) ;+rf/ jfxs

   – ;+rf/ jfxs

 -u_ pRr Joj:yfkg txsf sd{rf/Lx?sf] gfd, z}lIfs of]Uotf tyf cg'ej ;DaGwL ljj/0f M  

  ) ;'/Iff kfn]

;+/rgf cg';f/ sd{rf/L kbk"tL{ ug]{ u/]÷gu/]sf] M  gu/]sf] 

gofF sd{rf/Lx?sf] kbk"lt{ ubf{ ckgfPsf] k|s[of M 5f]6f] ;"rL, lnlvt kl/Iff, df}lvs kl/Iff / 6\ofn]G6xG6 

Joj:yfkg :t/sf sd{rf/Lsf] ;+VofM & 

s'n sd{rf/Lsf] ;+VofM %!! 

sd{rf/Lx?sf] ;S;];g Knfg eP÷gePsf] M ePsf] 

cf=j=df sd{rf/Lx?nfO{ lbOPsf] tflnd ;+Vof tyf 
;Ddlnt sd{rf/Lsf] ;+VofM -cfGtl/s tyf afXo_ 

tflnd ;+Vof M %) 
;lDdlnt sd{rf/L ;+Vof M ^)$ 

cf=j= sf] sd{rf/L tflnd vr{ ? M 5,046,128.00 

s'n vr{df sd{rf/L vr{sf] k|ltzt M @#=*@Ü 

s'n sd{rf/L vr{df sd{rf/L tfnLd vr{sf] k|ltzt M !=(&Ü 

 

Joj:yfkg pk–;ldlt 

qm=;+= gfd Kfb lhDd]jf/L z}lIfs of]Uotf cg'ej 

!= dgf]h s[i0f pk|]tL k|d'v sfo{sf/L clws[t ;+of]hs :gftsf]Q/ -cy{zf:q_ !( aif{ 

@= /fh]Gb| k|;fb Gof}kfg] ;xfos dxfk|aGws ;b:o :gftsf]Q/ -Pd=lj=P_ @& aif{ 

#= dw';'bg clwsf/L ;xfos k|aGws ;b:o :gftsf]Q/ -Pd=lj=P;_ !% aif{ 

$= dw';'bg kGt jl/i7 clws[t ;b:o :gfts -dfgljls_ !% aif{ 

%= ;/f]h kf}8]n jl/i7 clws[t ;b:o :gfts -dfgljls_ !% aif{ 

^= lg/f]h k|;fb kf}8]n clws[t ;b:o :gfts -la=la=P;_ * aif{ 

&= uf]kfn /fh lji6 k|aGws ;b:o ;lrj :gftsf]Q/ -Pd=lk=P_ !% aif{ 
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^=  ;+:yfsf] n]vf tyf n]vfk/LIf0f ;DaGwL ljj/0f  

;+:yfsf] kl5Nnf] cf=j=sf] ljlQo ljj/0f NFRS cg';f/ tof/ u/]÷ gu/]sf], 
gu/]sf] eP ;f]sf] sf/0f M 

u/]sf] 

;+rfns ;ldltaf6 kl5Nnf] ljQLo ljj/0f :jLs[t ePsf] ldlt M @)*@÷)(÷)$ 

q}dfl;s ljQLo ljj/0f k|sfzg u/]sf] ldlt M @)*@÷)&÷@$ 

clGtd n]vfk/LIf0f ;DkGg ePsf] ldlt M @)*@÷)(÷)% 

;fwf/0f ;efaf6 ljQLo ljj/0f :jLs[t ePsf] ldlt M kl5Nnf] cf=j @)*)÷)*! @)*@÷)!÷@( 

;+:yfsf] cfGtl/s n]vf k/LIf0f ;DaGwL ljj/0f M  
-c_ cfGtl/s ?kdf n]vf k/LIf0f ug]{ ul/Psf] jf jfXo lj1 lgo'Qm ug]{ ul/Psf]  
-cf_ jfXo lj1 lgo'Qm ul/Psf] eP ;f]sf] ljj/0f  
-O_ cfGtl/s n]vfk/LIf0f slt cjlwsf] ug]{ ul/Psf] -q}dfl;s, rf}dfl;s jf  

cw{aflif{s_ 

 
jfXo lj1 lgo'Qm ul/Psf] . 

jfO{=lj=P; P08 P;f]l;o6\; . 
cw{aflif{s . 

 

;+of]hs tyf ;b:ox?sf] gfd, kb M 
!= >L ;d/ 9sfn, ;+rfns – ;+of]hs 
@= >L uf]kfn /fh lji6, k|aGws – ;b:o 
#= >L /fh]Gb| k|;fb Gof}kfg], ;xfos dxfk|aGws ÷cf=n]=k ljefu k|d'v  
   – ;b:o ;lrj 

 of]Uotf 
– :gftsf]Q/ 
– :gftsf]Q/ 
– :gftsf]Q/ 

j}7s a;]sf] ldlt tyf pkl:yt ;b:o ;+Vof M  a}7s ldlt pkl:yt ;+Vof 
2081/05/17 3 
2081/08/14 2 

2081/10/09 2 
2082/01/08 3 

 

k|lt j}7s eQf ?= M  ^,%))÷– 

n]vfk/LIf0f ;ldltn] cfkm\gf] sfd sf/jfxLsf] k|ltj]bg ;+rfns ;ldltdf 
k]z u/]sf] ldlt M a}7s ldlt 

k|ltj]bg ;+rfns 
;ldltdf k]z u/]sf] 

ldlt 
2081/05/17 2081/06/21 
2081/08/14 2081/10/21 

2081/10/09 2081/10/21 
2082/01/08 2082/03/20 
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gfd M /fh]Gb| k|;fb Gof}kfg]       Pkm=l;=P= k|sfz nD;fn

;+:yfsf] 5fk M        UDIN: 251223CA001546r8kS

ldlt M @)*@÷)(÷)&       rf6{8{ Psfp06]G6;\

k|ltj]bg ;+rfns ;ldltaf6 :jLs[t ldlt M @)*@÷)(÷)*

kl/kfng clws[tsf]       k|df0fLt ug]{,

          

&= cGo ljj/0f  

kb M ;xfos dxfk|aGws       lk=Pn=cf/=hL= P;f]l;P6\; 

;+:yfn] ;+rfns tyf lghsf] Psf3/sf kl/jf/sf] ljQLo :jfy{ ePsf] JolQm, a}Í tyf laQLo 
;+:yfaf6 C0f jf ;fk6L jf cGo s'g} ¿kdf /sd lnP÷glnPsf] 

 glnPsf] 

k|rlnt sfg"g adf]lhd sDkgLsf] ;+rfns, z]o/wgL, sd{rf/L, ;Nnfxsf/,  k/fdz{bftfsf] 
x}l;otdf kfpg] ;'ljwf jf nfe afx]s ;"lrs[t ;Ël7t ;+:yfsf] ljQLo :jfy{ ePsf] s'g} JolQm, 
kmd{, sDkgL, sd{rf/L, ;Nnfxsf/ jf  k/fdz{bftfn] ;+:yfsf] s'g} ;DklQ s'g} lsl;dn] ef]urng 
u/]÷gu/]sf] 

 gu/]sf] 

lgodgsf/L lgsfon] Ohfhtkq hf/L ubf{ tf]s]sf] zt{x?sf] kfngf  eP÷gePsf]  ePsf] 

lgodgsf/L lgsfon] ;+:yfsf] lgodg lg/LIf0f jf ;'k/Lj]If0f ubf{ ;+:yfnfO{  lbOPsf] lgb]{zg 
kfngf eP÷gePsf] 

 ePsf] 

;+:yf jf ;+rfns lj?4 cbfntdf s'g} d'2f rln/x]sf] eP ;f]sf] ljj/0f M  hfgsf/L 
k|fKt gePsf] 
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SWAROJGAR LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LIMITED 
Statement of Financial Position 

                                                    As on 32nd Ashad 2082 (16th July 2025)                  Figures in NPR 

Particulars Note 
 As on  

32nd Ashad 2082  
 As on  

31st Ashad 2081  

ASSETS    
Cash and Cash Equivalents 4.1  674,311,737.12   486,136,618.17  

Statutory Balances and Due from Nepal Rastra Bank 4.2  57,543,189.96   48,481,886.58  

Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions 4.3  -     -    

Derivative Financial Instruments 4.4  -     -    

Other Trading Assets 4.5  -     -    

Loans and advance to MFIs and Cooperatives 4.6  -     -    

Loans And Advances To Customers 4.7  9,267,670,834.21   8,071,745,626.83  

Investment Securities 4.8  1,000,000.00   1,000,000.00  

Current Tax Assets 4.9  16,836,358.57   41,567,989.89  

Investment Property 4.10   

Property and Equipment 4.11  37,836,906.57   39,122,990.91  

Goodwill And Intangible Assets 4.12  39,551.12   163,853.24  

Deferred Tax Assets 4.13  14,440,547.55   12,795,662.07  

Other Assets 4.14  80,055,242.83   45,868,714.63  

Total Assets   10,149,734,367.92   8,746,883,342.31  

Particulars Note 
 As on  

32nd Ashad 2082  
 As on  

31st Ashad 2081  

Liabilities    
Due to Bank And Financial Institutions 4.15  -     -    

Due To Nepal Ratsra Bank 4.16  -     -    

Derivative Financial Instrument 4.17  -     -    

Deposits from Customers 4.18  4,497,330,470.65   3,733,553,067.08  

Borrowings 4.19  4,192,872,279.95   3,858,862,589.21  

Current Tax Liabilities 4.9  -     -    

Provisions 4.20  43,524,563.20   10,174,005.00  

Deferred Tax Liabilities 4.13  -     -    

Other Liabilities 4.21  179,569,792.46   128,725,362.96  

Debt Securities Issued 4.22  -     -    

Subordinated Liabilities 4.23  -     -    

Total Liabilities   8,913,297,106.26   7,731,315,024.25  

Equity    
Share Capital 4.24  783,924,403.00   671,104,993.00  

Share Premium   -     -    

Retained Earnings   170,862,494.09   99,157,522.24  

Reserves 4.25  281,650,364.57   245,305,802.82  

Total Equity Attributable To Equity Holders   1,236,437,261.66   1,015,568,318.06  

Non-Controlling Interest   -     -    

Total Equity   1,236,437,261.66   1,015,568,318.06  

Total Liabilities And Equity   10,149,734,367.92   8,746,883,342.31  

Contingent Liabilities And Commitment 4.26   
Net Assets Value Per Share   157.72   151.33  

The accompanying notes are  integral part of these financial statements.               As per our report of even date  

 ......................................
Gyanendra Prasad Pande

Chairman

......................................
Uday Raj  Khatiwada

Director

......................................
Tri Bikram Pandey

Director

......................................
Krishna Banjade

Director

......................................
Prakash Lamsal , FCA

P.L.R.G Associates
Chartered Accountants

......................................
Tej Datta Khakural

Director

......................................
Samar Dhakal

Director

......................................
Hira Devi Bista

Director

......................................
Manoj Krishna Uprety
Chief Executive Officer

......................................
Niroj Prasad Poudel

Chief Financial Officer
Date: December 19, 2025
Place : Banepa, Kavre
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SWAROJGAR LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LIMITED 
Statement of Profit or Loss  

For the Year Ended 32nd Ashad 2082 (16th July 2025) 
    Figures in NPR  

Particulars Note  F.Y. 2081.082   F.Y. 2080.081  

Interest Income 4.27 1,270,026,175.91   1,096,935,589.33  

Interest Expense 4.28  660,634,302.64   671,278,977.13  

Net Interest Income   609,391,873.27   425,656,612.20  

Fees and Commission Income 4.29  98,493,606.05   84,357,591.81  

Fees and Commission Expense 4.30  3,490,869.29   4,199,133.00  

Net Fee and Commission Income   95,002,736.76   80,158,458.81  

Net Interest, Fee and Commission Income   704,394,610.03   505,815,071.01  

Net Trading Income 4.31  -     -    

Other Operating Income 4.32  1,402,622.15   2,239,976.03  

Total Operating Income   705,797,232.18   508,055,047.04  

Impairment Charge/(Reversal) for Loans and Other Losses 4.33  49,366,425.86   68,426,591.87  

Net Operating Income   656,430,806.32   439,628,455.17  

Operating Expense    

Personnel Expenses 4.34  255,755,396.98   219,302,880.11  

Other Operating Expenses 4.35  82,809,281.25   67,270,431.17  

Depreciation And Amortisation 4.36  21,570,019.60   22,561,400.82  

Operating Profit   296,296,108.48   130,493,743.07  

Non Operating Income 4.37  34,929,903.16   43,648,074.08  

Non Operating Expense 4.38  -     578,796.00  

Profit Before Income Tax   331,226,011.64   173,563,021.15  

Income Tax Expense 4.39  110,605,658.75   62,157,353.45  

Current Tax   112,119,751.42   62,497,049.14  

Deferred Tax   (1,514,092.67)  (339,695.69) 

Profit For The Year   220,620,352.90   111,405,667.70  

Profit Attributable To:    

Equity Holders Of The Financial Institution   220,620,352.90   111,405,667.70  

Profit For The Year   220,620,352.90   111,405,667.70  

Earnings Per Share (EPS)    

Basic Earnings Per Share   28.14   16.60  

Diluted Earnings Per Share   28.14   16.60  

The accompanying notes are  integral part of these financial statements. As per our report of even date  

 

......................................
Gyanendra Prasad Pande

Chairman

......................................
Uday Raj  Khatiwada

Director

......................................
Tri Bikram Pandey

Director

......................................
Krishna Banjade

Director

......................................
Prakash Lamsal , FCA

P.L.R.G Associates
Chartered Accountants

......................................
Tej Datta Khakural

Director

......................................
Samar Dhakal

Director

......................................
Hira Devi Bista

Director

......................................
Manoj Krishna Uprety
Chief Executive Officer

......................................
Niroj Prasad Poudel

Chief Financial Officer

Date: December 19, 2025
Place : Banepa, Kavre
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SWAROJGAR LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LIMITED 

Statement of Comprehensive Income 

For the Year Ended 32nd Ashad 2082 (16th July 2025) 

    

Particulars Note F.Y. 2081.082  F.Y. 2080.081  

Profit For The Year  220,620,352.90  111,405,667.70  

Other Comprehensive Income, Net Of Income Tax    

a) Items that will not be reclassified to Profit or Loss    

Gains / (Losses) from investment in equity instruments measured at 
fair value 

   

Gains / (Losses) on revaluation    

Actuarial Gains / (Losses) on defined benefit plans   (435,976.00)  1,133,964.00  

Income tax relating to above items   130,792.80   (340,189.20) 

Net other Comprehensive Income that will not be reclassified to 
Profit or Loss   (305,183.20)  793,774.80  

b) Items that are or may be reclassified to Profit or Loss    

Gains/(losses) on cash flow hedge   -     -    

Exchange gains/(losses) (arising from translating financial assets of 
foreign operation)   -     -    

Income tax relating to above items   -     -    

Reclassify to Profit or Loss   -     -    

Net other Comprehensive Income that are or may be 
reclassified to Profit or Loss   -     -    

Other Comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax   (305,183.20)  793,774.80  

Total Comprehensive income for the year   220,315,169.70   112,199,442.50  

Total Comprehensive Income For The Period   220,315,169.70   112,199,442.50  
 
The accompanying notes are  integral part of these financial statements.                             As per our report of even 
date  

 

......................................
Gyanendra Prasad Pande

Chairman

......................................
Uday Raj  Khatiwada

Director

......................................
Tri Bikram Pandey

Director

......................................
Krishna Banjade

Director

......................................
Prakash Lamsal , FCA

P.L.R.G Associates
Chartered Accountants

......................................
Tej Datta Khakural

Director

......................................
Samar Dhakal

Director

......................................
Hira Devi Bista

Director

......................................
Manoj Krishna Uprety
Chief Executive Officer

......................................
Niroj Prasad Poudel

Chief Financial Officer

Date: December 19, 2025
Place : Banepa, Kavre
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SWAROJGAR LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LIMITED 

Statement of Distributable Profit or Loss 

For the Year Ended 32nd Ashad 2082 (16th July 2025) 

As per NRB Regulation 

   

Particulars  Current Year   Previous Year  

Net Profit/(loss) as per Statement of Profit or Loss  220,620,352.90   111,405,667.70  

Appropriation   

a. General Reserve  (44,124,070.58)  (22,281,133.54) 

b. Foreign Exchange Fluctuation fund  -     -    

c. Capital Redemption Reserve  -     -    

d. Corporate Social Responsibility Fund  (2,206,203.53)  (1,114,056.68) 

e. Employees' Training Fund  (91,354.52)  (330,256.50) 

f. Client Protection Fund  (3,309,305.29)  (1,114,056.68) 

g. Other : Share Issue Expenses  (3,103,488.60)  (445,694.00) 

Profit/(loss) before regulatory adjustment  167,785,930.38   86,120,470.30  

Regulatory Adjustments:   

a. Interest Receivable (-)/Previous Accrued Interest Received(+)  (2,085,326.89)  16,153,888.59  

b. Short Loan Loss Provision in Accounts(-)/Reversal(+)   

c. Short Provision for Possible Losses on Investment(-)/Reversal(+)   

d. Short Provision for Possible Losses on Non-Banking Assets (-)/Reversal(+)   

e. Deferred Tax Assets Recognized(-)/Reversal(+)  (1,514,092.67)  (339,695.69) 

f. Goodwill Recognized (-)/Impairment of Goodwill(+)   

g. Bargain Purchase Gain Recognized (-)/Reversal(+)   

h. Actuarial Loss Recognized (-)/Reversal(+)  -     -    

i. Others : Actuarial Gain of OLTEB  Recognized (-)/Reversal(+)  5,474,651.49   (3,247,990.83) 

Net Profit/(loss) for the Year End available for Distribution  169,661,162.30   98,686,672.37  

Opening Retained Earning  99,157,522.24   46,584,828.35  

Adjustment(+/-)   

Corporate Social Responsibility Expense during the year  193,399.00   175,706.00  

Transfer to Regulatory Reserve as adjustment  -     (74,879.22) 

Distribution:   

Bonus Share Issued  (93,242,110.00)  (43,904,065.00) 

Cash Dividend Paid  (4,907,479.46)  (2,310,740.26) 

Total Distributable Profit/(Loss) as on Year End Date  170,862,494.09   99,157,522.24  

Annualised Distributable Profit/Loss per Share  21.80   14.78  

 

......................................
Gyanendra Prasad Pande

Chairman

......................................
Uday Raj  Khatiwada

Director

......................................
Tri Bikram Pandey

Director

......................................
Krishna Banjade

Director

......................................
Prakash Lamsal , FCA

P.L.R.G Associates
Chartered Accountants

......................................
Tej Datta Khakural

Director

......................................
Samar Dhakal

Director

......................................
Hira Devi Bista

Director

......................................
Manoj Krishna Uprety
Chief Executive Officer

......................................
Niroj Prasad Poudel

Chief Financial Officer

Date: December 19, 2025
Place : Banepa, Kavre

41
th 

17 Annual Report-2081/082

æ;'v / ;d[l4sf] cfwf/, ;a}sf] :j/f]huf/Æ
:j/f]huf/ n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf ln=

Swarojgar Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.



SWAROJGAR LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LIMITED 

Statement of Cash Flows 
For the Year Ended 32nd Ashad 2082 (16th July 2025) 

   Figures in NPR  

Particulars  F.Y. 2081.082   F.Y. 2080.081  
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES   
Interest received  1,262,924,720.06   1,069,836,113.28  
Fees and other income received  133,423,509.21   128,005,665.89  
Dividend received   
Receipts from other operating activities   
Interest paid  (346,349,710.17)  (303,565,617.00) 
Commission and fees paid  (3,490,869.29)  (4,199,133.00) 
Cash payment to employees  (248,303,712.03)  (215,905,953.80) 
Other expense paid  (82,809,281.25)  (67,849,227.17) 
Operating cash flows before changes in operating assets and liabilities  715,394,656.53   606,321,848.20  
(Increase)/Decrease in operating assets   
Due from Nepal Rastra Bank  (9,061,303.38)  (3,304,604.36) 
Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions  -     -    
Other trading assets  -     -    
Loans and advance to bank and financial institutions  -     -    
Loans and advances to customers  (1,208,631,032.36)  (1,588,459,159.76) 
Other assets  (33,501,077.03)  (7,309,177.90) 
Increase/(Decrease) in operating liabilities   
Due to bank and financial institutions  -     -    
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank  -     -    
Deposit from customers   763,777,403.57   398,402,638.21  
Borrowings  334,009,690.74   1,237,925,999.31  
Other liabilities  42,223,232.77   13,336,540.09  
Net cash flow from operating activities before tax paid  604,211,570.83   656,914,083.79  
Income taxes paid  (87,388,120.10)  (72,971,425.53) 
Net cash flow from operating activities  516,823,450.73   583,942,658.26  
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES   
Purchase of investment securities  -     -    
Receipts from sale of investment securities  -     -    
Purchase of property and equipment  (5,085,925.00)  (6,537,418.04) 
Receipt from the sale of property and equipment  54,040.00   -    
Purchase of intangible assets  -     0.02  
Receipt from the sale of intangible assets  -     -    
Purchase of investment properties  -     -    
Receipt from the sale of investment properties  -     -    
Interest received  3,791,413.17   2,838,491.25  
Dividend received   
Net cash used in investing activities  (1,240,471.83)  (3,698,926.77) 
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES   
Receipt from issue of debt securities  -     -    
Repayment of debt securities  -     -    
Reciepts from issue of subordinated liabilities  -     -    
Repayment of subordinated liabilities  -     -    
Receipt from Issue of Shares  19,577,300.00   
Dividends paid  (4,907,479.46)  (2,310,740.26) 
Interest paid  (310,416,726.85)  (363,892,083.51) 
Other recepit/payment  (31,660,953.64)  (29,791,471.40) 
Net cash from financing activities  (327,407,859.95)  (395,994,295.17) 
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  188,175,118.95   184,249,436.32  
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the period  486,136,618.17   301,887,182.35  
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on cash and cash equivalents held  -     -    
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period  674,311,737.12   486,136,618.17  
The accompanying notes are  integral part of these financial statements.                       As per our report of even date  
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 •  Savings deposits collected from members

 •  Equity capital contributed by shareholders
 •  Borrowings from various Banks and Financial Institutions

 For the year ended on 32nd Ashad 2082    

 Swarojgar Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited     

 •  Group-based microcredit to deprived sector members

 •  Loans designed to support income-generating activities and micro-enterprise growth

      

 d. Statement of Cash Flow stating the ability of the Microfinance to generate Cash and Cash Equivalents,

 f. Notes to the Financial Statements comprising summary of Principle Accounting Policies and Explanatory 
Notes that are of significant importance to the users of the Financial Statements.

1 Reporting entity

 "By the end of FY 2081/82, the Microfinance delivered financial services through 91 branch offices across all seven 
provinces of Nepal. Guided by its mission to empower poor and marginalized women, the institution focuses on:

 •  Expanding access to essential financial services

 Notes to Financial Statements     

 •  Offering social security–oriented services to members

 •  Microenterprise (Collateral) Loans provided within NRB-prescribed limits

 As of the fiscal year-end, the Microfinance served 135,276 households through its network of 91 branches."         

  2. Capacity-Building Services
 •  Various skill development and income-generating training programs offered to members periodically

 "Swarojgar Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Limited (“the Microfinance”) is a public microfinance institution incorporated 
in Nepal under the Company Act, 2063 on Shrawan 08, 2066. The institution obtained its initial operating license from 
Nepal Rastra Bank (NRB) on Mansir 16, 2066, authorizing operations within three districts, and commenced its 
services from Poush 01, 2066.On Poush 19, 2074, the Microfinance received approval from NRB to expand its 
operations to the national level. The Central Office is located at Banepa Municipality–5, Kavre, Nepal. The institution 
operates as a ‘D’ Class Licensed Financial Institution under the provisions of the Bank and Financial Institution Act 
(BAFIA), 2073.The Microfinance is a publicly listed company, and its shares are traded on the Nepal Stock Exchange 
(NEPSE) under the trading symbol SLBBL, following its public issuance in FY 2069/70."     

 •  Promoting a sustainable savings culture

 1. Lending Services

 •  Supporting income generation and micro-enterprise development

 "As a ‘D’ class licensed institution, the Microfinance primarily focuses on deprived sector lending under a group 
guarantee mechanism, providing loans without collateral to uplift the economic and social conditions of its 
members.Key offerings include:

 •  Initiatives aimed at enhancing financial literacy, entrepreneurial capability, and household economic resilience.
 The institution’s major funding sources include:

  These funding streams support the institution in expanding outreach and sustaining growth in its service 
offerings.     

 2.1 Statement of Compliance

 b. Statement of Profit or Loss and Statement of Other Comprehensive Income stating the financial performance of 
the Microfinance for the reported period,

 c.  Statement of Comprehensive Income for the reported period

2 Basis of Preparation     

  The Financial statements of the Microfinance has been prepared in accordance with the requirements by Nepal 
Financial Reporting Standard (NFRS) as issued by Accounting Standard Board (ASB) Nepal and pronounced 
by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN) and in a format issued by Nepal Rastra Bank in the 
Unified Directives, 2081 issued for microfinance. The Financial Statement comprise of :

 a.  Statement of Financial Position stating the financial position of the Microfinance as at the end of reporting 
period,

 e. Statement of Changes in Equity stating all the changes in Equity of the Microfinance during the reporting 
period, and

   
 2.1.1 Use of Carve-out     
 ICAN has provided carve-out on specific areas for alternative treatment of the items of financial statements required 
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as per NFRS. Based on such, the Microfinance has used the following carve outs for preparation and presentation of 
the financial statements in line with NFRS.

  Accordingly, the Microfinance Institution has calculated the expected credit loss on loans and advances in 
accordance with NFRS 9 for disclosure purposes; and recognised the loan loss provision in the financial 
statements as per NRB norms, as such amount exceeds the impairment loss computed under NFRS 9.

  As per NFRS 9 read together with carve out issued by ICAN for alternative treatment, the Effective interest rate 
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the 
financial asset or financial liability to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset or to the amortised cost of a 
financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, an entity shall estimate the expected cash flows 
by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call, 
and similar options) but shall not consider the expected credit losses. The calculation includes all fees and points 
paid or received unless it is immaterial or impracticable to determine reliably, between parties to the contract 
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs, and all other premiums or discounts. 
There is a presumption that the cash flows and the expected life of a group of similar financial instruments can be 
estimated reliably. However, in those rare cases when it is not possible to reliably estimate the cash flows or the 
expected life of a financial instrument (or group of financial instruments), the entity shall use the contractual 
cash flows over the full contractual term of the financial instrument (or group of financial instruments).

  In accordance with NFRS 9 – Financial Instruments, an entity is required to assess at the end of each reporting 
period whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets measured at 
amortised cost is impaired and, if so, to recognise impairment losses based on the Expected Credit Loss (ECL) 
model.

  The Microfinance has used the carve out and has not included the service charges in the calculation of effective 
interest rate, considering the impact would not have been materially different if the Microfinance had done 
otherwise.

  The Microfinance Institution classifies its loans and advances as financial assets measured at amortised cost.

      

 2.2.1 Reporting Period
  Reporting Period is a period from the first day of Shrawan (mid-July) of any year to the last day of Ashadh (mid-

July) of the next year as per Nepalese calendar.

 b)  Effective Interest Rate

  The current year period refers to 1st Shrawan 2081 to 32nd Ashadh 2082 as per Nepalese Calendar 
corresponding to 16th July 2024 to 16th July 2025 as per English Calendar and corresponding previous year 
period is 1st Shrawan 2080 to 31st Ashadh 2081 as per Nepalese Calendar corresponding to 17th July 2023 to 
15th July 2024 as per English Calendar.     

 a)  Impairment Loss on Loans and Advances (NFRS 9 with ICAN Carve-out)

  However, as permitted by the carve-out issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN), 
banks and financial institutions registered under the Bank and Financial Institution Act, 2073, including 
microfinance institutions, are required to measure impairment loss on loans and advances as the higher of the 
impairment loss determined in accordance with NFRS 9 (ECL model), and the loan loss provision calculated in 
accordance with the prudential norms and directives issued by Nepal Rastra Bank (NRB).

2.2 Reporting Period and Approval of Financial Statements

2.3 Functional and Presentation Currency
 The financial statements are presented in Nepalese Rupee (NPR) , which is also the functional currency of 

Microfinance. Figures are rounded off to nearest Rupee, accordingly, minor rounding off error may exist.

  The financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors vide its resolution dated 
2082.09.04 and recommended for approval in its 17th Annual General Meeting by Shareholders.

 2.2.2 Approval of Financial Statements
  The Board of Directors acknowledges the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of Financial 

Statements as per the provision of The Companies Act, 2074 (First Amendment).

 Nepali Calendar English Calendar 

Current Year Period (2081/82)  1st Shrawan 2081 to 32nd 
Asadh 2082  

 16th July 2024 to 16th July 
2025  

Previous Year Period (2080/81)  1st Shrawan 2080 to 31st 
Asadh 2081  

 17th July 2023 to 15th July 
2024  
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 g) Valuation of Lease Liabilities    

 h) Materiality and Aggregation    

  The management of the microfinance has assessed the entity's ability to continue as a going concern and is 
satisfied that it has the resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future. Furthermore, management is 
not aware of any material uncertanities that may cast significant doubts on the entity's ability to continue as a 
going concern. Therefore, the financial statements continue to be prepared on going concern basis.

  The Microfinance has recognized the assets and liabilities for current, deferred and other taxes based on the 
estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from 
the amount initially recorded, such differences shall impact the income of that year.

 e) Deferred Tax    

  Where the fair value of the financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the statement of financial 
position can not be derived from active markets, they are determined using judgements that may, among other 
things, include considerations of liquidity and model inputs such as volatility for longer dated derivatives and 
discount rates, prepayment rates, default rates assumptions for the assets backed securities.

 b) Fair Value of Financial Instruments    

  The microfinance is subject to Income Tax. Significant judgements were required to determine the total 
provision for current and deferred taxes pending the issuance of tax guidelines on treatment of adoption of 
NFRS in the financial statements and the taxable profit for the purpose of imposition of taxes. Uncertainities 
exist, with respect to the interpretation of the applicability of tax law, at the time of the preparation of these 
financial statements.

  The microfinance has recognized gratuity and accumulated leave encashment as defined benefit plan. The cost 
of defined benefit plan is determined using actuarial valuation by an actuary. The actuarial valuation requires 
making assumptions about discount rates, Salary increment, and mortality rates, among other things. Due to 
long term nature of these plans, such estimates are subject to significant uncertainties. Assumptions Used for the 
valuations is disclosed in Note: 4.21.7.

 d) Taxation Matters    

 f) Defined Benefit Plans    

  As per the carve-out approved by the ICAN, Banks and Financial Institutions shall measure impairment losses 
on loans and advances as the higher of the amount derived as per rule-based norms prescribed by NRB and the 
amount determined by as per paragraph-5 of NFRS 9, with proper disclosure of the same. Accordingly, the 
microfinance has assessed the impairment loss under both norms and impairment provided in the financial 
statements is the impairment under norms prescribed by NRB with separate disclosure of impairment 
calculated under NFRS 9.

  Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized in respect of temporary differences in tax bases of assets and 
liabilities and their carrying amount in the financial statements. Deferred tax income is determined using tax 
rate applicable to the microfinance as at the reposting date which is expected to apply when the related deferred 
tax income assets is realized or the deferred income tax liability is settled. Deferred tax assets are recognized 
where it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be 
utilized.

2.4 Use of Estimates, Assumptions and Judgments
 The Microfinance, under NFRS, is required to apply accounting policies to most appropriately suit its circumstances 

and operating environment. Further, the microfinance is required to make judgement in respect of items where the 
choice of specific policy, accounting estimate, or assumption to be followed could materially affect the financial 
statements. This may later be determined that a different choice could have been more appropriate.

  The lease term determined by the microfinance generally comprise of non-cancellable period of lease contracts, 
periods covered by an option, to extend the lease if the microfinance is reasonably certain to exercise that option 
and periods covered by an option to determine the lease if the microfinance is reasonable certain not to exercise 
that option. The same term is applied as economic useful life of right to use.

 c) Impairment losses on Loans and Advances    

 a) Going Concern

 Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis and the effect of revisions to the accounting 
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and in any future periods affected. The most 
significant uses of judgement and estimates are as follows:

  The application of NFRS 16 requires the microfinance to make judgements that affects the valuation of lease 
liabilities and valuation of right to use assets. These include identifying contracts falling within the scope of 
NFRS 16, assessing the contract terms and determining the interest rates for discounting of future cash flows.

  Each material class of similar items is presented separately in the financial statements. Items of dissimilar 

45
th 

17 Annual Report-2081/082

æ;'v / ;d[l4sf] cfwf/, ;a}sf] :j/f]huf/Æ
:j/f]huf/ n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf ln=

Swarojgar Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.



3.1 Basis of Measurement

 Details of cash and cash equivalents are given in Note 4.1 to the Financial Statements.

2.5 Changes in Accounting Policies

      

2.7 New Standards and Interpretation not Adopted

 Accounting Policies adopted by the management of the Microfinance has been applied consistently to all the years 
presented except otherwise the changes in the accounting policies has been disclosed separately.

 b. Lease liabilities are recognized, representing the present value of the obligation to make lease payments, while 
Right-of-Use (RoU) assets are recognized based on the right to use the underlying leased asset, in accordance 
with the requirements of NFRS 16.

 The financial statement of the microfinance has been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for the following 
material items in the statement of financial position:

 c. Provision for leave liability is calculated on the basis of present value of obligation as per actuarial report.
 

3.3 Financial assets and Financial Liabilities
 Financial assets are any assets that is cash, equity instrument of another entity or any contractual right to receive cash 

or financial assets of another entity.

  Except for trade receivables not containing a significant financing component, at initial recognition, financial 
asset or financial liability are recognized at its fair value plus or minus, in the case of a financial asset or financial 

 A number of new standards and amendments to the existing standards and interpretations have been issued by IASB- 
after the pronouncements of NFRS with varying effective dates. Those become applicable when ASB Nepal 
incorporates them within NFRS. The standards and interpretations that are issued, but not yet effective, up to the date 
of issuance of the Microfinance financial statements are disclosed below. The Microfinance intends to adopt these 
standards, if applicable, when they become effective. NFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts has been issued but is 
not effective until current period.

2.6 New Statndard issued but not yet effective

 a. Liabilities for Defined Benefit Obligations are recognized at the present value of the Defined Benefit 
Obligations less the fair value of the plan asset.

3.2 Cash and cash equivalent

 Financial statements of the Microfinance have been prepared in accordance with Nepal Financial Reporting Standards 
(NFRS) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN) to the extent applicable.

3 Significant Accounting Policies

 Financial liability is any liability with contractual obligation to deliver cash or other financial assets to another entity.

2.8 Discounting

  The Microfinance initially recognizes a financial asset or a financial liability in its statement of financial 
position when, and only when, it becomes party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. The 
Microfinance initially recognizes loans and advances; deposits and debt securities/ subordinated liabilities 
issued on the date that they are originated which is the date that the Microfinance becomes party to the 
contractual provisions of the instruments. Investments in equity instruments, bonds, debenture, Government 
securities, NRB bond or deposit auction, reverse repos, outright purchase are recognized on trade date at which 
the Microfinance commits to purchase/ acquire the financial assets. Regular way purchase and sale of financial 
assets are recognized on trade date at which the Microfinance commits to purchase or sell the asset.

nature or function are presented separately, unless they are immaterial as permitted by the Nepal Accounting 
Standards-NAS-1 on "Presentation of Financial Statements". Notes to the Financial Statements are presented in 
a systematic manner which ensures the understandability and comparability of Financial Statements of the 
Microfinance. Understandability of the Financial Statements are not compromised by obscuring material 
information with immaterial information or by aggregating material items that have different nature or 
functions.

 The principle accounting policies applied by the Microfinance in the preparation and presentation of these Financial 
Statements are presented below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented unless 
otherwise stated.

 The Non-current Assets and Liabilities are discounted whenever the discounting is material and if required by the 
NFRS.

 Cash and Cash Equivalents include cash in hand, balances with banks & Financial Institutions, money at call and at 
short notice and Fixed Deposits having original maturity less than three months. These are subject to insignificant risk 
of changes in their fair values and are used by the Microfinace in the management of short term commitments.

 3.3.1 Recognition

46
th 

17 Annual Report-2081/082

æ;'v / ;d[l4sf] cfwf/, ;a}sf] :j/f]huf/Æ
:j/f]huf/ n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf ln=

Swarojgar Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.



  Financial Instruments are classified as:
  • Financial Assets    

liability not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or 
issue of the financial asset or financial liability.

  When the transaction price of the instrument differs from the fair value at origination and the fair value is based 
on a valuation technique using only inputs observable in market transactions, the Microfinance recognizes the 
difference between the transaction price and fair value in profit and loss account. In those cases where fair value 
is based on models for which some of the inputs are not observable, the difference between the transaction price 
and the fair value is deferred and is only recognized in profit and loss account when the inputs become 
observable, or when the instrument is derecognized. 

 3.3.2 Classification

  d)  a contract that will or may be settled on the entity's own equity instruments and is: 

 The Microfinance determines its business model at the level that best reflects how it manages groups of financial 
assets to achieve its business objective. The Microfinance’s business model is not assessed on an instrument-by-
instrument basis, but at a higher level of aggregated portfolios and is based on observable factors such as:

 In contrast, contractual terms that introduce a more than trivial exposure to risks or volatility in the contractual cash 
flows that are unrelated to a basic lending arrangement do not give rise to contractual cash flows that are solely 
payments of principal and interest on the amount outstanding. In such cases, the financial asset is required to be 
measured at FVTPL.After initial measurement, these financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost.

  a)  cash 
  b)  an equity instrument of another entity. 

 The SPPI Test (Solely Payments of Principal and Interest): 

  ii.  to exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are         
potentially favorable to the entity; or 

  i.  a non-derivative for which the entity is or may be obliged to receive a variable number of the entity's own 
equity instruments; or  

 As a second step of its classification process, the Microfinance assesses the contractual terms of financial assets to 
identify whether they meet the SPPI test. The assessment of SPPI aims to identify whether the contractual cash flows 
are ‘solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding’.

 The business model assessment is based on reasonably expected scenarios without taking ‘worst case’ or ‘stress case’ 
scenarios into account. If cash flows after initial recognition are realized in a way that is different from the 
Microfinance’s original expectations, the Microfinance do not change the classification of the remaining financial 
assets held in that business model but incorporates such information when assessing newly originated or newly 
purchased financial assets going forward.

  The details of these conditions are outlined below:     

   Financial asset is any asset that is:

  i.  to receive cash or another financial asset from another entity; or 

  ii.  a derivative that will or may be settled other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another 
financial asset for a fixed number of the entity's own equity instruments.

 •  How the performance of the business model and the financial assets held within that business model are 
evaluated and reported to the Microfinance’s Board/ Board Committees.

 •  The expected frequency, value and timing of sales are also important aspects of the Microfinance’s assessment.

 ‘Principal’ for the purpose of this test is defined as the fair value of the financial asset at initial recognition and may 
change over the life of the financial asset. The most significant elements of ‘interest’ within a lending arrangement are 
typically the consideration for the time value of money and credit risk. To make the SPPI assessment, the 
Microfinance applies judgement and considers relevant factors such as the currency in which the financial asset is 
denominated, and the period for which the interest rate is set.

  1.  Financial Assets
  • Financial Liabilities    

  c)  contractual rights: 

  The Microfinance classifies the financial assets as subsequently measured at amortized cost or fair value on the 
basis of the Microfinance’s business model for managing the financial assets and the contractual cash flow 
characteristics of the financial assets.

 Business Model Assessment:

 

 •  The risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business 
model) and, in particular, the way those risks are managed. 
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 The Microfinance classifies a financial asset as FVTOCI if both of the following conditions are met:

 II.  Financial assets at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI) 
 III.  Financial assets at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL)

Financial assets are classified into the following categories for the measurement subsequent to the initial recognition.
 I.  Financial assets at amortized costs 

 • The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets in order to collect contractual cash 
flows and

 The Microfinance classifies a financial asset measured at amortized cost if both of the following conditions are met:

 • The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 
principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding. 

II.  Financial asset measured at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI):
 Debt Instruments at FVTOCI: 

 Investment in an equity instrument that is not held for trading is elected to be classified irrevocably as FVTOCI at the 
time of initial recognition. Such assets are subsequently measured at fair value and changes in fair value are 
recognized in other comprehensive income. Gains and losses on these equity instruments are never recycled to profit 
and loss account, instead directly transferred to retained earnings at the time of derecognition. 

  i.  a non-derivative for which the entity is or may be obliged to deliver a variable number of the entity’s own 
equity instruments; or 

I.  Financial assets measured at amortized cost 

 • The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of 
the principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

 Equity Instruments at FVTOCI: 

 • They are not held for trading and are designated by management upon initial recognition or mandatorily 
required to be measured at fair value under NFRS 9. 

 I)  Financial Liabilities at Fair Value through Profit or Loss

III. Financial assets Measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL):

 • The instrument is held within a business model, the objective of which is achieved by both collecting 
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets.

 These assets are subsequently measured at fair value and changes in fair value are recognized in the Statement of Profit 
or Loss.

 a)  Contractual obligation: 

  ii.  a derivative that will or may be settled other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another 
financial asset for a fixed number of the entity’s own equity instruments.

  FVOCI debt instruments are subsequently measured at fair value with gains and losses arising due to changes in 
fair value recognized in OCI. Interest income and foreign exchange gains and losses and ECL and reversals are 
recognized in profit or loss.  On derecognition, cumulative gains or losses previously recognized in OCI are 
reclassified from OCI to profit or loss.

 • They are held for trading

 Equity instruments at FVTOCI are not subject to an impairment assessment.

 Financial Liabilities are any liability that is: 

  The Microfinance classifies its financial liabilities, other than financial guarantees and loan commitments, as 
follows. 

 b) a contract that will or may be settled on the entity’s own equity instruments and is: 

2.  Financial Liabilities 

  ii.  to exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are potentially 
unfavorable to the entity; or 

  Financial liabilities are classified as fair value through profit or loss if they are held for trading or are designated 
at fair value through profit or loss. Upon initial recognition, transaction costs are directly attributable to the 
acquisition are recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss as incurred. Financial Liabilities measured at 
FVTPL are measured at fair value and all the Subsequent changes in fair value is recognized through Statement 
of Profit or Loss. Changes in fair value are recorded in “Net fair value gains/ (losses) from financial instruments 
at fair value through profit or loss” with the exception of movements in fair value of liabilities designated at 
FVTPL due to changes in the Microfinance’s own credit risk. Such changes in fair value are recorded in the own 
credit reserve through OCI and do not get recycled to profit or loss. Interest paid/payable is accrued in “Interest 

 Financial assets are classified as fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) unless they are  measured at Amortized 
Cost or FVTOCI. The following financial assets are classified as measured at FVTPL: 

  i.  to deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity; or 
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 Initial Measurement
 A financial asset or financial liability is measured initially at fair value plus or minus, for an item not at fair value 

through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue. Transaction costs in 
relation to financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognized in the Statement of Profit or 
Loss.

 II)  Financial Liabilities measured at amortized cost 
expense”, using the EIR.

  All financial liabilities other than measured at fair value though profit or loss are classified as subsequently 
measured at amortized cost using an effective interest rate method. Amortized cost is calculated by considering 
any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR.

3.3.3 Measurement

 Subsequent Measurement

 When a financial asset is modified the Microfinance assesses whether this modification results in derecognition. In 
accordance with the Microfinance’s policy a modification results in derecognition when it gives rise to substantially 
different terms. To determine the substantially different terms the Microfinance considers the qualitative factors (i.e. 
contractual cash flows after modification, change in currency or counterparty, interest rates, maturity, covenants) and 
a quantitative assessment (i.e. compare the present value of the remaining contractual cash flows under the original 
terms with the contractual cash flows under the revised terms, discounted at the original effective interest rate). 

 The Microfinance renegotiates loans to customers in financial difficulty to maximize collection and minimize the risk 
of default. A loan forbearance is granted in cases where although the borrower made all reasonable efforts to pay under 
the original contractual terms, there is a high risk of default or default has already happened, and the borrower is 
expected to be able to meet the revised terms. The revised terms in most of the cases include an extension of the 
maturity of the loan, changes to the timing of the cash flows of the loan (principal and interest repayment), reduction in 
the amount of cash flows due (principal and interest forgiveness) and amendments to covenants. 

3.3.4 Modification of Financial Assets

 A financial asset or financial liability is subsequently measured either at fair value or at amortized cost based on the 
classification of the financial asset or liability. Financial assets or liability classified as measured at amortized cost is 
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate method. 

 The EIR amortization is included in “Interest expense” in the Income Statement. Gains and losses too are recognized 
in the Income Statement when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process.

 A modification of a financial asset occurs when the contractual terms governing the cash flows of a financial asset are 
renegotiated or otherwise modified between initial recognition and maturity of the financial asset. A modification 
affects the amount and/or timing of the contractual cash flow either immediately or at a future date. In addition, the 
introduction or adjustment of existing covenants of an existing loan would constitute a modification even if these new 
or adjusted covenants do not yet affect the cash flows immediately but may affect the cash flows depending on whether 
the covenant is or is not met (e.g. a change to the increase in the interest rate that arises when covenants are breached). 

 In case where the financial asset is derecognized the loss allowance for ECL is remeasured at the date of derecognition 
to determine net carrying amount of the asset at that date. The difference between this revised carrying amount and the 
fair value of the new financial asset with the new terms will lead to a gain or loss on derecognition. The new financial 
asset will have a loss allowance measured based on 12 month ECL except on the rare occasions where the new loan is 
considered to be originated credit impaired. This applies only in the case where the fair value of the new loan is 
recognized at a significant discount on its revised par amount because there remains a high risk of default which has 
not been reduced by modification. The Microfinance monitors credit risk of modified financial assets by evaluating 
qualitative and quantitative information, such as if the borrower is in past due status under the new terms.

 The amortized cost of a financial asset or financial liability is the amount at which the financial asset or financial 
liability is measured at initial recognition minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative amortization 
using an effective interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the maturity amount, and minus 
any reduction for impairment or uncollectible. 

 When the contractual terms of a financial asset are modified and the modification does not result in derecognition, the 
Microfinance determines if the financial asset’s credit risk has increased significantly since initial recognition by 
comparing the credit rating at initial recognition and the original contractual terms; with credit rating at the reporting 
date based on the modified terms. Where a modification does not lead to derecognition the Microfinance calculates the 

 Financial assets classified at fair value are subsequently measured at fair value. The subsequent changes in fair value 
of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss whereas of 
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are recognized in other comprehensive income. 
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 Financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or canceled or expired. Where 
an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms 
of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the 
original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference between the carrying value of the original 
financial liability and the consideration paid is recognized in Statement of Profit or Loss.

 Any interest in such transferred financial assets that qualify for derecognition that is created or retained by the 
Microfinance is recognized as a separate asset or liability. On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between 
the carrying amount of the asset (or the carrying amount allocated to the portion of the asset transferred), and the sum 
of 

 • any cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized in other comprehensive income is recognized in profit or 
loss.

 Initially, the updated standard of NFRS 9: Financial Instruments (in line with NFRSs 2018) was pronounced by 
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN) to be effective from 16th July 2021. However, due to various 
reasons including challenges posed by emergence of COVID, limited time availability and lack of technical expertise, 
full implementation of NFRS 9 was deferred till FY 2080/81, for banks and financial institutions. Hence, the 
provisions of NFRS 9 that includes expected credit loss, is fully effective in the Microfinance from FY 2081/82.

 •  the consideration received (including any new asset obtained less any new liability assumed) and 

 Level 2 : Valuations are those with quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets or quoted prices for 
identical or similar instruments in inactive markets and financial instruments valued using models where all 
significant inputs are observable.

3.3.5 De-recognition

 Level 3 : Portfolios are those where at least one input, which could have a significant effects on the instrument's 
valuation, is not based on observable market data.

 Fair Value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability be settled, between knowledgeable, 
willing parties in an arm's length transaction on the measurement date. The Fair Value of a liability reflects its non-
performance risk. The Fair Values are determined according to the following hierarchy:

 Investment in Unquoted Equity Instruments are carried at cost as the market price of such shares could not be 
ascertained with certainty at the reporting date.

 The Microfinance derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset 
expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all the risks 
and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Microfinance neither transfers nor 
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset. 

 During the year FY 2081/82, The Institute of Chartered Accountants of Nepal (ICAN) and Accounting Standards 
Board of Nepal (ASB Nepal) has pronounced that full version of NFRS 9 containing Expected Credit Loss (ECL) to 
be effective from Shrawan 1st, 2081 and financial statements of Ashad end 2082 (including quarterly financials 
thereon) incorporates ECL reporting. In relation to the same, “NFRS 9 – Expected Credit Loss Related Guidelines, 
2024 was pronounced by the Bank and Financial Institution regulation department of Nepal Rastra Bank on Jestha 1st 
2081, providing detailed guidelines for the consistent and prudent application of NFRS 9.

3.3.7 Impairment

 Derecognition of Financial Liabilities

 In transactions in which the Microfinance neither retains nor transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership of a financial asset and it retains control over the asset, the Microfinance continues to recognize the asset to 
the extent of its continuing involvement, determined by the extent to which it is exposed to changes in the value of the 
transferred asset.

modification gain/loss comparing the gross carrying amount before and after the modification (excluding the ECL 
allowance). Then the Microfinance measures ECL for the modified asset, where the expected cash flows arising from 
the modified financial asset are included in calculating the expected cash shortfalls from the original asset.

 Derecognition of Financial Assets

 The Microfinance recognizes a loss allowance for expected credit losses on a financial asset that are measured at 
Amortized Cost (AC), Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI), a lease receivable, a contract 
asset or a loan commitment and a financial guarantee contract to which the impairment requirements apply. The ECL 

 Level 1 : Fair Value measurements are those derived from unadjusted quoted prices are in active markets for identical 
assets of liability.

3.3.6 Determination of fair value
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 This stage includes the following: 

 Stage 1:  

  •  Exposures fully guaranteed by Nepal Government/Province/Local Level.

 iii Financial assets for which contractual payments are not overdue or are overdue for up to 1 month.

approach results in the early recognition of credit losses because it includes, not only losses that have already been 
incurred, but also expected future credit losses – it is a forward looking model.  Any financial instrument classified and 
measured at FVTPL is not covered under impairment requirements of NFRS 9. The methods for the calculation of 
Expected Credit Loss is classified into 3 broad approaches:

 I.  General approach 
  These approaches are applicable to financial assets measured at amortized cost, financial assets measured at 

FVOCI with recycling, Loan commitments (not at FVTPL), Financial guarantee contracts (not at FVTPL).  
Lifetime ECL is recognized for all financial assets where the credit risk has increased significantly since initial 
recognition. At the reporting date, if the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the 
Microfinance measures the loss allowance for those financial assets at an amount equal to 12- month ECL.

  For loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts, the date that the entity becomes party to the 
irrevocable commitments is considered to be the date of initial recognition for the purpose of applying the 
impairment requirements. The Microfinance recognizes in profit or loss, as an impairment gain or loss, the 
amount of expected credit losses (or reversal) that is required to adjust the loss allowance at the reporting date to 
the amount that is required to be recognized in accordance with  NFRS 9. 

  Under the general approach, NFRS 9 recognizes a three-stage approach to measure expected credit losses and 
recognize interest income.

 The financial instruments that have not had a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition are classified in 
Stage 1. The Financial instruments at stage 1 require, at initial recognition, a provision for ECL associated with the 
probability of default events occurring within the next 12 months (12-month ECL). For those financial assets with a 
remaining maturity of less  than 12 months, a Probability of Default (PD) is used that corresponds to the remaining 
maturity.Interest is calculated on the gross carrying amount of the financial asset before adjusting for ECL. 

 i. Initially recognized financial instruments (other than those purchased or originated credit impaired financial 
assets)

 ii Financial instruments having no significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

 iv. Financial instruments having low credit risk at the reporting date.
  For this purpose, instruments with low credit risk include:
  •  All exposures on Nepal Government/Province/Local Level or Nepal Rastra Bank

  •  Foreign Sovereign exposures having rating BBB- and above from an external rating agency at the 
reporting date.

  •  All exposures on BIS, IMF, EC, ECB and multilateral development banks with risk weight of 0% as 
defined in Capital Adequacy Framework 2015.

  •  Debenture/bonds having rating of AA or above at reporting date from external credit rating agency.
 The Microfinance determines at each reporting date whether the financial instruments meet the requirement of low 

credit risk. If the instrument does not meet the requirement of low credit risk, the Microfinance determines whether the 
risk of default on the financial instrument has been increased significantly or not after initial recognition. If the risk has 
been increased, the instruments are classified under stage 2 and accordingly lifetime ECL is recognized.

 Stage 2: 

 This stage includes the following:
 i. Financial instruments having significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition

 iii. Loans classified as ‘Watchlist’ as per NRB directive on prudential provisioning
 iv. Loans without approved credit line or with credit line revoked by microfinance.
 v. Loan that has been restructured/rescheduled but not classified as non-performing loan as per existing provisions 

of NRB directives. However, rescheduling of installment/EMI based loans resulting in reduction in number of 
installments due to prepayments or change in number of installments due to change in interest rates under 
floating interest rate are not applicable.

 The financial instruments having significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition are classified in Stage 2. A 
provision is required for the lifetime ECL representing losses over the life of the financial instrument (lifetime ECL). 
Interest income is continued to be recognized on a gross basis. 

 vi. Claims on non-investment grade financial instruments i.e. with a credit rating of BB+ or below.

 ii. Financial instruments having contractual payments overdue for more than 1 month but not exceeding 3 months.

51
th 

17 Annual Report-2081/082

æ;'v / ;d[l4sf] cfwf/, ;a}sf] :j/f]huf/Æ
:j/f]huf/ n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf ln=

Swarojgar Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.



 Stage 3: 
 The credit impaired or defaulted financial instruments are classified or moved to Stage 3. A provision is required for 

the lifetime ECL representing the losses over the life of the instrument (lifetime ECL) with the probability of default 
(PD) a 100%. Interest income is calculated on an actual receipt basis. 

 iii. Loan is classified non- performing as per NRB prudential provisioning directive.

 i. Financial instruments having contractual payments overdue for more than 3 months 

  •  The Microfinance has filed for the debtor’s bankruptcy or a similar order in respect of the borrower’s 
credit obligation.

 A financial instrument is credit-impaired when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated 
future cash flows of that financial instrument have occurred. Evidence that a financial instrument is credit-impaired 
include observable data about the following events:

 Assessment of significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition is required for determining whether the 
lifetime or the 12-month expected credit loss is to be recognized. NRB’s guidelines regarding Expected Credit Loss 
has given the following conditions which are deemed as indicators of significant increase in credit risk.

  •  The Microfinance consents to distressed restructuring of credit obligation resulting in reduction in 
financial obligation due to material forgiveness, postponement of principal, interest

 Credit impaired financial instruments also includes credit impaired defined by the Microfinance as per their risk 
management practices.

 v. The financial assets classified as purchased or originated credit impaired (POCI) assets as per NFRS 9. POCI 
assets also refer to new loans disbursed during the current reporting period for accounts that were classified 
under Stage 3 at previous reporting date.

  •  The debtor has sought or has been placed in bankruptcy or similar protection where this would avoid or 
delay repayment of the credit obligation.

 iv. Credit impaired financial instruments with objective evidence of impairment.

  •  The Microfinance sells a part of the credit obligation at a material credit-related economic loss.

 iii. Relative lifetime PD is increased by 100% or more

  The indicators of unlikeness to pay include:
  •  The Microfinance puts credit obligation on non-accrued status.

 Definition of Credit Impaired Financial Instruments:

 •  Significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower.
 •  A breach of contract, such as a default or past due event.

  •  There is evidence that full repayment based on contractual terms is unlikely without the Microfinance 's 
realization of collateral regardless of whether the exposure is current or past due by a few days.

 •  It is becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization.
 •  The disappearance of an active market for that financial instrument because of financial difficulties; or

 ii. The Microfinance considers that the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Microfinance in full, 
without realizing securities (if held).

 This stage includes the following: 

 Indicators of significant increase in credit risk (SICR):

 ii. Absolute lifetime PD is 5% or more

 iv. Risk rating (internal or external) downgraded by 2 notches since initial recognition 

 •  The purchase or origination of a financial instrument at a deep discount that reflects the incurred credit losses.

 •  The lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s financial 
difficulty, having granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not otherwise consider.

 i. More than one month past due

Particulars Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 

Nature  
12 month expected credit 
loss 

Lifetime expected credit 
loss 

Lifetime expected credit loss 

Risk 
No significant risk since 
initial recognition 

Significant credit risk 
since initial recognition 

Credit impaired (With 
objective evidence of 
impairment) 

Nature Performing Performing Non-performing 

Interest 
Revenue 

Effective interest on gross 
carrying amount 

Effective interest on 
gross carrying amount 

Interest on Actual Receipt 
Basis 
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 Financial assets are transferred between the different categories (other than POCI) depending on their relative change 
in credit risk since initial recognition. Financial instruments are transferred out of stage 2 if their credit risk is no longer 
considered to be significantly increased since initial recognition based on the assessments and also, as per the Policy 
on Upgrading of Credit Facilities. Financial instruments are transferred out of Stage 3 when they no longer exhibit any 
evidence of credit impairment as described above as per the Policy on Upgrading of Credit Facilities.

 i. As per NFRS 9, depending on the nature of the financial instruments and the credit risk information available for 
particular groups of financial instruments, the Microfinance may not be able to identify significant changes in 
credit risk for individual financial instruments before the financial instrument becomes past due.

 ii.  For the purpose of determining significant increases in credit risk and recognizing a loss allowance on a 
collective basis, the Microfinance groups financial instruments based on shared credit risk characteristics with 
the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in credit risk to be 
identified on a timely basis.

 iii. Grouping exposures having similar risks helps estimate the impact of future factors like economic changes on 
ECL, when individual assessments cannot consider forward looking information. If the forward-looking 
information has already been considered in individual assessments, additional assessment on a collective basis 
is be avoided, if it results in double-counting.

 Guidelines under NFRS 9 on the collective assessment of ECL

 ii. Collective assessments are generally used for a large group of similar lending exposures, while individual 
assessments are considered for significant exposures or specific credit concerns. as mentioned in policy

 i. The individual or collective assessment approaches is used depending on the ability to incorporate forward-
looking information into the ECL estimate.

 iv. Grouping exposures in such a way that an increase in the credit risk of particular exposures is masked by the 
performance of the group as a whole is avoided.

 Curing Period and Transfer Criteria Between Stages:

 The following factors are considered for Portfolio Segmentation while calculating ECL:

 Portfolio segmentation:

 x. Modification of terms resulting in restructuring/rescheduling

 xii. Management decision to strengthen collateral and/or covenant requirements for credit exposures because of 
changes in the credit risk of those exposures since initial recognition.

 ix. Borrowers affected by macroeconomic conditions based on reasonable and supportable forecasts

 vi. Deterioration of relevant determinants of credit risk (e.g. future cash flows) for an individual obligor (or pool of 
obligors)

 vii. Expectation of forbearance or restructuring due to financial difficulties
 viii. Deterioration of prospects for sector or industries within which a borrower operates

 v. Risk rating downgraded to non-investment grade by external credit rating agency (BB+ or below) or by 
microfinance’s internal credit rating system

 xi. Credit Quality Indicators determined as per internal credit assessment of performing loans which are subject to 
individual monitoring and review, are weaker than that in the initial recognition

II.  Simplified approach applicable to certain trade receivables, contract assets and lease receivables.
      

 Under simplified approach, the entity measures loss allowance at an amount equal to the Lifetime ECL 
 i. Mandatorily for the trade receivables or contract assets which do not contain the significant financing 

component. 
 ii. Has been applied optionally for the trade receivables, lease receivables and other contract asset which contain a 

significant financing component. 

 xiii. Both qualitative and quantitative factors are encouraged to be considered while assessing whether there have 
been significant increases in credit risk. Accurate identification of drivers of credit risk and reliable 
demonstration of linkage between those drivers and level of credit risk is also critical.

      
III.  Specific approach for purchased or originated Credit-impaired Financial Asset.
 These approaches are applicable to loan and advances swapped, purchased or exchanged by the Microfinances and 

has high credit risk. The Microfinance is required to include the initial expected credit losses in the estimated cash 
flows when calculating the credit-adjusted effective interest rate for financial assets that are considered to be 
purchased or originated credit-impaired at initial recognition. Hence, only the cumulative changes in lifetime 
expected credit losses since initial recognition is recognized as a loss allowance for purchased or originated credit-
impaired financial assets.
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 The Microfinance has developed a comprehensive Policy on Upgrading of Credit Facilities in line with the NFRS 9- 
Expected Credit Loss Related Guidelines, 2024. Accordingly, credit facilities other than restructured and rescheduled 
facilities are upgraded to a better stage.

  Irrespective of results derived by the model of the Microfinance, prudential floor of 2.5% as prescribed by the 
NRB is used. 

  LGD is the percentage of exposure that is not expected to be recovered in the event of a default. The LGD is 
usually defined as the amount of credit that is lost by a financial institution when an obligor defaults.

 Where there is evidence of significant reduction in credit risk, the Microfinance upgrades such exposure from Stage 2 
to Stage 1. 

 For Restructured/Rescheduled Exposures:

 ECL Calculation: 

 Though the conditions for an exposure to be classified in Stage 3 no longer exist, the Microfinance continues to 
monitor for a minimum probationary period of three months to upgrade from Stage 3.

 ii. Loss Given Default (LGD)    

 Transfer from Stage 2 to Stage 1:

 Provisioning for other financial assets at amortized cost  

  PD is an estimate of the likelihood of a default over a given time horizon. NFRS 9 requires separate PD for 12-
month duration and lifetime duration depending on the stage allocation of the borrower.  

 ii. Incorporated forward-looking PD information as well by adjusting PD to its sensitivity to changes in certain 
macroeconomic factors.

 i.   Probability of Default (PD):

  For assets which are in Stage 1, a 12-month PD is required. For Stage 2 and Stage 3 assets, a lifetime PD is 
required, for which a PD term structure needs to be built.

 iii. Exposure at Default (EAD)     

  As per NRB Guidelines, PD is an estimate of the likelihood of a default over a given time horizon. With regards 
to PD estimation, the following measures are considered by the Microfinance.

 iii. Used at least five-year historical data, where available, for calculating PDs and validate any smoothing of data 
or inputs by the Risk Management Department.

 The Microfinance measures ECL in a way that reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted amount determined by 
evaluating a range of possible outcomes and the reasonable and supportable information available without undue cost 
or effort at the reporting date, about past events, current conditions and forecast of future economic conditions. While 
estimating the ECLs, the Microfinance considers three probability-weighted scenarios (a base case, a best case and a 
worse case).

 Upgrading of stages for exposures is executed by the Risk Management Department.

 i. Probability of Default (PD)    

 In addition to the ECL for loans and investments as prescribed above, the Microfinance also holds other financial 
assets such as balances with bank, working advances and other financial assets. The Microfinance recognizes ECL on 
such assets based on the historical loss experience measures (e.g. write off rates / provisioning rates) adjusted for 
expected losses in the future keeping in mind the nature of industry (e.g. regulated industry like banking) and credit 
ratings of such counterparties.

  ECL= PD*LGD*EAD*Discount Factor

 i. Derived PD based on historical default migration rates and/other data, internal and external credit rating etc.

 The Microfinance monitors restructured/ rescheduled exposures classified under Stage 3 for a minimum probationary 
period of 24 months before up-gradation.

 Transfer Out of Stage 3: 

 The calculation of ECL consists of three key components and discount factor:

 ii.  Loss Given Default (LGD):

  LGD models are developed based on historical data, historical experience of cash recovery from defaults 
(including settlements), cost and time of recoveries and all other relevant and supportable information 
(including forward looking information).

  While determining loss rate or recovery rate for the purpose of calculation of loss allowance, expected cash 
flows from collateral realization are to be considered based on latest reliable internal/external valuations. 
Microfinance deploys its internal team or forms a committee to review the value of collateral as required.

 i. Use historical actual recovery rates in first place.
 ii. If historical rates are unavailable, use valuation (prudential floors) for ECL calculation as outlined in this 

 It is recommended to pursue computation of LGD in the following order:
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guideline taking into account disposal time and costs until expected disposal of collateral or assets. However, 
value of collateral or assets for loans that have defaulted and BFIs have also not been able to realize within 5 
years of default, cannot be used for determining loss or recovery rates.

 iii.  Exposure at Default (EAD):
  Exposure at Default (EAD) refers to the expected exposure to a borrower at the event of default. 
  This is dynamic in nature and keeps changing when the borrower repays his debt or obligation or take additional 

debt.
  For defaulted accounts or stage 3 accounts, EAD is simply the amount outstanding at the point of default. 

However, for stage 1 and stage 2 accounts, the following elements is considered for computation of EAD under 
NFRS 9 at the instrument or facility level:

 i. Time horizon over which EAD needs to be estimated.

 iii. Residual maturity.

 Consideration of Reasonable and Supportable Information:
 The Microfinance uses experienced credit judgment in determining whether the information used for the assessment 

of credit risk and measurement of ECL is, reasonable and supportable. The information considered includes the 
information about past events, present conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions.

 The Microfinance incorporates forward-looking information into both its assessment as to whether the credit risk of 
an instrument has increased significantly since its initial recognition and its measurement of ECL. The Microfinance 
also obtained experienced credit judgement from economic outlook and Risk Management Departments to formulate 
a base case, a best case and a worst-case scenario. The base case represents a most-likely outcome and is aligned with 
information used by the Microfinance for strategic planning and budgeting. Quantitative economic factors are based 
on economic data and forecasts published by the NSO, NRB, and other reliable sources and statistical models. The 
Microfinance also obtained experienced credit judgement from economic outlook and Risk Management 
Departments to formulate a base case, a best case and a worst-case scenario. The base case represents a most-likely 
outcome and is aligned with information used by the Microfinance for strategic planning and budgeting. Quantitative 
economic factors are based on economic data and forecasts published by the NSO, NRB, and other reliable sources 
and statistical models.

 Drivers of Credit Risk

 Consideration of Forward-looking Information: 

 Parameters  Sources

 iv. Deterministic or non-deterministic nature of the payment terms.

 GDP         CBS
 Agricultural GDP   NRB

 ii. Projected cash flows till the estimated default point.

 iii. If such net realizable value of collateral or other sources are reliably undeterminable and BFIs are unable to 
compute LGDs due to lack of data or inputs, they are required to obtain approval of the same from the board of 
directors. Such BFIs are required to use a minimum LGD of 45 per cent for such credit exposures.

      

     

 Unemployment Rate  NRB

 Collateral valuation

 Consideration of Time Value of Money:
 The lifetime Expected Credit Loss (LTECL) is discounted to the reporting date, not to the expected default or some 

other date, using the coupon interest rate determined at initial recognition or approximation thereof, that will be 
applied when recognizing the financial assets resulting from the loan commitment.

 Interest Rate  NRB

 Inflation   World Bank

 Remittance Inflow  NRB
 Per Capita Income  CBS

 The Microfinance seeks to use collateral, where possible, to mitigate its risks on financial assets. The collateral comes 
in various forms such as cash, gold, Government Securities, Letters of Credit/Guarantees, real estate, receivables, 
inventories, other non-financial assets and credit enhancements such as netting agreements, etc. While determining 
loss rate or recovery rate for the purpose of calculation of loss allowance, expected cash flows from collateral 
realization have been considered based on latest reliable internal/external valuations. Net realizable value of all other 
collateral or other sources that MFIs have legal right to recover from, shall be determined as current fair value less 
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 Impact on equity

 The following table provides the quantitative information about the fair value of the collateral held by the 
Microfinance for the financial assets that have been credit impaired (Stage 3) as at the reporting date:

D. Debt instruments measured at FVOCI: No loss allowance is recognized in the statement of financial position 
because the carrying amount of these assets is their fair value. However, the loss allowance is disclosed and is 
recognized in OCI. 

C. Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: as a provision in other liabilities where a financial 
instrument includes both a drawn and an undrawn component, and the Microfinance cannot identify the ECL on the 
loan commitment component separately from those on the drawn component and instead presents a combined loss 
allowance for both components. The combined amount is presented as a deduction from the gross carrying amount of 
the drawn component. Any excess of the loss allowance over the gross amount of the drawn component is presented as 
a provision; and

 The Microfinance has transitioned to Expected Credit Loss (ECL) model for recognizing impairment on the financial 
assets from the current year. In accordance with NFRS 9 and NRB Directives, the Microfinance has not restated prior 
period figures. Instead, the increase in impairment provisions resulting from the application of the ECL Model has 
been determined as Day 1 impact and disclosed separately. The additional provision, net of the tax, represents a 
reduction in the shareholder’s equity as at the date of the transition, although no adjustment has been made to the 
comparative financial statements of the prior periods.

 

 The information about the financial instruments for which the Microfinance has not recognized loss allowance 
because of the collateral. The Net Realizable value of the collateral has been determined as the fair value less hair cut 
and realization cost as prescribed by NRB for different types of collateral.

Loss allowance as per the ECL are presented in the statement of financial position as follows:
A. Financial assets measured at amortized cost: as a deduction from the gross carrying amount of the assets.

 Scenario probability weighting (Microfinance)

 The details of such financial assets ( loans and advances) are given below:

 Impact on adoption of adoption of NFRS 9 

 No Impairment due to use of Collateral:

25% haircut.

Impact on regulatory Capital
There is no impact on regulatory capital as the transition to impairment as per NFRS 9 applying from the fiscal year 2081/82.
 
Presentation of allowance for Expected Credit Loss in the statement of Financial Position:

B. For advances measured at cost: as a deduction from the gross carrying amount of the advances. 

 The Microfinance has not changed probability weighting for the scenario through out the year.

Type of Collateral 
Total exposures in 

Stage 3 
Fair Value of 

Collateral Pledged 
Carrying Amount of 

Financial Assets Secured 

Land  788,444,173.62 636,442,436.05 142,158,512.10 

 

Loan Products 
Total Loan 
Exposures 

NRV of Collateral 
Pledged 

Description of 
Collateral 

Micro Enterprises Loan (P03) 1,148,731,959.86 3,975,458,650.17  

 

Particulars Amount (Rs.) 

Total Equity as on 1st Shrawan 2081  1,015,568,318.06  

Adjustment due to first time adoption of ECL  -    

Adjusted Total Equity as on 1st Shrawan 2081   1,015,568,318.06  

 

Scenario As on Ashadh end 2082 As on Ashadh end 2081 

Best Case  20% 20% 

Base (Normal) Case  30% 30% 

Worst Case 50% 50% 
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 Write-off of Loans and Advances:
 Loans (and the related impairment allowance accounts) are normally written off, either partially or in full, when there 

is no realistic prospect of recovery. Where loans are secured, this is generally after receipt of any proceeds from the 
realization of security. In circumstances where the net realizable value of any collateral has been determined and there 
is no reasonable expectation of further recovery, write-off may be earlier.

 Offsetting of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
 Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet when there is a 

legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realize the 
asset and settle the liability simultaneously (‘the offset criteria’).

 Impairment Charge as per Expected Credit Loss (ECL) method

 Loan Loss Provision as per Unified Directives to Microfinance

 Insured loans and advances represent the portion of the loan portfolio covered under the Deposit & Credit Guarantee 
Fund (DCGF) scheme. In accordance with the applicable provisioning norms, only 25% of the standard provisioning 
rate is applied to these insured exposures when calculating the required loan-loss provision.

 Policies opted for Impairment Charge

 Loan loss provisioning respect of Performing and Non-performing loans and advances are based on management's 
assessment of the degree of impairment of the loans and advances, subject to the minimum provisions prescribed in 
Unified Directives 2081 issued by NRB for Microfinance. Provision is made for possible losses as follows:

 Comparision of Impairment as per NFRS 9 and NRB :
 

 The Microfinance opts carveout issued by ICAN for measurement of impairment of Loans and Advances. Impairment 
charge calculated as per NFRS 9 is compared with the Loan Loss Provision calculated as per Unified Directives, 2081 
issued for microfinance, and higher of the amount derived from these measures is taken as Impairment charge for 
Loans and Advances.

Particulars 
As on Ashadh end 2082 

Stage 1 Stage 2  Stage 3  Total 

Loans and advances to customers (A)  37,924,867.03   2,235,818.57   167,986,789.48   208,147,475.08  

Other Financial Assets (B)   -     -     -     -    

Off-balance sheet credit exposures (C)  -     -     -     -    

Total impairment charges  
(D = A+B+C) 

 37,924,867.03   2,235,818.57   167,986,789.48   208,147,475.08  

 

Rate Categories 
 Loans & Advances  

 Provision  
 Uninsured   Insured   Total  

A. Performing Loan & Advances  1,055,816.88   8,716,886,462.14   8,717,942,279.02   28,142,813.95  

1% Pass  175,000.00   8,639,101,664.05   8,639,276,664.05   21,599,572.92  

5% Restructure  880,816.88   63,076,202.91   63,957,019.79   6,359,383.46  

5% Watch List  -     14,708,595.18   14,708,595.18   183,857.57  

B. Non-Performing Loan & Advances  80,703,291.19   635,759,801.15   716,463,092.34   220,181,650.53  

25% Substandard  -     31,802,677.65   31,802,677.65   1,987,667.66  

50% Doubtfull  251,615.19   111,257,778.20   111,509,393.39   14,033,032.30  

100% Bad  80,451,676.00   492,699,345.30   573,151,021.30   204,160,950.57  

Sub Total (A+B)  81,759,108.07   9,352,646,263.29   9,434,405,371.36   248,324,464.48  

Additional  -     -     -     613,580.88  

Total  81,759,108.07   9,352,646,263.29   9,434,405,371.36   248,938,045.36  

 

Particulars  As on 32nd Ashad 2082  

LLP as per NRB Directives  248,938,045.36  

Impairment as per NFRS 9  208,147,475.08  
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 Financial Assets are classified as trading assets (held for trading) if they have been acquired principally for the purpose 
of selling in the near term, or form part of a portfolio of identified Financial Instruments that are managed together and 
for which there is evidence of a recent pattern of short- term profit taking. They are recognized on trade date, when the 
Microfinance enters into contractual arrangements with counterparties, and are normally derecognized when sold. 
They are initially measured at Fair Value, with transaction costs taken to Profit or Loss. Subsequent changes in their 
Fair Values are recognized in Profit or Loss in ‘Net Trading Income’. However, the Microfinance does not have such 
assets to be recognized as trading assets as on end of reporting period.

 Items of property and equipment with original cost up to Rs. 2,000 are directly accounted as expenses.

 The subsequent cost of replacing a component of an item of Property and Equipment is recognized in the carrying 
amount of the item, if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within that part will flow to the 
Microfinance and it can be reliably measured. The cost of the day to day servicing of property and equipment are 
charged to the Statement of Profit or Loss as incurred.

 Derecognition

3.4 Trading assets

 Depreciation is charged upon the assets is available for use and does not cease until the asset is disposed off, classified 
as held for sale or ceases to generate economic benefits.

3.5 Property and Equipment

 Non-financial tangible assets that are held for providing service to customers and for administrative use of the 
Microfinance are classified as Property and Equipment.

 Recognition

 Property and Equipment are tangible items that are held for use in the production or supply of services or for 
administrative purposes and are expected to be used during more than one accounting period. The Microfinance 
applies the requirement of the Nepal Accounting Standard-16 (Property, Plant and Equipment) in accounting for these 
assets. Property and Equipments are recognized if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the 
asset will flow to the entity and the cost of the asset can be reliably measured.

 Measurement

 Subsequent Cost

 Subsequent Measurement

 An item of property and equipment that qualifies for recognition as an asset is initially measured at its cost. Cost 
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset and cost incurred subsequently to add to, 
replace part of an item of property and equipment.

 The Microfinance has opted cost model for the subsequent measurement of its Property and Equipments. Property and 
Equipment is stated at incurred cost (excluding the cost of day-to-day servicing) less accumulated depreciation and 
accumulated impairment. Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the equipment when that cost is incurred, if 
the recognition criteria are met.

 The carrying amount of an item of Property and Equipment is derecognized on disposal or when no future economic 
benefits are expected from its use. The gain or loss arising from de-recognition of an item of property and equipment is 
included in the Statement of Profit or Loss when the item is derecognized.

 Assets not capitalized

 Capital Work in Progress

 These are expenses of capital nature directly incurred in the construction of buildings, major development works, or 
awaiting capitalization. Capital Work in Progress would be transferred to the relevant assets when it is available for 
use, i.e. when it is in the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner inteneded by 
management. Capital work in progress is stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses.

 Residual Value

 Depreciation

 The Microfinance has assessed the salvage value of all property and equipment considering the expected realizable 
value on the end of life of such assets.

 Freehold land is not depreciated. Depreciation on assets under construction does not commence until they are 
complete and ready for intended use. Depreciation is provided on all other items of property and equipment so as to 
write-off their carrying value over the expected useful economic lives.

 Items of property and equipment are depreciated on Written Down Value Method over their useful life.

 Management of the Microfinance has assessed useful life and salvage value of property and equipment, as follows:
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3.6 Goodwill and Intangible assets

 Any excess of the cost of acquisition over the fair values of the identifiable net assets acquired in Business 
Combination is recognized as Goodwill. Whereas, an identifiable non-monetery asset without physical substance, 
held for use in the production or supply of the services of the Microfinance of for administrative purpose is recognized 
as an Intangible Asset.

 Goodwill and Intangible Assets are recognized in the books of account if it is probable that the future economic 
benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to the entity and the cost of the asset can be measured reliably. These 
assets are initially measured at costs.

 Goodwill and Intangible Assets are subsequently measured at its Cost less Accumulated Impairment Charges/ 
Accumulated Amortization.

 As per Nepal Accounting Standard-12 (Income Taxes), tax expense is the aggregate amount included in the 
determination of Profit or Loss for the period in respect of current and deferred taxation.

 Amortization of Intangible Asset

 Current Tax

 Current Tax Assets and Liabilities consists of amounts expected to be recovered from or paid to Inland Revenue 
Department in respect of Current Year, using the tax rates and tax laws enacted or substantively enacted on the 
reporting date and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of prior years. Income tax rate applicable for Microfinance 
is 30% (previous year rate was 30%)

 Tax Expense comprises Current Tax and Deferred Tax.

 Subsequent Expenditure

 De-recognition of an Intangible Asset

 Depreciation for Income Tax purpose is calculated separately at the rate and manner prescribed by the Income Tax Act, 
2058.

 Expenses incurred on an Intangible Asset are capitalized only when it its probable that this expense will enable the 
asset to generate future economic benefits in excess of its originally assessed standard of performance and this 
expense can be measured and attributed to the asset reliably. All other expense is expenses as incurred.

 Intangible Assets, except Goodwill, are amortized on Straight Line basis with the rate set, dividing the cost of the asset. 
Management estimates the life of an intangible asset of Five years from the date of its put to use.

 Subsequent Measurement

 The carrying amount of an item of Intangible Asset is derecognized on disposal or when no future economic benefits 
are expected from its use. The gain/loss arising on derecognition of an item of Intangible Assets is recognized in the 
Statement of Profit or Loss when the item is derecognized.

3.7 Investment Property

 Recognition

 Income Tax Expense is recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss, except to the extent it relates to items recognized 
directly in Equity or Other Comprehensive Income. The management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax 
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes 
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to tax authorities.

3.8 Income tax

Items  WDV Rate  

Building 0.05 

Leasehold Properties Lease period 

Vehicle 0.20 

Office Equipment, Furniture & Fixture, Computer & Accessories 0.25 

Other Assets 0.15 
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 Current and Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities are offset only to the extent that they relate to Income Tax imposed by 
the same taxation authority.

 Deferred Tax
 Deferred Tax is provided on Temporary Differences at the reporting date between the Tax Base of an assets and 

liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reproting purposes. Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all 
taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that the future 
taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilized. Carrying amount of 
Deferred Tax Assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is probable that sufficient profit 
will be available to allow the deferred tax assets to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each 
reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the 
deferred tax asset to be recovered

 Deferred Tax Assets and Liabilities are measured at the Tax Rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset 
is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted at 
the reporting date.

Current Tax Calculation as per Income Tax Act, 2058 

Particulars  Amounts (NPR.)  

Profit as per NFRS (Before Staff Bonus Provision)  368,028,901.83  

Less: Staff Bonus Provision  36,802,890.18  

Profit as per NFRS (After Staff Bonus Provision)  331,226,011.64  

Add: 

Inadmissible Expenses as per Income tax Act, 2058 

1 Depreciation as per Accounting System (PPE & Intrangible Assets)  6,461,888.43  

2 Staff Gratuity Provision  438,691.00  

3 Staff Leave Provision  7,580,885.00  

4 Interest Cost on Employee Benefit Obligations  3,128,569.00  

5 Depreciation on ROU Assets  15,108,131.17  

6 Interest Cost on Lease Liabilities  3,867,865.62  

7 Fines and Penalties  53,880.00  

8 Repair and Maintenance Expenses as per Accounting System  301,239.00  

9 Provision Against Current Assets  33,350,558.20  

10 Provision made for Benefit of suspended staff  991,613.95  

11 Corporate Social Responsibility Expense  193,399.00  

Total  71,476,720.37  

Less: 

Admissible Expenses as Per Income Tax Act, 2058 

1 Depreciation as per Section 19  6,643,448.12  

2 Write back of provision on other assets  -    

3 Payment of staff Gratuity  1,164,644.00  

4 Leave encashment  3,523,430.00  

5 Dividend Income  

6 Lease Payments  17,544,907.00  

7 Gain on disposal of Depreciable Asset and Other Income not recognized in tax  1,402,622.15  

8 Repair and maintenance expenses as per section 16  299,899.41  

Total  30,578,950.67  
 Less Loss Carried Forward  1,280,959.93  
 Total Taxable Income  370,842,821.41  
 Income Tax Liability  111,252,846.42  
 Advance Tax deposited  128,089,204.99  
 Income Tax Receivable  16,836,358.57  
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 In accordance with Paragraph 9 of Nepal Accounting Standard 39 (NAS 39) on Financial Instruments: Recognition 
and Measurement, the Effective Interest Rate is used for booking interest expense. When calculating the Effective 
Interest Rate, the Microfinance considers all contractual terms of the financial instrument, including fees, points 
received or paid, transaction costs, premiums, and discounts.

3.9 Deposits, debt securities issued and subordinated liabilities

 Income tax arising on the items of other comprehensive income is charged to statement of OCI itself. 

 The Microfinance collects deposits from its members. These transactions are recorded in the books of the accounts of 
Microfinance, and the resulting balance is recorded as a liability for the Microfinance and represents the amount owed 
to depositors. The balance is valued at amortized cost.

 ii) Transfer of Risks and Rewards: The significant risks and rewards associated with ownership of the goods or 
services have been transferred to the customer. Typically, this means that the customer has gained control over 
the asset.

3.10 Provisions and Contingent Liabilities
 Provision: Provision is a liability with uncertain timing and event. Provision is recognised if as a result of a past event, 

the Microfinance has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an 
outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by discounting the 
expected future cash flows at the pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessment of the time value of money and 
the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost.

 Deposits

 Contingent Liabilities: Contingent liabilities are i) possible obligations arising from past events whose existence 
will be confirmed on happening or not happening or uncertain future events not wholly within the control of 
Microfinance, or ii) a present obligation arising from past events but are not recognized because outflow of resources 
to settle may not be required or such amount can not be reliably estimated.

 iv) Probable Economic Benefits to the Microfinance: The Microfinance has a high degree of confidence that 
economic benefits, such as cash or other assets, will flow to it. If uncertainties or conditions are attached to the 
receipt of benefits, revenue recognition may be deferred.

 Income tax on items of OCI

 Contingent liabilities are separately disclosed in the financial statements.

3.11.1 Interest income

 Subordinated Liabilties

 Debt Securities are initially measured at the fair value less incremental direct cost and subsequently at their amortized 
cost using Effective Interest Rate method except where the microfinance designates liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss. However, the Microfinance does not have such Debt Securities as on end of reporting period.

3.11 Revenue Recognition

 Interest income has been recognized in accordance with NFRS 9 – Financial Instruments, NRB NFRS 9 ECL Related 

 iii) Reliable Measurement of Revenue: The amount of revenue can be measured reliably, ensuring there is 
reasonable certainty regarding the value expected to be received in exchange for the goods or services provided.

 Debt Securities Issued

 v) Specific Criteria for Different Types of Revenue: Certain revenue types, such as interest, royalties, and 
dividends, may have their own specifi c recognition criteria.

 "A Carve-Out regarding the treatment of Effective Interest Rate was issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of Nepal (ICAN). According to this Carve-Out, when calculating the Effective Interest Rate, all transaction costs 
should be considered unless they are immaterial or impracticable to calculate." In cases where it's considered 
impracticable, a separate Effective Interest Rate may not be computed, as allowed by the Carve-Out issued by ICAN.

 i) Identification of the Transaction: A valid contract or arrangement exists between the Microfinance and the 
customer, outlining the terms for the provision of goods or services.

 These are the liabilities subordinated, in the event of winding up, to claims of depositors, debt securities issued, and 
other creditors. It shall include redeemable preference shares, subordinated notes issued, borrowings, etc. During the 
reporting period, the Microfinance did not have any such liabilities.

 Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits during the period arising from the ordinary activities of the 
Microfinance when those inflows result in an increase in equity, other than increases relating to contributions from 
equity participants. Revenue is recognized only when the following specific recognition criteria are met, ensuring that 
revenue is earned and realizable:

 vi) No Outstanding Obligations: Revenue is recognized when the Microfinance has fully fulfilled its obligations 
or services as per the contract and has the right to payment.
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 Stage 1 and Stage 2 loans:

 Interest income recognized on accrual basis (coupon rate or effective rate) is adjusted against the movement in accrued 
interest receivable during the current quarter and interest suspense at beginning of quarterand only cash based interest 
income during the current quarter is recognized.

Guidelines, 2024, and NRB Guidance Note on Interest Income Recognition, 2025.
 The Microfinance Institution recognizes interest income based on the stage classification of loans under the Expected 

Credit Loss (ECL) framework:

 Stage 3 loans (credit-impaired assets):

 Interest income is recognized on accrual basis (coupon rate or effective rate) and any interest suspense (interest 
accrued but not booked) at the beginning of quarter is also recognized as interest income.

 Interest income is calculated on a quarterly basis considering loan staging, opening accrued interest, interest 
recognized to date, interest accrued during the quarter, and cash recovery during the quarter. Interest income 
recognized during the year is summarized below:

 Commission on guarantees issued that are for more than one year are immediately accounted as income. If the period 
of guarantee is more than one year, then the proportionate amount of fee is accounted as income.

3.11.3 Dividend income

 Income derived from buying/selling of assets and liabilities classified as for trading purpose are accounted as net 
3.11.4 Net trading income

 Fees and commissions are generally recognised on an accrual basis when the service has been provided based on 
satisfaction of the performance obligations. The fees and commission income and expense that are integral to the 
effective interest rate on the financial assets and financial liability are included in the measurement of the effective 
interest rate. The Microfinance has opted to use carve-out on this matter and accounted all realized fee and 
commission income upfront.

3.11.2 Fee and commission income

 Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive dividend is established i.e. when the dividend is approved 
by general meeting of companies.

Quarter by Quarter Reconciliation/  
Income to be Booked  

Amount (Rs.) 

Q1 (Ashoj 2081)  295,771,576.11 

Q2 (Poush 2081) 301,599,400.28 

Q3 (Chaitra 2081) 317,169,727.01 

Q4 (Ashadh 2082) 351,694,059.34 

Total 1,266,234,762.74 

  

Overall Annual Reconciliation Amount (Rs.) 

 AIR income Booked till 2080/81   78,893,465.53  

 Cash Received in FY  2081/82   1,262,924,720.06  

 AIR income Booked till in 2081/82   82,203,508.21  

 Interest Income to be booked   1,266,234,762.74  

 Movement in Accrued Interest Receivable (AIR) 

Particulars 
 As on 32nd 

Ashadh 2079  
 As on 31st 

Ashadh 2080  
 As on 31st 
Ashad 2081  

 As on 32nd 
Ashad 2082  

Interset Suspense( Receivable)  75,219,759.00   103,118,813.33  173,872,771.04   251,412,397.29  

AIR not Recognized  24,337,388.00   48,486,332.60   94,979,305.51   169,208,889.08  

AIR Recognized  50,882,371.00   54,632,480.73   78,893,465.53   82,203,508.21  

Change in AIR  16,299,933.00   3,750,109.73   24,260,984.80   3,310,042.68  
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3.11.5 Other Operating Income

 Defined Benefit Plans include the gratuity entitle to the employees as per Employee Service Bylaws of the 
Microfinance.

trading income. Gain and loss on trading assets and liabilities are recognized on mark to market basis and not on 
realization basis.

 Income other than interest, fees & commission and trading income are accounted as other operating income. This 
primarily comprises of changes in foreign exchange rate, dividend income, gain on disposal of non-financial assets 
etc.

 •  The Microfiance has exclued initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use assets at the date of 
initial application.

3.14 Leases

 The Microfinance uses Carve-Out mentioned previously and treat coupon rate as Effective Rate.

 • does not permit restatement of comparatives, which continue to be presented under NAS 17 and IFRIC 4.  

  The Microfinance has used the following practical expedients when applying the modified restrospective 
approach to lease previously classified as operating leases applying NAS 17.

  For short-term leases (lease term of 12 month or less) and leases of low-value assets, the microfiance has opted 
to recognize a lease expenses on straight-line basis as permitted by NFRS 16. This expenses is presented with in 
'Notes 4.35- Other Operating expeses' in the statement of profit or loss.

 For Financial Liabilities measured at Amortized Cost using the rate that closely approximates effective interest rate, 
interest expense is recorded using such rate. EIR is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or 
receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the net 
carrying amount of the financial asset or financial liability.

3.12 Interest expense

3.13 Employees Benefits
 Employee expenses includes the amount paid to employees of microfinance in respect of their service. Payment in 

respect of services include short-term, post-employment, termination and other long-term employee benefits. Post-
employment benefits are in the form of defined contribution plan and defined benefit plan. Expenses under defined 
contribution plans are accounted as they incur and on defined benefit plan as per the actuarial valuation.

 Short term employee benefits include salary, allowance, annual bonus based on profit of the Microfinance, 
subsidized loans etc. These are provided as the services are rendered by the employees and measured on 
undiscounted amount of payment made.

 Other long-term employee benefits include accumulated leave not encashed during service period. These are 
generally paid on retirement or termination of service of the employee, or when the accumulation exceeds the 
prescribed period.

 NFRS 16 introduces new or amended requirements with respect to lease accounting. It introduces significants 
changes to lease accounting by removing the distinction between operating and financial lease and requiring the 
recognition of a right-of-use assets and a lease liability at commencement for all leases, except for short-term leases 
and lease of low value assets when such recognition exemptions are adopted. The impact of adoption of NFRS 16 on 
the financial statements is described below.

 The date of initial application of NFRS 16 for the Microfinance is 1st Shrawan 2078.

 •  requires the Microfinance to recognize the effect of initially applying NFRS 16 by considering the date of initial 
application as the date of commencement of lease.

  Under NFRS 16, right-of-use assets are tested for impairment in accordance with NAS 36. 

 The Microfinance has applied NFRS 16 using the modified retrospective approach which:

 •  The Microfinance has applied a single discount rate of 10% to a portfolio of lease with reasonably similar 
characteristics.

 •  The Microfinance has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities to leases for which the 
lease term ends within 12 months of the date of initial application.

 •  The Microfinance has used hindsight when determining the lease term when the contract contains options to 
extend or terminate the lease.

3.15 Share Capital and Reserves
 Share Capital and Reserves are different classes of equity claims. Equity claims are claims on the residual interest in 
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the assets of the Microfinance after deducting all its liabilities. Changes in Equity during the reporting period 
comprise income and expenses recognized in the Statement of Financial Position; plus contribution from the holders 
of equity claims, minus distribution to holders of equity claims.

3.15.1 Share Capital 
 Ordinary Shares in the Microfinance are recognized at the amount paid per ordinery share. Swarojgar Laghubitta 

Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.'s shares are listed at Nepal Stock Exchange Ltd. The holders of ordinery shares are entitled to 
one vote per share at Annual General Meeting of the Microfinance and are entitled to receive annual dividend 
payments. The Microfinance doesn't have any other form of share capital apart from the ordinery shares.

 Dividends on ordinary shares classified as equity are recognized in equity in the period in which they are declared.

 Microfinance has created various types of reserves as part of regulatory requirement.

 The shares issue expenses in respect of Bonus Shares which can be avoided for the issue was charged in the year of 
issue directly through equity (under Retained Earnings) and disclosed in the statement of changes in equity. Tax 
impact is also disclosed.

  Twenty Percent of the net profit as stated in Section 44 of Bank and Financial Institution Act, 2073 and Fifty 
Percent of additional amount of Cash Dividend and Bonus Shares if declared and distributed in excess of 
Fifteen Percent as provisioned in Direction No. 13 of Directive No.1/081 of Unified Directive for Microfinance 
issued by NRB is set aside to the general reserve.

 b) Exchange Equalization Reserve

 c) Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Reserve
  In line with Point 14 of Directive 6/081, Microfinance is required to allocate 1% of its net profit for the year for 

CSR and is required to create CSR Reserve. The amount appropriated to this reserve is expensed off as 
prescribed in the same Directive in the next fiscal year.

 a) General Reserve

3.15.2 Reserves

  This is Statutory Reserve created in compliance with section 45 of Bank and Financial Institution Act, 2073 
(including Amendments). Twenty-Five Percent of the Revaluation Gain on the foreign currency held as at the 
end of Fiscal Year shall be aside to Exchange Equalization Reserve.

Movement in General Reserve during this fiscal year: 

Particulars  Amount(NPR)  

Opening Balance of 1st Sharwan 2081  172,867,196.25  

Addition to the Fund this FY  

 a. Provision of this FY (20% of net profit as per NFRS)  44,124,070.58  

 b. 50% of Dividend in excess of 15% Dividend  -    

Total (A)  216,991,266.83  

Less : Expenses from Fund this FY  -    

Total (B)  -    

Closing Balance as on Ashad End 2082 (A-B)  216,991,266.83  

 

Movement in CSR Fund this fiscal year: 

Particulars  Amount(NPR)  

Opening Balance of 1st Sharwan 2081  3,153,699.91  

Addition to the Fund this FY  

 a. Provision of this FY (1% of net profit as per NFRS)  2,206,203.53  

 b. 10% of Dividend in excess of 15%  -    

Total (A)  5,359,903.44  
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 d)  Client Protection Fund  

  Client Protection Fund is created at One and half Percent of Net Profit. In addition to this, Thirty-Five 
Percent of additional amount of Cash Dividend and Bonus Shares, if declared and distributed in excess of 
Fifteen Percent, as provisioned in Unified Directives 2081/04/01/Ja/A issued by NRB to Microfinance is 
also set-aside accordingly.

 d) Regulatory Reserve

  The amount that is allocated from Profit/Retained Earnings of the microfinance to this reserve as per the 
directives of NRB for the purpose of implementation of NFRS and which shall not be regarded as free for 
distribution of dividend shall be presented under this reserve. The regulatory reserve of the microfinance 
includes the reserve net of tax and employee bonus created relating to Accrued Interest Receivable as on end 
of reporting period not recovered. Reserve on Deferred Tax Assets, Non-banking Assets, Reduction in fair 
value of investment in Equity below cost price, Actuarial Loss etc.

  As per the directives 4(1)(Ja)(aa) of NRB issued for microfinance, the microfinance shall earmark and 
invest separately the portion of residual amount of the fund. In compliance with the provision, the 
management has invested NPR 25,000,000 in fixed deposit of various banks and financial institutions and 
residual amount has been kept in bank account for future expenditure purpose. 

Less : Expenses from Fund this FY  

 a. Assistance to Cultural Program  500.00  

 b. Various One Day Free Health Camp  91,814.00  

 c. Bell with Stand Provided to Shivapur Gadhi Mahadev Temple, Nawalparasi  12,730.00  

 d. Global Money Week  11,500.00  

 e. Water Filter provided to Area Police Office, Sadakpur, Kailali  4,000.00  

 

f. Sponsorship for Super Six Corporate Cup Cricket , Extratech Oval Int. Cricket 
Stadium, Rupandehi  20,000.00  

 g. Various Financial Literacy Programs  52,855.00  

Total (B)  193,399.00  

Closing Balance as on Ashad End 2082 (A-B)  5,166,504.44  

 

Movement in Client Protection Fund this fiscal year: 

Particulars  Amount(NPR)  

Opening Balance of 1st Sharwan 2081  25,995,168.78  

Addition to the Fund this FY  

 a. Interest Income to the fund  1,576,341.97  

 b. Miscellenious Addition  60,000.00  

 c. 1.5% of Net Profit as per NFRS of the FY  3,309,305.29  

 d. 35% of Dividend in excess of 15%  -    

Total (A)  30,940,816.04  

Less : Expenses from Fund this FY  

 

a. Assistance to member during pregnancy for hygiene foods and expenses 
for medical cure of member  4,883,675.00  

 b. Restoration and Security of failure of Business of Borrower  2,086,765.00  

 c. Scholarship Expenses  1,958,400.00  

 d. Training and Observation Expenses of Member  3,720,060.01  

Total Expenses (B)  12,648,900.01  

Closing Balance as on Ashad End 2082 (A-B)  18,291,916.03  
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 e) Capital Reserve

  This is a Non-Statutory Reserve and represents the amount of all the capital nature reserves such as the 
amounts arising from share forfeiture, Capital Grants and Capital Reserve arising out of business 
combinations. Funds in this reserve are not available for distribution of Cash Dividend but can be capitalized 
by issuing bonus shares upon obtaining prior approval from the NRB.

 f) Fair Value Reserve

  The fair value reserve comprises the cumulative net change in the fair value of financial assets that are 
measured at fair value and the changes in fair value is recognized in other comprehensive income, until the 
assets are derecognized. The cumulative amount of changes in fair value of those financial assets shall be 
presented under this account head.

  This is a non-statutory reserve and is the requirement in the application of accounting policy for non-
financial assets such as property, equipment, investment property and intangible assets that are measured 
following revaluation model. Revaluation reserve often serve as a cushion against unexpected loss but may 
not be fully available to absorb unexpected losses due to the subsequent deterioration in the market values 
and tax consequences of revaluation. The microfinance hasn’t followed revaluation model.

 h) Assets Revaluation Reserve

  The Board of Directors of the microfinance institution has recommended the distribution of a 14.25% bonus 
share and a 0.75% cash dividend (for tax purposes) for the fiscal year 2081/082. The proposed distributions 
are subject to approval by the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting (AGM). Upon approval, these 
distributions will be recognized in the equity section of the financial statements in the period in which they 
are disbursed.

 j)  Proposed Dividend Distribution

  The amount that is allocated from profit or retained earnings of the microfinance both positive or negative to 
this reserve as per the directives of NRB for the purpose of implementation of NFRS and which shall not be 
regarded as free reserve for distribution of dividend are recorded in this reserve. The reserve includes 
actuarial gain/(loss) net of tax on defined benefit plan.

 g) Actuarial Gain Reserve

  This head shall include the statutory reserve created for making payment towards Redeemable Non-
Convertible Preference Shares.

 i) Capital Redemption Reserve

Details of Regulatory reserve has been presented herewith 

Particulars 
 FY 2081.082  

 Movement 
During The 

Year  
 FY 2080.081  

Interest Receivable 20,349,901.16  2,085,326.89  18,264,574.27  

Short Loan Loss Provision  -     -     -    

Short provision for possible losses on investments  -     -     -    

Short provision on NBA  -     -     -    

Deferred Tax assets  
14,440,547.55  

 1,514,092.67   
12,795,662.07  Deferred Tax assets movement through OCI  130,792.80  

Gain on Bargain Purchase    -    

Actuarial Gain Recognized/Loss Reserve  581,930.37  (5,474,651.49)  6,056,581.86  

Fair Value loss recognized in OCI    -    

Deferred Tax assets recognized in Acturial Reserve  209,396.40   (130,792.80)  340,189.20  

Others    

Total 35,581,775.48  
 

37,457,007.40  
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 The microfinance has identified seven segments based on the geographic locations of its offices in the 7 provinces 
of the country. Interest earnings generated while conducting businesses under different segments are reported 
under the respective segment. For segmentation purpose, all business transactions between the segments are 
conducted on the arm's length basis, with intra unit revenue and cost being nullified when compiled.

 k) Investment Adjustment Reserve

3.15.4 Retained Earning

 The accumulated profits which has not been distributed to shareholders and has been ploughed back in the licensed 
institutions' operations and is free for distribution of dividend to the shareholders shall be presented under this 
heading.

 • For which discrete financial information is available.

 Not every part of an entity is necessarily an operating segment or part of an operating segment. For example, 
corporate headquarters or some functional departments may not earn revenues or may earn revenues that are only 
incidental to the activities of the entity and would not be operating segments.

  It is a regulatory reserve created as a cushion for adverse price movements in MFI's investments as directed 
by the Directives of Nepal Rastra Bank.

 l) Staff Training Fund

 An operating segment is a component of an entity :

 The amount of money collected on issue of shares in excess of its face value shall be presented under this heading. 
The outstanding amount in this account shall not be considered eligible for distribution of cash dividend.

3.15.3 Share Premium

 • That engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses (including revenues 
and expenses relating to transactions

 Earnings per share is calculated and presented in the face of Statement of Profit or Loss.

3.17 Segment reporting

 • Whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the entity's Chief operating decision maker to make 
decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance, and

3.16 Earning per share including diluted

  The fund is created for the purpose of Staff Training. As per the directives to microfinance by NRB, the 
Microfinance needs to spend at least Three Percent of last fiscal year’s total Personnel Expenses (Salary & 
Allowancces) for the development and trainings of the staff/employee. Further if the microfinance couldn’t 
spend up to the limit of 3%, the shortfall amount shall be transferred to the Staff Training Fund and shall be 
used for staff trainings in subsequent years.

 The Microfinance presents basic and diluted Earnings Per Share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is 
calculated by dividing the profit and loss attributable to ordinary equity holders of the microfinance by the 
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is determined by 
adjusting both the profit and loss attributable to the ordinary equity holders and the weighted average number or 
ordinary shares outstanding, for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares, if any.

Movement in Staff Training Fund this fiscal year: 

Particulars  FY 2081.082   FY 2080.081  

Opening Balance as on 1st Sharwan  3,942,286.24   3,612,029.74  

Expenses to be made during the year (3 % of Salary & 
Allowance of Previous FY) 

 5,137,482.52   5,316,049.50  

Actual Expenses made on Staff Training During the FY  
(5,046,128.00) 

 
(4,985,793.00) 

Fund created (+) / reversal (-)  91,354.52   330,256.50  

Closing Balance as on Ashad End  4,033,640.76   3,942,286.24  
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SWAROJGAR LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LIMITED 
Notes to the financial statements for the Year Ended 32nd Ashad 2082 

  

Note No. 4.1 
  

Cash and Cash Equivalents 
  

Cash and cash equivalent comprise the total amount of cash-in-hand, balances with other bank and financial institutions, 
money at call and short notice, treasury bills having original maturity of less than three months and cash in transit is 
presented as follows: 

Particulars 
 As on  

32nd Ashad 2082  
 As on  

31st Ashad 2081  

Cash in hand  750,368.00   2,317,972.00  

Balance with B/FIs  329,411,104.93   483,818,646.17  

Money at call and short notice  344,150,264.19   
Other   
Total  674,311,737.12   486,136,618.17  

   
Note No. 4.2 

  

Statutory Balances and Due from Nepal Rastra Bank   
Balances held with Nepal Rastra Bank including balance for compulsory cash reserve is presented as follows: 

Particulars 
 As on  

32nd Ashad 2082  
 As on  

31st Ashad 2081  

Statutory Balances with NRB  2,950,000.00   2,950,000.00  

Statutory Balances with BFIs  54,593,189.96   45,531,886.58  

Securities Purchased under re-sale agreement   -    

Other deposit and receivable from NRB   -    

Total  57,543,189.96   48,481,886.58  

   
Note No. 4.3 

  

Placement with Bank and Financial Institutions   

Placements with domestic as well as foreign bank and financial institutions with original maturities of more than three 
months from the acquisition date are presented as follows: 

Particulars 
 As on  

32nd Ashad 2082  
 As on  

31st Ashad 2081  

Placements with domestic B/FIs  -     -    

Less: Allowances for Impairment  -     -    

Total  -     -    

   
Note No. 4.4 

  

Derivative Financial Instruments   
The Microfinance does not have any Derivative Financial Insturments.   

Particulars 
 As on  

32nd Ashad 2082  
 As on  

31st Ashad 2081  

Held for trading  -     -    

Interest rate swap  -     -    

Currency swap  -     -    

Forward exchange contract  -     -    

Others  -     -    

Held for risk management  -     -    

Interest rate swap  -     -    

Currency swap  -     -    

Forward exchange contract  -     -    

Others  -     -    

Total  -     -    

 

68
th 

17 Annual Report-2081/082

æ;'v / ;d[l4sf] cfwf/, ;a}sf] :j/f]huf/Æ
:j/f]huf/ n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf ln=

Swarojgar Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.



Note No. 4.5   

Other Trading Assets   

The Microfinance does not have any trading assets.   

Particulars 
 As on  

32nd Ashad 2082  
 As on  

31st Ashad 2081  

Treasury Bills  -     -    

Government Bonds  -     -    

NRB Bonds  -     -    

Domestic Corporate Bonds  -     -    

Equities  -     -    

Other  -     -    

Total  -     -    

Pledged   

Non-pledged   

   
Note No. 4.6   

Loans and advances to MFIs and Cooperatives   

The Microfinance does not have any Loans and advances to MFIs and Coperatives 

Particulars 
 As on  

32nd Ashad 2082  
 As on  

31st Ashad 2081  

Loans to microfinance institutions  -     -    
Loans to FIs   -     -    
Loans to Cooperatives  -     -    
Less:Allowance for impairment  -     -    

Other   

Less: Allowance for impairment  -     -    
Total  -     -    

   

Note 4.6.1.   

Allowance for impairment   

Particulars 
 As on  

32nd Ashad 2082  
 As on  

31st Ashad 2081  

Balance for Begninng  -     -    
Impairment loss for the year  -     -    
Charge for the year  -     -    
Recoveries/reversal  -     -    
Amount written off  -     -    
Balance at Ending  -     -    

                                              -      
Note No. 4.7   

Loans and advances to customers   

Sum of the outstanding amount of all loans and advances extended to the customers other than BFIs, bills purchased 
and discounted and amortized cost of staff loans, less the amount of impairment allowances is presented under this head. 

Particulars 
 As on  

32nd Ashad 2082  
 As on  

31st Ashad 2081  

Loans and advances measured at amortised cost  9,434,405,371.36   8,225,774,339.00  

AIR On Loans and Advances   82,203,508.21   78,893,465.53  

Less: Impairment allowances  (248,938,045.36)  (232,922,177.70) 

Collective Allowances  (28,142,813.95)  (24,198,650.18) 

Individual Allowances  (220,795,231.41)  (208,723,527.52) 

   

Net amount  9,267,670,834.21   8,071,745,626.83  

Loans and advances measured at FVTPL   

Total  9,267,670,834.21   8,071,745,626.83  
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Note No. 4.7.1 
  

Analysis of Loans and advacnes- By Product   

Particulars 
 As on  

32nd Ashad 2082  
 As on  

31st Ashad 2081  

Product   
Term Loans  9,434,405,371.36   8,225,774,339.00  

Short term, term loan  -     -    

Hire purchase loan  -     -    

Personal Residential Loans  -     -    

Staff loans  -     -    

Others  -     -    

Sub Total  9,434,405,371.36   8,225,774,339.00  

Interest receivable  82,203,508.21   78,893,465.53  

Grand Total  9,516,608,879.57   8,304,667,804.53  

   
Note No. 4.7.2 

  

Analysis of Loans and advacnes- By Collateral   

Particulars 
 As on  

32nd Ashad 2082  
 As on  

31st Ashad 2081  

Secured   

Immovable assets  1,135,511,421.74   1,241,875,860.17  

Government Guarantee   
Collateral of Government securities   
Collateral of fixed deposit receipt   
Group Guarantee  8,298,893,949.62   6,983,898,478.83  

Personal Guarantee   
Other collateral   

Sub Total  9,434,405,371.36   8,225,774,339.00  

Unsecured   

Grand Total  9,434,405,371.36   8,225,774,339.00  
   

Note No. 4.7.3 
  

Allowances for Impairment   
Particulars  As on 32nd Ashad 2082   As on 31st Ashad 2081  

Specific allowance for impairment   

Balance at Shrawan 1  24,198,650.18   19,303,687.09  

Impairment loss for the year  3,944,163.77   4,894,963.09  

Recoveries/reversal during the year  -     -    

Write-offs   

Exchange rate variance on foreign currency   

Other Movement   

Balance at Ashad End  28,142,813.95   24,198,650.18  

Collective allowances for impairment   

Balance at Shrawan 1  208,723,527.52   155,311,898.74  

Impairment loss for the year  12,071,703.89   53,411,628.78  

Recoveries/reversal during the year  -     -    

Write-offs   

Exchange rate variance on foreign currency   

Other Movement   

Balance at Ashad End  220,795,231.41   208,723,527.52  

Total Allowance for impairment  248,938,045.36   232,922,177.70  

 

70
th 

17 Annual Report-2081/082

æ;'v / ;d[l4sf] cfwf/, ;a}sf] :j/f]huf/Æ
:j/f]huf/ n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf ln=

Swarojgar Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.



Note No. 4.8 
  

Investment securities   
Investments made by Microfinance in financial instruments have been presented under this account head in three 
categories i.e. investment securities designated at fair value through profit or loss, investment securities measured at 
amortized cost and investment in equity measured at fair value through other comprehensive income which is as follows:  

Particulars 
 As on  

32nd Ashad 2082  
 As on  

31st Ashad 2081  

Investment securities measured at amortised cost   

Investment Securities measured at FVTPL   

Investment Securities measured at FVTOCI  1,000,000.00   1,000,000.00  

Total  1,000,000.00   1,000,000.00  

Note No. 4.8.1 
  

Investment securities measured at amortized cost   

Particulars 
 As on  

32nd Ashad 2082  
 As on  

31st Ashad 2081  

Debt securities  -     -    

Government bonds  -     -    

Government treasury bills  -     -    

Nepal Rastra Bank bonds  -     -    

Nepal Rastra Bank deposits instruments  -     -    

Other  -     -    

Less: specific allowances for impairment  -     -    

Total  -     -    

Note No. 4.8.2 
  

Investment in equity measured at fair value through other comprehensive income 
 

Particulars 
 As on  

32nd Ashad 2082  
 As on  

31st Ashad 2081  

Equity intrument   

Quoted equity instrument   

Unquoted equity instrument  1,010,000.00   1,010,000.00  

Less: specific allowances for impairment  (10,000.00)  (10,000.00) 

Total  1,000,000.00   1,000,000.00  

   

Note No 4.8.3      

Information relating to investment in equities     

Particulars 

As on  
32nd Ashad 2082 

 As on 31st Ashad 2081  

 Cost   Fair value   Cost   Fair value  

Investment in Unquoted Equity 
    

Nepal Finsoft company Ltd   1,000,000.00   1,000,000.00   1,000,000.00   1,000,000.00  

10,000 shares of Rs. 100 each 
    

     

Centre for Microfinance Company  10,000.00   10,000.00   10,000.00   10,000.00  

100 shares of Rs. 100 each 
    

Total  1,010,000.00   1,010,000.00   1,010,000.00   1,010,000.00  
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Note 4.10   

Investment Properties   
Land or land and building other than those classified as property and equipment, and non- current assets held for sale 
under relevant accounting standard has been presented under this account head. This shall include land, land and building 
acquired as non-banking assets by the bank but not sold.     
The MFI has no investment properties. 

Particulars 
As on  

32nd Ashad 2082 
As on  

31st Ashad 2081 

Investment Properties measured at fair value 
  

Balance as on Shrawan 1  -     -    

Addition/Disposal during the year  -     -    

Net changes in fair value during the year  -     -    

Adjustment/Transfer  -     -    

Net Amount 
  

Investment Properties measured at cost 
  

Balance as on Shrawan 1  -     -    

Addition/Disposal during the year  -     -    

Adjustment/Transfer  -     -    

Accumulated depreciation  -     -    

Accumulated impairment loss  -     -    

Net Amount  -     -    

Total  -     -    

 

Note No. 4.9  
  

Current Tax Assets   
 

Advance tax deposited by the bank less tax liabilities are presented under this head. Liabilities recognized for the purpose 
of current income tax, including fees, penalties are presented under this head.   

Particulars  
 As on  

32nd Ashad 2082  
 As on  

31st Ashad 2081  

Current tax assets    
Current year income tax assets   128,089,204.99   97,080,405.13  

Tax assets of prior periods   -     -    

Total  128,089,204.99   97,080,405.13  

Current tax Liabilities    
Current year income tax liabilities   111,252,846.42   55,512,415.24  

Tax Liabilities of prior periods   -     
Total  111,252,846.42   55,512,415.24  

Total  16,836,358.57   41,567,989.89  
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Note 4.11 Property and Equipment 

Particulars Land Building  Vehicle  
 Office 

Equipment  
 Other Assets   Total  

Cost       

Balance as on Ashad end 2080  15,779,500.00   -     4,911,872.80   47,651,484.58   20,049,071.38   88,391,928.76  

Addition during the Year       -    

     Acquisition  -      37,299.00   1,804,663.00   4,695,456.00   6,537,418.00  

     Capitalization  -      -     -     -     -    

Disposal during the year  -      -     -     -     -    

Adjustment/Revaluation  -      -     (50,244.06)  50,244.10   0.04  

Balance as on Ashad End 2081  15,779,500.00   -     4,949,171.80   49,405,903.52   24,794,771.48   94,929,346.80  

Addition during the Year       

     Acquisition  -     -     -     3,073,542.00   2,012,383.00   5,085,925.00  

     Capitalization       

Disposal during the year      (34,423.03)  (34,423.03) 

Adjustment/Revaluation       

Balance as on Ashad End 2082  15,779,500.00   -     4,949,171.80   52,479,445.52   26,772,731.45   99,980,848.77  

       

Depreciation and Impairment       

Balance as on Ashad end 2080  -     -     4,046,343.14   32,757,538.61   11,954,084.80   48,757,966.56  

Impairment for the year       

Depreciation charge for the Year    177,280.76   3,990,887.24   2,880,221.34   7,048,389.34  

Disposals       

Adjustment       

Balance as on Ashad End 2081  -     -     4,223,623.90   36,748,425.85   14,834,306.14   55,806,355.90  

Impairment for the year       

Depreciation charge for the Year    145,109.58   3,529,647.04   2,662,829.69   6,337,586.31  

Disposals       

Adjustment       

Balance as on Ashad End 2082  -     -     4,368,733.48   40,278,072.89   17,497,135.83   62,143,942.21  

       

Capital Work in Progress  -     -     -     -     -     -    

       

Net Book Value       

As on 31st Ashadh 2078  15,779,500.00   -     1,525,923.82   15,390,867.78   4,536,447.23   37,232,738.82  

As on 32nd Ashadh 2079  15,779,500.00   -     1,220,679.04   17,325,359.84   8,711,378.27   43,036,917.14  

As on 31st Ashadh 2080  15,779,500.00   -     865,529.66   14,893,945.97   8,094,986.58   39,633,962.20  

As on 31st Ashad 2081  15,779,500.00   -     725,547.90   12,657,477.67   9,960,465.34   39,122,990.91  

As on 32nd Ashad 2082  15,779,500.00   -     580,438.32   12,201,372.63   9,275,595.62   37,836,906.57  
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Note :  4.12   

Goodwill and Intangible Assets     

Particulars Goodwill 
Software 

 Total  
Purchased  Developed  

Cost     

Balance as on 31st Ashadh 2080  -     3,013,800.00   -     3,013,800.00  

Addition during the Year     -    

Acquisition     -    

Capitalization     -    

Disposal during the year     -    

Adjustment/Revaluation     -    

Balance as on Ashad End 2081  -     3,013,800.00   -     3,013,800.00  

Addition during the Year     

Acquisition     

Capitalization     

Disposal during the year     

Adjustment/Revaluation     

As on  
32nd Ashad 2082 

 -     3,013,800.00   -     3,013,800.00  

     -    

Ammortization and Impairment     -    

Balance as on 31st Ashadh 2080  -     2,664,627.62   -     2,664,627.62  

Ammortization charge for the Year   185,319.12    185,319.12  

Imapirment for the year     -    

Disposals       -    

Adjustment 
  0.02    0.02  

Balance as on Ashad End 2081  -     2,849,946.76   -     2,849,946.76  

Ammortization charge for the Year     

Imapirment for the year   124,302.12    124,302.12  

Disposals       

Adjustment 
    

Balance as on Ashad End 2082  -     2,974,248.88   -     2,974,248.88  

Capital Work in Progress  -     -     -     -    
     

Net Book Value 
    

As on 31st Ashadh 2078  -     944,318.00   -     944,318.00  

As on 32nd Ashadh 2079  -     725,839.62   -     725,839.62  

As on 31st Ashadh 2080  -     349,172.38   -     349,172.38  

As on 31st Ashad 2081  -     163,853.24   -     163,853.24  

As on  
32nd Ashad 2082 

 -     39,551.12   -     39,551.12  
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 Note No. 4.13  
 

 Deferred Tax  
   

 Deferred tax is calculated on temporary differences between the book values of financial assets/liabilities and tax bases 
of assets/liabilities using the statutory tax rate of 30%. Details as follows:  

Particulars 

As on 32nd Ashad 2082 

Deferred Tax 
Assets 

 Deferred Tax 
Liabilities  

 Net Deferred 
Tax Assets/ 
(Liabilities)  

Deferred tax on temporary differences on following items    
Investment properties (NBA)  -     -     -    

Interest Receivable  -     -     -    

Employees' Defined Benefit Plan  13,263,545.61   -     13,263,545.61  

Provisions ( Bank deposit and advance)  16,201.50   -     16,201.50  

Property and Equipment  (146,466.32)  -     (146,466.32) 

Intangible Assets  109,363.85   -     109,363.85  

Lease Liabilities  7,500,484.46   7,071,157.52   429,326.94  

Other temporary differences  -     -     -    

Deferred tax on temporary differences    13,671,971.58  

Deferred tax on carry forward of unused tax losses  768,575.96    768,575.96  

Net Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) as on 32nd Ashad 2082    14,440,547.55  

Deferred tax asset/(liabilities) as on Shrawan 1, 2081    12,795,662.07  

Deferred Tax income/(expense) during the year    1,644,885.47  

Deferred tax income/(expense) recognised in profit or loss    1,514,092.67  

Deferred tax income/(expense) recognised in other 
comprehensive income    130,792.80  

Deferred tax income/(expense) recognised in directly in equity    -        

Particulars 

As on 31st Ashadh 2081 

Deferred Tax 
Assets 

 Deferred Tax 
Liabilities  

 Net Deferred 
Tax Assets/ 
(Liabilities)  

Deferred tax on temporary differences on following items    
Investment properties (NBA)  -     -     -    

Interest Receivable  -     -     -    

Employees' Defined Benefit Plan  11,194,731.51   -     11,194,731.51  

Provisions ( Bank deposit and advance)  16,201.50   -     16,201.50  

Property and Equipment  (92,400.29)  -     (92,400.29) 

Intangible Assets  109,363.85   -     109,363.85  

Lease Liabilities  7,280,423.72   6,865,522.17   414,901.55  

Other temporary differences  -     -     -    

Deferred tax on temporary differences    11,642,798.13  

Deferred tax on carry forward of unused tax losses  1,152,863.94    1,152,863.94  

Net Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) as on 31st Ashad 2081    12,795,662.07  

Deferred tax asset/(liabilities) as on Shrawan 1, 2080    12,796,155.58  

Deferred Tax income/(expense) during the year    (493.51) 

Deferred tax income/(expense) recognised in profit or loss    339,695.69  

Deferred tax income/(expense) recognised in other 
comprehensive income    (340,189.20) 

Deferred tax income/(expense) recognised in directly in equity    -    
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 Note: 4.14  

  

 Other Assets  
  

Other Asset include accounts receivable, interest receivable, accrued income, prepayments, deposit, deferred employee 
benefits and stationery stock details presented as follows: 

Particulars 
 As on  

32nd Ashad 2082  
 As on  

31st Ashad 2081  

 Assets held for sale   -     -    

 Other non banking assets   -     -    

 Bills receivable   -     -    

 Accounts receivable   46,956,286.80   13,547,451.04  

 Accrued Income    

 Prepayments and deposits   187,650.78   245,687.37  

 Staff Advances   6,544,920.45   5,727,049.38  

 Income tax deposit   400,000   400,000.00  

 Deferred Employee Expenditure    

 ROU Assets   23,570,525   22,885,073.89  

 Consumable Stores   2,395,860   3,063,452.95  

 Total   80,055,242.83   45,868,714.63  

   

Note:4.15   
Due to Bank and Financial Institutions   

Particulars 
 As on  

32nd Ashad 2082  
 As on  

31st Ashad 2081  

 Borrowing from BFIs  -     -    

 Settlement and clearing accounts  
  

Other 
  

Total  -     -    

   

Note:4.16   
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank   

Particulars 
 As on  

32nd Ashad 2082  
 As on  

31st Ashad 2081  

Refinance from NRB  -     -    

Standing liquidity facility  -     -    

Lender of last resort facilty from NRB  -     -    

Securities sold under repurchase agreement  -     -    

Other payable to NRB  -     -    

Total  -     -    
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Note:4.17   
Derivative financial instruments   

Particulars 
 As on  

32nd Ashad 2082  
 As on  

31st Ashad 2081  

Held for trading   

Interest rate swap   -     -    

Currency swap  -     -    

Forward exchange contract  -     -    

Others  -     -    

Held for risk management   

Interest rate swap   -     -    

Currency swap  -     -    

Forward exchange contract  -     -    

Others  -     -    

Total  -     -    

   

Note:4.18   

Deposits from Customers   

All deposits account other than deposit from bank and financial institutions (local and foreign bank and NRB) is presented 
under this head. Details are presented as follows: 

Particulars 
 As on  

32nd Ashad 2082  
 As on  

31st Ashad 2081  

Institutional Customers:   

Term deposits  -     -    

Call Deposits  -     -    

Other  -     -    

Sub total:  -     -    

Individual Customers:   

Term deposits  -     -    

Saving Deposits  -     -    

Savings from Members  4,497,330,470.65   3,733,553,067.08  

Other   

Sub total:  4,497,330,470.65   3,733,553,067.08  

Total  4,497,330,470.65   3,733,553,067.08  

   
Note:4.19   

Borrowing   

The Microfinance has following borrowings as on reporting date.    

Particulars 
 As on  

32nd Ashad 2082  
 As on  

31st Ashad 2081  

Domestic Borrowing:   

Nepal Government   

Other licensed institution  4,192,872,279.95   3,858,862,589.21  

Other    

Sub total  4,192,872,279.95   3,858,862,589.21  

Foreign Borrowing:   

Foreign Bank and Financial Institutions  -     -    

Multilateral Development Bank  -     -    

Other institutions  -     -    

Sub total  -     -    

Total  4,192,872,279.95   3,858,862,589.21  
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Note:4.20   
Provisions   

Particulars 
 As on  

32nd Ashad 2082  
 As on  

31st Ashad 2081  

Provisions for redundancy   -    

Provision for restructuring   -    

Pending legal issues and tax litigation   -    

Onerous contract   -    

Other Provisions  43,524,563.20   10,174,005.00  

Total  43,524,563.20   10,174,005.00  
   

Note:4.20.1   
Movement in provision   

Particulars 
 As on  

32nd Ashad 2082  
 As on  

31st Ashad 2081  

Balance at Beginning  10,174,005.00   54,005.00  

Provisions made during the year  33,350,558.20   10,120,000.00  

Provisions used during the year  -     -    

Provisions reversed during the year  -     -    

Unwind of discount  -     -    

Balance at Ending  43,524,563.20   10,174,005.00  
   

Note:4.21   
Other liabilities   

Particulars 
 As on  

32nd Ashad 2082  
 As on  

31st Ashad 2081  

Liability for employees defined benefit obligations  9,378,617.00   8,914,130.00  

Liability for long-service leave  34,833,201.70   28,401,641.70  

Short-term employee benefits  853,161.14   95,927.01  

Bills Payable  -     -    

Employee Provident fund  -     -    

Creditors and Accruals  53,385,121.62   17,710,798.22  

Interest payable on deposit  -     5,340.09  

Interest payable on borrowing  5,730,360.15   4,023,411.14  

Liabilities on deferred grant income   -    

Unpaid Dividend   -    

Lease Liabilities  25,001,614.85   24,268,079.07  

Employee Bonus Payable  36,802,890.18   19,284,780.13  

Other Miscellaneous liabilities  8,698,199.24   967,013.19  

Payable to Member for Service Charge Refund  4,886,625.75   25,054,241.75  

Total  179,569,791.64   128,725,362.30  

 

Note: 4.21.1 
Defined benefit obligation 

Particulars 
As on  

32nd Ashad 2082 
As on  

31st Ashad 2081 

Present value of funded obligations   

Present value of non-funded obligations  9,378,617.00   8,914,130.00  

Total present value of obligations  9,378,617.00   8,914,130.00  

Fair value of plan assets   

Present value of net obligations  9,378,617.00   8,914,130.00  

Recognised liability for defined benefit obligation  9,378,617.00   8,914,130.00  
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Note:4.21.2   

Plan Assets   

Particulars 
 As on  

32nd Ashad 2082  
 As on  

31st Ashad 2081  

Equity securities  -     -    

Government bonds   -     -    

Bank deposits  -     -    

Other  -     -    

Total  -     -    

   

Note:4.21.3   

Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligations   

Particulars 
 As on  

32nd Ashad 2082  
 As on  

31st Ashad 2081  

Defined benefit obligation at Beginning  8,914,130.00   9,241,106.00  

Actuarial losses/(gain)  435,976.00   (1,133,964.00) 

Benefit paid by the plan  (1,164,644.00)  (172,186.00) 

Current service cost  438,691.00   232,731.00  

Interest cost  754,464.00   746,443.00  

Defined benefit obligation at Ending  9,378,617.00   8,914,130.00  

   

Note:4.21.4   

Movement in the fair value of plan assets   

Particulars 
 As on  

32nd Ashad 2082  
 As on  

31st Ashad 2081  

Fair value of plan assets at Begining  -     -    

Contributions paid into the plan  -     -    

Benefit paid during the year  -     -    

Actuarial (losses) gains  -     -    

Expected return on plan assets  -     -    

Fair value of plan assets at Ending  -     -    

   

Note:4.21.5   

Amount recognised in profit or loss   

Particulars 
 As on  

32nd Ashad 2082  
 As on  

31st Ashad 2081  

Current service cost  8,943,275.00   11,915,326.00  

Interest on obligation  3,128,569.00   2,789,153.00  

Expected return on plan assets   -    

Actuarial loss/(gain)  (923,699.00)  (9,613,622.00) 

Total  11,148,145.00   5,090,857.00  

   

Note:4.21.6   

Amount recognised in other comprehensive income   

Particulars 
 As on  

32nd Ashad 2082  
 As on  

31st Ashad 2081  

Acturial (gain)/loss  435,976.00   (1,133,964.00) 

Total  435,976.00   (1,133,964.00) 
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Note:4.21.7   

Actuarial assumptions   

Particulars 
 As on  

32nd Ashad 2082  
 As on  

31st Ashad 2081  

Discount rate 0.09  0.09  

Expected return on plan assets   -  

Future salary increase 0.05  0.06  

Withdrawal rate 0.15  0.11  

Total  0.29   0.26  

   

Note:4.21.8   

Long-service leave   

Particulars 
 As on  

32nd Ashad 2082  
 As on  

31st Ashad 2081  

Present value of funded obligations   -    

Present value of non-funded obligations  34,833,201.70   28,401,641.70  

Total present value of obligations  34,833,201.70   28,401,641.70  

Fair value of plan assets  -     -    

Present value of net obligations  34,833,201.70   28,401,641.70  

Recognised liability for long-service leave  34,833,201.70   28,401,641.70  

   

Note:4.21.9   

Movement in the present value of long-service leave   

Particulars 
 As on  

32nd Ashad 2082  
 As on  

31st Ashad 2081  

Other long-term obligation at Beginning  28,401,641.70   25,811,703.39  

Actuarial losses/(gain)  (923,699.00)  (9,613,622.00) 

Benefit paid by the plan  (3,523,430.00)  (1,521,744.69) 

Current service cost  8,504,584.00   11,682,595.00  

Interest cost  2,374,105.00   2,042,710.00  

Other long-term obligation at Ending  34,833,201.70   28,401,641.70  

   

Note:4.22   

Debt securities issued   

Particulars 
 As on  

32nd Ashad 2082  
 As on  

31st Ashad 2081  

Debt securities issued designated at fair value through profit or loss  -     -    

Debt securities issued at amortised cost  -     -    

Total  -     -    

   

Note:4.23   

Subordinated liabilities   

Particulars 
 As on  

32nd Ashad 2082  
 As on  

31st Ashad 2081  

Redeemable preference shares  -     -    

Irredemable cummulative preference shares(liabilities component)  -     -    

Other  -     -    

Total  -     -    
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Note:4.24   

Share capital  (Figures in NPR)  

Particulars 
 As on  

32nd Ashad 2082  
 As on  

31st Ashad 2081  

Ordinary shares  783,924,403.00   671,104,993.00  

Convetible preference share(Equity component)  -     -    

Irredemable preference share(Equity component)  -     -    

Perpetual debt(Equity component only)  -     -    

Total  783,924,403.00   671,104,993.00  

   
Note:4.24.1   
Ordinary shares   

Particulars 
 As on  

32nd Ashad 2082  
 As on  

31st Ashad 2081  

Authorized capital:   
 ordinary share of Rs.100 each  800,000,000.00   800,000,000.00  

Issued capital:   
 ordinary share of Rs.100 each  783,924,403.00   690,682,293.00  

Subscribed and paid of capital:   
 ordinary share of Rs.100 each  783,924,403.00   671,104,993.00  

Total  783,924,403.00   671,104,993.00  

 

Note:4.24.2     

Ordinary share ownership     

Particulars 

 As on  
32nd Ashad 2082  

 As on 31st Ashad 2081  

 Percent    Amount   Percent    Amount  

Domestic ownership(promoter) 52.72% 413,300,681.00  54.26% 364,141,569.20  

Nepal Government     

"A" class licensed institutions     

Other licensed institutions     

Other institutions 0.63%  4,951,600.00  0.65%  4,362,182.45  

Other 52.09%  408,349,081.00  53.61%  359,779,386.75  

     

Domestic ownership(public) 47.28% 370,623,722.00  45.74% 306,963,423.80  

Nepal Government     

"A" class licensed institution     

Other licensed institutions     

Other institutions     

Other 47.28% 370,623,722.00  45.74% 306,963,423.80  

Foreign ownership Promoter     

Foreign ownership public   -      -    

Total 100.00% 783,924,403.00  100.00% 671,104,993.00  
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Share Details of Person/Group/Firm/Company holding 0.5% or more share out of  
Paid Up Capital NRS 78,39,24,403. 

 

S.N. Name % No. of Shares Amount 

1 SHYAM PRASAD KHATIWADA  1.89   148,503.00   14,850,300.00  

2 SHIVA KAMAL GURUNG  1.60   125,502.00   12,550,200.00  

3 GANESH SUBEDI  1.47   115,203.00   11,520,300.00  

4 SAGAR RAJ JOSHI  1.46   114,657.00   11,465,700.00  

5 ANITA BARAL  1.31   102,348.00   10,234,800.00  

6 DEEPAK KUMAR SHRESTHA  1.23   96,503.00   9,650,300.00  

7 UDAY RAJ KHATIWADA  1.22   95,374.00   9,537,400.00  

8 SASHIKANTA AGRAWAL  1.17   91,684.00   9,168,400.00  

9 MADHAV BHANDARI  0.95   74,537.00   7,453,700.00  

10 SAROJINI SHRESTHA  0.91   71,190.00   7,119,000.00  

11 SUBHASH DIXIT  0.87   67,948.00   6,794,800.00  

12 RENU KARKI  0.87   67,941.00   6,794,100.00  

13 ROSHAN SUBEDI  0.84   66,009.00   6,600,900.00  

14 BASHANTA KC  0.84   65,990.00   6,599,000.00  

15 RUCHILA UPRETY  0.80   62,498.00   6,249,800.00  

16 GAURI SHRESTHA  0.76   59,300.00   5,930,000.00  

17 HOMA KANTA CHAULAGAI  0.71   56,039.00   5,603,900.00  

18 PRAKASH PANT  0.67   52,389.00   5,238,900.00  

19 BINITA ADHIKARI  0.66   52,069.00   5,206,900.00  

20 NEIGHBOURHOOD SOCIETY SERVICE CENTER  0.63   49,672.00   4,967,200.00  

21 BIMALA JOSHI  0.63   49,516.00   4,951,600.00  

22 MADAN KUMAR DANGOL  0.63   49,514.00   4,951,400.00  

23 NILAM KUMAR SINGH DANGOL  0.61   47,815.00   4,781,500.00  

24 GYANENDRA PRASAD PANDE  0.58   45,300.00   4,530,000.00  

25 PUSHPA JOSHI  0.58   45,224.00   4,522,400.00  

26 KOMANANDA ADHIKARI  0.58   45,095.00   4,509,500.00  

27 ARJUN PANT  0.57   44,885.00   4,488,500.00  

28 KALPANA JOSHI SHRESTHA  0.54   42,556.00   4,255,600.00  

29 BISHNU KATTEL  0.54   42,523.00   4,252,300.00  

30 BEGRAJ JOSHEE  0.53   41,784.00   4,178,400.00  

31 TANKA MANI KAFLE  0.50   39,033.00   3,903,300.00  
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Note:4.25   

Reserves   

Following reserves are maintained by the Microfinance.   

Particulars 
 As on  

32nd Ashad 2082  
 As on  

31st Ashad 2081  

Statutory General Reserve  216,991,266.83   172,867,196.25  

Capital  reserve  -     -    

Exchange equalization reserve  -     -    

Investment adjustment reserve  10,000.00   10,000.00  

Corporate social responsibility reserve  5,166,504.44   3,153,699.91  

Client Protection Fund  18,291,916.03   25,995,168.78  

Capital redemption reserve  -     -    

Assets revaluation reserve  -     -    

Regulatory reserve  35,581,775.48   37,457,007.40  

Fair value reserve  -     -    

Dividend equalization reserve  -     -    

Staff Training Fund  4,033,640.76   3,942,286.24  

Deferred Tax Reserve  -     -    

Actuarial Gain  1,575,261.04   1,880,444.24  

Special reserve  -     -    

Debenture redemption reserve  -     -    

Other reserve  -     -    

Total  281,650,364.57   245,305,802.82  

 

   

Note No. 4.26 
  

Contingent Liabilities and Commitment 
  

Particulars 
 As on  

32nd Ashad 2082  
 As on  

31st Ashad 2081  

Contingent Liabilities   -     -    

Undrawn and undisbursed facilities  -     -    

Capital commitment  -     -    

Lease commitment  -     -    

Litigation  -     -    

others  -     -    

Total  -     -    
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Note No. 4.26.1   

Capital commitments   

Capital expenditure approved by relevant authority of the Microfinance but provision has not been made in financial 
statements 

Particulars 
 As on  

32nd Ashad 2082  
 As on  

31st Ashad 2081  

Capital commitments in relation to Property and Equipment   

Approved and contracted for  -     -    

Approved but not contracted for  -     -    

Sub Total  -     -    

Capital commitments in relation to Intangible assets   

Approved and contracted for  -     -    

Approved but not contracted for  -     -    

Sub Total  -     -    

Total  -     -    

   
Note No. 4.26.2   

Lease Commitments   

Particulars 
 As on  

32nd Ashad 2082  
 As on  

31st Ashad 2081  

Not later than 1 year  -     -    

Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years  -     -    

Later than 5 years  -     -    

Grand Total  -     -    

   
Note No. 4.26.3   

Litigation   
The Microfinance is currently facing a tax litigation in the Revenue Tribunal against the Inland Revenue Department, 
for which it has made a deposit of NRs. 400,000 in the Tribunal. The management expects that the outflow of economic 
resources embodying economic benefits for the settlement of the litigation is remote. 

 

 

Note: 4.27   
Interest Income   

Interest income include interest income on loan and advance, investment securities except on those investment securities 
measure at fair value through profit or loss, cash and cash equivalent, due from BFIs, loan and advances to staff etc. 
Details presented as follows: 

Particulars 
 For the year Ended 

32nd Ashad 2082  
 For the year ended 

31st Ashad 2081  

Cash and cash equivalents  3,791,413.17   2,838,491.25  

Due from Nepal Rastra Bank   

Placement with Banks and Financial Institutions   
Loans and Advances to Financial Institutions   
Loans and advances to customers  1,266,234,762.74   1,094,097,098.08  

Investment securities   

Loans and advances to staff   

Other   

Total Interest Income  1,270,026,175.91   1,096,935,589.33  
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Note: 4.28   
Interest Expense   

Interest expenses include interest accrued on deposits collected and debt securities issued. Details presented as follows: 

Particulars 
 For the year Ended 

32nd Ashad 2082  
 For the year ended 

31st Ashad 2081  

Due to Bank and Financial Institutions   
Due to Nepal Rastra Bank   

Deposits from customers  346,349,710.17   303,565,617.00  

Borrowing  310,416,726.85   363,892,083.51  

Debt securities issued   

Subordinated liabilities   

Other  3,867,865.62   3,821,276.62  

Total Interest Expenses  660,634,302.64   671,278,977.13  

   
Note: 4.29   
Fees and Commission Income   

Fees and commission income include management fee, service charges, syndication fee, forex transaction commission 
etc. 
Details presented as follows:  

Particulars 
 For the year Ended 

32nd Ashad 2082  
 For the year ended 

31st Ashad 2081  

Loan Administration fees   
Service fees  87,919,937.00   76,038,640.00  

Commitment fees   
Card Issuance fees   
pepayment and swap fees   
Remittance fees  100.00   450.00  

Brokerage fees   
Other Fees and Commission Income  10,573,569.05   8,318,501.81  

Total Fees and Commission Income  98,493,606.05   84,357,591.81  

 

Note: 4.30   
Fees and Commission Expense   
Fees and commission expense include ATM management fees, card related fees, remittance fees & commissions/TT/swift 
charges etc. 
Details presented as follows: 

Particulars 
 For the year Ended 

32nd Ashad 2082  
 For the year ended 

31st Ashad 2081  

Brokerage  -     -    

ATM management fees  -     -    

VISA/Master card fees  -     -    

Guarantee commission  -     -    

DD/TT/Swift fees  -     -    

Remittance fees and commission  -     -    

Other Fees and Commission Expense  3,490,869.29   4,199,133.00  

Total Fees and Commission Expenses  3,490,869.29   4,199,133.00  
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Note: 4.31   

Net trading income   

Particulars 
 For the year Ended 

32nd Ashad 2082  
 For the year ended 

31st Ashad 2081  

Changes in fair value of trading assets  -     -    

Gain/loss on disposal of trading assets  -     -    

Interest income on trading assets  -     -    

Dividend income on trading assets  -     -    

Gain/Loss Foreign Exchange Transaction  -     -    

Other  -     -    

Total Net Trading Income  -     -    

   

Note: 4.32   

Other operating income   

Particulars 
 For the year Ended 

32nd Ashad 2082  
 For the year ended 

31st Ashad 2081  

Foreign Exchange Revaulation Gain  -     -    

Gain/loss on sale of investment Securities  -     -    

Fair value gain/loss on investment properties  -     -    

Dividend on equity instruments  -     -    

Gain/loss on sale of property and equipment  19,616.97   -    

Gain/loss on sale of investment property  -     -    

Operating lease income  -     -    

Gain on Bargain Purchase  -     -    

Gain/Loss on sale of gold and silver  -     -    

Other  1,383,005.18   2,239,976.03  

Total   1,402,622.15   2,239,976.03  

 

Note: 4.33   
Impairment Charge/(reversal) for loan and other losses   
Detail presented as follows:   

Particulars 
 For the year Ended 

32nd Ashad 2082  
 For the year ended 

31st Ashad 2081  

Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and advances to B/FIs   
Impairment charge/(reversal) on loan and advances to customer  16,015,867.66   58,306,591.87  

Impairment charge/(reversal) on financial Investment   -    

Impairment charge/(reversal) on placement with bank and financial 
institutions   -    

Impairment charge/(reversal) on property and equipment   -    

Impairment charge/(reversal) on goodwill and intangible assets   -    

Impairment charge/(reversal) on investment properties   -    

Impairment charge/(reversal) on current assets  33,350,558.20   10,120,000.00  

Total   49,366,425.86   68,426,591.87  

 
The impairment on current assets comprises loss allowance recognized against receivables from the Branch Manager and 
other staff of the Hetauda Branch following the identification of misappropriation of funds. 
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Note: 4.34   

Personnel Expense   

All expenses related to employees of the Microfianance are included under this head. Details presented as follows: 

Particulars 
 For the year Ended 

32nd Ashad 2082  
 For the year ended 

31st Ashad 2081  

Salary  100,812,407.39   91,408,054.43  

Allowances  80,334,245.17   79,841,363.00  

Gratuity expenses  438,691.00   232,731.00  

Provident fund   -    

Social Security Fund  20,470,139.29   18,535,905.99  

Uniform   

Training & Development Expense  5,046,128.00   4,985,793.00  

Leave encashment  7,580,885.00   2,068,973.00  

Medical   

Employee Insurance  149,828.00   156,126.56  

Employees Incentive  -     -    

Cash-settled share-based payments  -     -    

Pension Expense  -     -    

Voluntary Resignation scheme  -     -    

Finance expenses under NFRS  3,128,569.00   2,789,153.00  

Other Expenses Related to Staff  991,613.95   -    

Sub-Total  218,952,506.80   200,018,099.98  

Employees Bonus  36,802,890.18   19,284,780.13  

Total   255,755,396.98   219,302,880.11  

 

Note: 4.35   

Other operating expense   
Operating expense other than those relating to personnel expense are recognized are presented in this head.  
Details presented as follows:   

Particulars 
 For the year Ended 

32nd Ashad 2082  

 For the year 
ended 31st Ashad 

2081  

Directors' fee  976,000.00   890,500.00  

Directors' expense  589,058.00   755,486.54  

Auditors' remuneration  2,146,998.00   1,874,000.00  

Other audit related expense  -     185,848.00  

Professional and legal expense  7,648.00   -    

Office administration expense  63,180,672.74   49,261,184.50  

Lease expense on short-term lease  2,871,200.00   2,096,110.00  

Depreciation on Right-of-use assets   -    

Operating expense of investment properties   -    

Corporate Social Responsibility Expense  193,399.00   175,706.00  

Onerous lease provision   

Other Miscellaneous Operating Expenses  12,844,305.51   12,031,596.13  

Total   82,809,281.25   67,270,431.17  
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Note No 4.35.1 Office Administation Expenses   

Particulars 
 For the year Ended 

32nd Ashad 2082  

 For the year 
ended 31st Ashad 

2081  

Light Electicity and Water Expenses  2,360,275.82   2,149,063.00  

Repair and maintenance    

(a) Building  -     -    

(b) Vehicles  82,075.00   199,829.00  

(c) Computer and accessories  169,326.00   152,602.00  

(d) Office Equipment and furniture  49,838.00   94,848.00  

(e) Other  114,684.00   102,697.50  

 Insurance   558,472.64   590,828.04  

 Postage, Telex, Telephone, Fax   7,496,178.59   7,328,622.19  

 Printing and stationery   4,151,046.93   4,213,639.91  

News paper, Books and Journals   7,123.00   3,405.00  

Advertisement   1,651,760.00   299,955.00  

 Donation    

 Security Expense    

 Deposit and Loan Guarantee Premium   36,407,408.16   24,308,318.37  

 Travelling Allowance and Expenses  2,758,535.00   3,762,466.00  

 Entertainment    

 Annual/special general meeting expense   397,229.00   321,761.00  

 Other -Annual Function Expenses   

 Other -Office Expenses   

(a) Miscellaneous  6,429,437.27   5,166,435.49  

(b) Lunch Expenses  372,691.00   396,376.00  

(c) Fines and Penalties  53,880.00   50,338.00  

(d) RTS Expenses  120,712.33   120,000.00  

Total   63,180,672.74   49,261,184.50  

 
Note No 4.35.2 Other Miscellaneous Operating Expenses   

Particulars 
 For the year Ended 

32nd Ashad 2082  
 For the year ended 

31st Ashad 2081  

Technical Fee  412,495.51   357,342.63  

Fuel  8,236,182.00   7,461,615.50  

Share Issue Expenses  -     -    

Software Hosting Charge  3,475,428.00   3,475,428.00  

Renewal Fee  720,200.00   737,210.00  

Total   12,844,305.51   12,031,596.13  

   
Note: 4.36   

Depreciation & Amortisation   
Depreciation is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its useful life. Amortization is the 
systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an intangible asset over its useful life. Depreciation and amortization 
include depreciation on plant and equipment & amortization of intangible assets. 
 

Details presented as follows: 

Particulars 
 For the year Ended 

32nd Ashad 2082  
 For the year ended 

31st Ashad 2081  

Depreciation on Property and Equipment  6,337,586.31   7,048,389.34  

Depreciation on Right of use assets  15,108,131.17   15,327,692.36  

Amortisation of intangible assets  124,302.12   185,319.12  

Total   21,570,019.60   22,561,400.82  
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Note: 4.37  
Non operating income 

Particulars  For the year Ended 
32nd Ashad 2082  

 For the year ended 
31st Ashad 2081  

Recovery of loan written off   

Other Income  34,929,903.16   43,648,074.08  

Total   34,929,903.16   43,648,074.08  

   

Note: 4.38   

Non Operating Expense   

The incomes that have no direct relationship with the operation of transactions are presented under this head.  

Particulars 
 For the year Ended 

32nd Ashad 2082  
 For the year ended 

31st Ashad 2081  

Loan Written Off  -     -    

Redundancy provision  -     -    

Expenses of restructuring  -     -    

Other expense : Merger & Acquisition related  -     578,796.00  

Total   -     578,796.00  

 
Note: 4.39   
Income Tax Expense   

Particulars 
 For the year Ended 

32nd Ashad 2082  
 For the year ended 

31st Ashad 2081  

Current Tax Expense   

Current year  111,252,846.42   55,512,415.24  

Adjustment for prior years  866,905.00   6,984,633.90  

Deferred tax expense   

Origination and reversal of temporary differences  (1,514,092.67)  (339,695.69) 

Changes in tax rate   

Recognition of previously unrecognised tax losses   

Total income tax expense  110,605,658.75   62,157,353.45  

 

Note : 4.39.1   

Reconciliation of tax expense as per taxable profit and accounting profit  

Particulars 
 For the year Ended 

32nd Ashad 2082  
 For the year ended 

31st Ashad 2081  

Profit before tax   331,226,011.64   173,563,021.15  

Tax amount at tax rate of 30%  99,367,803.49   52,068,906.35  

Tax effect of employee benefit expense  1,938,021.30   1,019,077.89  

Effect of Depreciation expense  (54,467.91)  (70,856.85) 

Effect of Repair and Improvement expense  401.88   32,853.89  

Effect of Interest Income Recognised as per Accrual Basis 
  -    

Effect of Lease accounting  429,326.94   (257,091.26) 

Carried forward loss  (384,287.98)  (384,287.98) 

Other expenses disallowed as per tax  9,956,048.70   3,103,813.20  

Total income tax expense  111,252,846.42   55,512,415.24  

Effective tax rate  0.34   0.32  
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5. Disclosure and Additional Information      

      1.  Liquidity Risk      

Risk is inherent in the Financial Institution's activities but is managed through a process of ongoing identification, 
measurement and monitoring, subject to risk limits and other controls. This process of risk management is critical to the 
Financial Institution's continuing profitability and each indviduals within the Financial Institution is accountable for the risk 
exposures relating to his or her responsbilities. The microfinance is mainly exposed to;

      2.  Interest Rate Risk      

5.1 Risk Management & Risk Management Famework      

      4.  Operational Risk      

The microfinance maintains a portfolio of highly marketable and diverse assets assumed to be easily liquidated in the event 
of an unforeseen interruption of expected cash flow. The microfinance also has committed lines of credit facilities that could 
be utilized to meet liquidity needs. Further, the microfinance maintains a statutory deposit with in "A" Class financial 
institution equal to Approx 12.71% of the member deposit and as cash reserve ratio equal to Approx 0.64% of the member's 
deposit and lending from different institutions which also mitigate the bar set by Nepal Rastra Bank. In accordance with the 
microfinance's policy, the liquidity position is assessed and managed under a variety of scenarios, giving due consideration 
to stress factors relating to both the market in general and specific to the financial institution. The most important of these is 
to maintain the required ration of liquid assets to liabilities, to meet the regulatory requirement. Liquid assets consist of cash, 
short-term bank deposits and liquid debt securities available for immediate sale.      

Interest rate risk is the potential that a change in overall rate will reduce the value of a bond or other fixed-rate investment. 
The Microfinance will take the following measures to minimize the risk arising from interest rate:

Liquidity risk is the risk that the microfinance will encounter difficulties in meeting its financial commitments that are 
settled by delivering cash or other financial assets. Hence the microfinance may be unabale to meet its payment obligations 
when they fall due under both normal and stress circumstanes. To limit this risk , management has arranged diversified 
funding sources in addition to its core deposit base, and adopted a policy of continuously managing assets with liquidity in 
mind and of mointoring future cash flows and liquidity on a daily basis. The microfinance has developed internal control 
process and contingency plans for managing liquidity risk. This incorporates an assessment of expected cash flows and the 
availability of high-grade collateral which could be used to secure additional funding if required.

The Board of Directors have overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the microfinance's risk 
management framework. Risk Management Committee is responsible for overall risk management of the microfinance 
which includes managing, assesing, identifying, monitoring and reducing pertinent macro and micro-economics level 
business risks that could interfare with microfinance's objectives and goals and whether the microfinance is in substantial 
compliance with its internal operating policies and other applicable regulations and procedures, external, legal, regulatory 
or contractual requirements on a continuous basis. Further, Risk management committee ensures integration of all major 
risks in capital assesment process. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed annually to reflect changes in 
market conditions, products and services offered. The microfinance, through its training and management standards and 
procedures, continuously updates and maintains a disciplined and constructive control environment, in which all employess 
are assigned and made to understand their respective roles and responsibilities.    

b.  When analyzing the differences in the situation where the payment term of assets and liabilities do not match, the 
amount of cash balance and non-payment of interest has been included.

a.  Only assets and liabilities affected by changes in interest rate has been included in the assets and liabilities.

5.1.1 Liquidity Risk      

5.1.2 Interest Rate Risk      

5.1.3 Credit Risk      

      3.  Credit Risk      

The risk of potential loss because of counterparty failures to meet its obligations to pay the credit obtained from 
microfinance as per agreed terms is known as credit risk. A loan application from which has been used by microfinance, 
includes all the relevant data and information required for assessment of borrowers' background, business and experience, 
financial statement of borrower, credibility, sector wise analysis etc.

c.  In order to manage and mimimize the interest rate risk, the microfinance has prepared quartely (October, January, 
April and July mid ) details and submitted to the microfinance supervision Department of Nepal Rastra Bank within 
fifteen days after the end of the quarter.

90
th 

17 Annual Report-2081/082

æ;'v / ;d[l4sf] cfwf/, ;a}sf] :j/f]huf/Æ
:j/f]huf/ n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf ln=

Swarojgar Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd.



The Microfinance's capital management policies and practices support its business strategy and ensure that it is adquately 
capitilized to withstand even in several macroeconomic downturns. The microfinance is a licenced institutions providing 
financial services therefore it must comply with capital requirement of Nepal Rastra Bank.

The following table shows an analysis financial instruments recorded at fair value by level of the fair value 
hierarchy:

Level 1:-      

The risk that arries during day to day operations of the microfinance is called operating risk. In context of microfinance, 
small but large number of transactions have been done, decentralized working methods have been adopted, more focus has 
been given on area expansion for geo-graphy versatility, priority has been given to cost reduction, due to lack of integrated 
information system, expansion of program in rural areas with lack of infrastructure and lack of appropriate technology to 
provide service as per needs of customer, there is always a possibility of operation risk in the program. The microfinance has 
arrange the necessary staff to carry out various responsibilities for daily operation. All the employess have to carry out their 
post responsibilities in the working process within the policy rules specified by the microfinance. But sometimes due to 
negligence of the stakeholders and personal interest attatched with them, the microfinance is at risk when it goes beyond the 
policy rules. This type of risk is likely to reduce the profitablity of microfinance and much more increse in reputational risk 
of microfinance. Since the operational risk is due to internal factors, this risk can be reduced only if the internal control 
system is strengthened.      

5.1.4 Operational Risk      

Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the assets or liabilities 
either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for asset and liability.      

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at 
the measurement date. Held for trading and available for sale investments have been recorded using Level 1 inputs.

Level 3:-      

5.1.5 Fair Value of Financial Assets and Liabilities      

Fair value is a market based measurement, not an entity specific measurement. For some assets and liabilities, observable 
market transactions or market information might be available. For other assets and liabilities, observable market transaction 
and market information might not be available. However, the objective of a fair value measurement in both cases are the 
same to estimate the price at which an orderly transaction to sell the assets or to transfer the liability would take place 
between market participants at the measurement date under current market conditions (i.e., an exit price at the measurement 
date from the perspective of a market participant that holds the asset or owes the liability).

Fair values are determined according to the following hierarchy:      

Level 2:-      

5.2  Capital Management    

Particulars 
2081.082  2080.081  

Level 1 Level 2  Level 3   Level 1  Level 2  Level 3  

Financial Instrument available for sales       

Quoted Equities       

Unquoted Equities       

Centre for Microfinance Pvt Ltd   10,000.00     10,000.00   

(100 ordinary shares @ NPR.100 Paid up)       

Nepal Finsoft Company Ltd       

(10,000 Ordinary Shares @ NPR.100 Paid up)   1,000,000.00     1,000,000.00   

Quoted Mutual Funds       

Total   1,010,000.00    -     1,010,000.00   -    
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Nepal Rastra Bank has directed the microfinance to develop own internal policy, procedure and structure to manage all 
material risk inherent in business for assessing capital adequacy in relation to the risk profiles as well as strategies for 
maintaining capital levels. This includes basic requirements of having good governance, efficient process of managing all 
material risks and an effective regime for assessing and maintaining adequate capital. The microfinance has BODs approved 
risk management policies for proper governance as guided by Nepal Rastra Bank.

ii)  Quantitative disclosures    

(i)  Qualitative disclosures    

     
Capital Structure and Capital Adequacy 

 As on 32nd Ashad, 2082  

• Tire 1 Capital and a breakdown of its components: 

Particulars  Amount(NPR.)  

Paid up Equity Share Capital  783,924,403.00  

Irredeemable Non-cumulative preferance shares  -    

Shares Premium  -    

Proposed Bonus Equity Shares  -    

Statutory General Reserves  216,991,266.83  

Retained Earnings  170,862,494.09  

Unaudited current year cumulative profit  -    

Special Reserve Fund  -    

Capital Adjustment Reserves  -    

Dividend Equalization Reserves  -    

Capital Redemption Reserve Fund  -    

Deferred Tax Reserve  
Bargain purchase gain recognized  -    

Less: Goodwill  -    

Less: Intrangible Assets  (39,551.12) 

Less: Deferred Tax Assets  (14,440,547.55) 

Less: Investment in equity of licenced financial Institutions  -    

Less: Investment in equity of institutions with financial interests  -    

Less: Investment in equity of institutions in excess of limits  -    

Less: Investments arising out of underwrritings commitments  -    

Less: The amount of Land purchased for self-use without following the instructions of NRB.  (15,779,500.00) 

Less: Reciprocal crossholidings  -    

Less: Others Deductions  -    

Total Tire 1 Capital  1,141,518,565.25  

 
• Tire 2 Capital and a breakdown of its components: 

Particulars  Amount(NPR.)  

Cumulative and /or Redeemable Preference Shares  -    

Subordinated Term Debt  -    

Hybrid Capital Instrument  -    

General Loan loss provision  28,756,394.83  

Exchange Equalization Reserve  -    

Investment Adjustment Reserves  10,000.00  

Assets Revaluation Reserves  -    

Special Reserve Fund  
Total Tire 2 Capital  28,766,394.83  

 • Total Qualifying Capital  
 

Particulars   Amount  (NPR.)  

Core Capital (Tire 1)   1,141,518,565.25  

Supplementary Capital (Tire 2)   28,766,394.83  

Total Capital Fund   1,170,284,960.08  
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Statement of Risk Weighted Assets (RWA) 
As on 32nd Ashad, 2082 

A. On- Balance Sheet Items 

S.N. Description 
Weight 

(%) 
Current Period 

Amount(NPR.) RWA 

1  Cash Balance 0  750,368.00   -    

2  Gold (Tradable) 0  -     -    

3  NRB Balance 0  2,950,000.00   -    

4   to Govt. Bond 0  -     -    

5  Investment to NRB Bond 0  -     -    

6  Loan Againts Own FD 0  -     -    

7  Loan Againts Govt. bond 0  -     -    

8  Accured Interest on Govt. Bond 0  -     -    

9  Investment to Youth and Small Enterpreneure Self-employment Fund 0  -     -    

10  Balance on domestic banks and financial institutions 20  384,004,294.89   76,800,858.98  

11  Loan againts other's and financial institution's FD 20  -     -    

12  Foreign bank balance 20  -     -    

13  Money at Call 20  344,150,264.19   68,830,052.84  

14  Loan against internationally rated bank guarantee 20  -     -    

15  Investment to internationally rated banks 20  -     -    

16  Inter-bank Lending 20  -     -    

17  Investment on shares/debentures/bonds 100  1,010,000.00   1,010,000.00  

18  Other Investments 100  -     -    

19  Loans & Advances, bill purchase/discount 100  9,434,405,371.36   9,434,405,371.36  

20  Fixed assets 100  37,836,906.57   37,836,906.57  

21  Net interest receivables (Total IR-8-Interest Suspense) 100  82,203,508.21   82,203,508.21  

22  Net Non-Banking Assets 100  -     -    

23  Others Assets (Except advance payment on tax) 100  80,055,242.83   80,055,242.83  

24  Real estate / residential housing loans exceeding the limits 100  -     -    

Total On-Balance-sheet Items (A)  10,367,365,956.05  9,781,141,940.78  

B. Off- Balance Sheet Items    

S.N. Description Weight (%) 
Current Period 

Amount(NPR.) RWA 

1  Bills Collection 0  -     -    

2  Forward foreign exchange contract 10  -     -    

3  L/C with maturity less than six months (Outstanding Value) 20  -     -    

4  Gurantee againts International rated bank's counter guarantee 20  -     -    

5  L/C with maturity more than six months (Outstanding value) 50  -     -    

6  Bid Bond, performance bond ande underwriting 50  -     -    

7  Loan sale with repurchase aggrement 50  -     -    

8  Advance payment guarantee 100  -     -    

9  Financial and other guarantee 100  -     -    

10  Irrevocable Loan commitment 100  -     -    

11  Possible liabilities for income tax 100  -     -    

12  All type of possible liabilities including acceptance 100  -     -    

13  Rediscounted bills 100  -     -    

14  Unpaid portion of partly paid share investment 100  -     -    

15  Unpaid guarantee claims 200  -     -    

16  Amount to be maintained for operational risk (2% of Total Assets) 100  207,347,319.12   207,347,319.12  

 Total Off-Balance sheet Items (B)   207,347,319.12   207,347,319.12  

 Total Risk Weighted Assets (A±B)    9,988,489,259.90       
C. Total Capital Fund (Tire 1 Capital + Tire 2 Capital)  1,170,284,960.08       
D. Minimum capital fund to be maintained based on Risk Weighted Assets 

1 Minimum Capital Fund Required (8% of RWA)  799,079,140.79  

2 Minimum Core Capital Required (4% of RWA)  399,539,570.40  

3 Capital Fund Maintained (in %) 11.72% 

4 Core Capital Maintained (in %) 11.43%      
iii) Compliance with External Requirement    
The Microfinance has complied with externally imposed capital requirements to which it is subject and there are no such consequence 
where the microfinance has not complied with those requirement. 
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 •   Lumbini Province        

5.4.3. Measurement of operating segment profit or loss, assets and liabilities

 •   Madhesh Province        

 •   Gandaki Province        

5.4.2 Information about profit or loss, assets and liabilities         

 •  Koshi Province        

 •   Far West Province        

 •   Bagmati Province        

5.4.1. General information

 A component of the Microfinance that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur losses, 
including revenue and expenses that relate to transactions with any other components of the microfinance, whose 
operating results are reviewed regularly by the management to make decisions about resources allocation to each 
segment and assess its performance, and for which discrete financial information is available is termed as operating 
segment.

 Based on the nature of the business, transactions, products and services, the management have identified seven 
reporting segments of the microfinance for the purpose of financial reporting:

 •   Karnali Province        

Note 5.4   Operating segment Information

 The Microfinance has determined segments based on the provinces.

Particulars 
Koshi 

Province 
Madhesh 
Province 

 Bagmati 
Province  

 Gandaki 
Province  

 Lumbini 
Province  

 Karnali 
Province  

 Sudurpaschim 
Province  

 Total  

Interest Revenue  64,547,083.81 433,256,979.33 425,444,109.73 110,583,894.40 148,829,095.54 26,820,718.67 57,234,251.75 1,266,716,133.23 

Interest Expense  (7,732,368.00) (118,785,773.00) (439,595,314.02) (30,816,606.00) (45,576,262.00) (2,777,067.00) (11,483,047.00) (656,766,437.02) 

Intersegment 
Revenue  

- - 502,300,407.56 - 2,293,326.27 - - 504,593,733.83 

Intersegment 
Expense  

(42,016,974.14) (175,130,661.48) (144,505,668.64) (43,920,625.34) (56,753,516.14) (15,351,807.69) (26,914,480.40) (504,593,733.83) 

Net Interest 
Revenue  

14,797,741.67 139,340,544.85 343,643,534.63 35,846,663.06 48,792,643.67 8,691,843.98 18,836,724.35 609,949,696.21 

Depreciation and 
Amortization  

(531,513.19) (1,979,599.94) (2,215,791.77) (458,899.80) (731,909.58) (177,937.49) (366,236.66) (6,461,888.43) 

Other allocable 
income/ 
(expenses)  

(19,931,102.87) (69,540,989.21) (68,212,270.79) (17,880,373.78) (24,110,612.73) (2,180,979.67) (10,758,432.48) (212,614,761.53) 

Segment profit/ 
(loss) before 
income tax  

(5,664,874.39) 67,819,955.70 273,215,472.07 17,507,389.48 23,950,121.36 6,332,926.82 7,712,055.21 390,873,046.25 

 Unallocated income/expenses:   (24,578,644.06) 

 Interest recognised on accrual basis   3,310,042.68  

 Staff Bonus   (36,802,890.18) 

 Corporate Social Responsibility   (193,399.00) 

 Employee benefit expense- effect of NFRS accounting   (1,334,059.43) 

 Effect of NFRS accounting   (48,084.61) 

 Profit/Loss before income tax as per SoPL   331,226,011.64  

Segment Assets  576,326,892.42   3,622,359,199.62   3,778,994,356.72   847,892,800.72   1,179,859,487.77   226,706,952.68   445,359,573.38  10,677,499,263.31  

Segment 
Liabilities  

581,991,766.83 3,554,539,243.91 3,565,425,920.26 830,385,411.23 1,155,909,365.39 220,374,025.86 437,647,518.18 10,346,273,251.66 
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5.4.5.  Information about major customers    

 The Microfinance does not have any customer, which generate more than 10% of the entity's revenue.    

5.5  Share options and share based payment   

5.6  Contingent liabilities and commitment

 Comprehensive disclosure of the contingent liabilities and commitments are made on Note 4.26.

 The microfinance does not extend any share options and share based payments to any of its employee. Thus during the 
reporting period the microfinance does not have any transactions that are to be accouted as per NFRS 2 "Share - Based 
Payment".

 The Microfinance has carried out transactions in the ordinary course of business on an arm's length basis with parties 
who are defined as Related Parties including Key Management Person (KMP) as required by Nepal Accounting 
Standard 24 “Related Party Disclosures” the disclosure of related party has been made as under:The following parties 
have been identified as the related party transaction as per NAS 24:

5.7   Related Party Disclosures

 5.7.1.  List of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

5.4.4. Information about geographical areas 

           Revenue from following geographical areas: 

Areas  Amount (NPR)  

Koshi Province  64,547,083.81  

Madhesh Province  433,256,979.33  

Bagmati Province  425,444,109.73  

Gandaki Province  110,583,894.40  

Lumbini Province  148,829,095.54  

Karnali Province  26,820,718.67  

Far West Province  57,234,251.75  

Total  1,266,716,133.23  

 

S.N. Name  Relationship  
 Date of 

Appointment  
 Date of 

Retirement  

1 Mr. Gyanendra Prasad Pande  Charmain   2079.12.11   -  

2 Mr. Uday Raj Khatiwada  Director   2079.12.11   -  

3 Mr. Tri Bikram Pandey  Director   2079.12.11   -  

4 Mr. Krishna Banjade  Director   2078.07.27   -  

5 Mr. Tej Datta Khakural  Director   2078.07.27   -  

6 Mr. Samar Dhakal  Director   2078.07.27   -  

7 Mrs. Hira Devi Bista  Director   2079.07.22   -  

8 Mr. Manoj Krishna Uprety  Chief Executive Officer   2079.09.04   -  
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5.7.2.  Transactions with and Payments to Directors & Key Managerial Personnel 

Board of Directors Allowances and Facilities 

S.N. Particulars  No of Meetings   Sitting Fees (NPR.)  

1 Board Meeting  19.00   809,000.00  

2 Audit Committee Meeting  4.00   26,000.00  

3 Risk Management Committee  5.00   58,500.00  

4 Anti-Money Laundering  Committee  4.00   26,000.00  

5 Staff Benefits and Facilities Committee  3.00   19,500.00  

6 Others  2.00   37,000.00  

 Total  37.00   976,000.00  

Further, the following expenses are made for Board of Directors in the reporting period. 

S.N. Particulars  Amounts  

1 Communication & News Paper  168,000.00  

2 Air & Bus Fare Expenses  173,058.00  

3 Tiffin & Miscellaneous Expenses  222,512.00  

4 Training & Education  25,488.00  

Total  589,058.00  

Chief Executive Officer’s Emoluments and Facilities 

S.N. Particulars  Amount (NPR.)  

1 Short Term Employee Benefits  2,233,016.34  

2 Retirement Benefits  -    

3 Social Security Fund Benefit  168,000.00  

4 Others  -    

Total  2,401,016.34  

In addition to above, the Microfinance also provide other facilities like telephone facility of corporate simcard amounting 
NPR 499 Per Month & Travelling Allowance (Per day NPR 650)  as per the approved employee facilities of the 
Microfinance. 

 

 The Directors of this Microfinance has fully complied the provision of Direction No. 6/081 (1) of Unified Directives 
issued to the Microfinance Institutions by Nepal Rastra Bank. 

 Currently, the Microfinance is in search of suitable and appropriate partner for the merger purpose.     

 No events requiring the adjustment as per NAS 10 "Events occurring after Reporting Period" are observed after the 
reporting period.     

5.8    Merger and Acqusition     

 In the Fiscal Year 2077/78, the Microfinance has acquired "D" Class financial institution Licensed by NRB, Janakpur 
Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. with due approval from Special General Meeting of the Microfinance and from Nepal 
Restra Bank and started  the joint transaction from 25th Ashwin, 2077.

 In the Fiscal Year 2079/80, the Microfinance has signed Merger MOU with "D" class financial institution Licenced by 
NRB, Samata Gharelu Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd. Later on, the Board of Directors of microfinance has decided 
not to carry forward the process of merger with Samata Gharelu Laghubitta Bittiya Sanstha Ltd due to the current 
situation of microfinances and the risk factor related with the situation. 

5.10.  Events after reporting date     

5.9  Additional Disclousers of non consolidated entities.     

 For acqusition the Microfinance has issued 2,43,250 number of equity shares at swap ratio of 100 : 70  (70 shares of 
Swarogjar Lagubitya Bittiya Sanstha Limited for every 100 shares of Janakpur Laghubitta ) 

5.11. Rules of conduct to be followed by Directors     

 The Microfinance does not have any subsidiaries & accociates. So, additional disclosure is not required.        
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SWAROJGAR LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LTD. 
Comparision Un-Audited and Audited 

Statement of Financial Position FY 2081.082 

Particulars Note 
 As per Un-

Audited Financial 
Statement  

 As per Audited 
Financial 
Statement  

 Variance  
Reason for Variance 

 In Amount  In % 

ASSETS  
     

Cash and Cash Equivalents 4.1  674,312,640.12   674,311,737.12   (903.00) 0.00% 
Interest Income from Bank booked and 

reversed for reconcilation 

Statutory Balances and Due from 
Nepal Rastra Bank 

4.2  57,543,189.96   57,543,189.96   -    0.00%  

Placement with Bank and 
Financial Institutions 

4.3  -     -     -    0.00%  

Derivative Financial Instruments 4.4  -     -     -    0.00%  

Other Trading Assets 4.5  -     -     -    0.00%  

Loans and Advance to MFIs and 
Cooperatives 

4.6  -     -     -    0.00%  

Loans and Advances to 
Customers 

4.7  9,294,279,909.26   9,267,670,834.21   (26,609,075.05) -0.29% Impairment charge  & AIR  Adjusted 

Investment Securities 4.8  1,000,000.00   1,000,000.00   -    0.00%  

Current Tax Assets 4.9  8,333,442.23   16,836,358.57   8,502,916.33  102.03% 
Due to change in Taxable Income for the 

period 

Investment Property 4.10  -     -     -    0.00%  

Property and Equipment 4.11  37,836,906.57   37,836,906.57   -    0.00%  

Goodwill and Intangible Assets 4.12  39,551.12   39,551.12   -    0.00%  

Deferred Tax Assets 4.13  12,795,662.07   14,440,547.55   1,644,885.47  12.86% Deffered Tax Assets created for the year 

Other Assets 4.14  66,156,236.18   80,055,242.83   13,899,006.65  21.01% 
ROU Assets regroup & impact provided, 

receivable booked for Surya Jyoti 
Insurance for accured commission 

Total Assets   10,152,297,537.51   10,149,734,367.92   (2,563,169.59) -0.03%  

Liabilities  
     

Due to Bank and Financial 
Institutions 4.15 

 -     -     -    0.00%  

Due to Nepal Ratsra Bank 4.16  -     -     -    0.00%  

Derivative Financial Instrument 4.17  -     -     -    0.00%  

Deposits from Customers 4.18  4,497,330,470.65   4,497,330,470.65   -    0.00%  

Borrowings 4.19  4,192,872,279.95   4,192,872,279.95   -    0.00%  

Current Tax Liabilities 4.9  -     -     -    0.00%  

Provisions 4.20  43,524,563.20   43,524,563.20   -    0.00%  

Deferred Tax Liabilities 4.13  -     -     -    0.00%  

Other Liabilities 

4.21 

 162,742,331.20   179,569,792.46   16,827,461.26  10.34% 

Lease Liability regroup & impact provided, 
Change in Staff Bonus after change in 
Operating Profit, service chagre refund 
booked as instructed by NRB, provision 
made for suspensed staff and  NFRS 

effects provided to Staff Gratuity & Staff 
Leave Payable, 

Debt Securities Issued 4.22  -     -     -    0.00%  

Subordinated Liabilities 4.23  -     -     -    0.00% 
 

Total liabilities   8,896,469,645.00   8,913,297,106.26   16,827,461.26  0.19%  
Equity 

 
    

 

Share Capital 4.24  783,924,403.00   783,924,403.00   -    0.00%  

Share Premium   -     -     -    0.00%  

Retained Earnings  
 171,749,140.19   170,862,494.09   (886,646.11) -0.52% 

Reclass and Regroup & Change in Net 
Income 

Reserves 4.25 
 300,154,349.32   281,650,364.57  

 
(18,503,984.75) 

-6.16% 
Reclass and Regroup & Change in Net 

Income 

Total Equity   1,255,827,892.51   1,236,437,261.66  (19,390,630.85) -1.54%  

Total Liabilities and Equity   10,152,297,537.51   10,149,734,367.92   (2,563,169.59) -0.03%  
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SWAROJGAR LAGHUBITTA BITTIYA SANSTHA LIMITED 

Comparision Un-Audited and Audited 

Statement of Profit or Loss FY 2081.082 

Particulars Note 

 As per Un-
Audited 

Financial 
Statement  

 As per Audited 
Financial 
Statement  

 Variance  
 Reason for Variance  

 In Amount  In % 

Interest Income 4.27  1,285,811,232.88   1,270,026,175.91   (15,785,056.97) -1.23% 
 Overbooked Interest Income from Bank 

reversed & AIR recognized adjusted after 
guidline amendment  

Interest Expense 4.28  659,078,129.33   660,634,302.64   1,556,173.31  0.24% 
 Recognition of Interest on Lease Liability as 

per NFRS 16 with modication  

Net interest income   626,733,103.55   609,391,873.27   (17,341,230.28) -2.77%  

Fees and Commission Income 4.29  101,770,732.06   98,493,606.05   (3,277,126.01) -3.22% 
 Service charge refund as instructed by NRB & 

accured agency comission from Surya Jyoti 
Insurance  

Fees and Commission Expense 4.30  3,490,869.29   3,490,869.29   -    0.00%  

Net Fee and Commission 
Income 

  98,279,862.77   95,002,736.76   (3,277,126.01) -3.33%  

Net Interest, Fee and 
Commission Income 

  725,012,966.32   704,394,610.03   (20,618,356.29) -2.84%  

Net Trading Income 4.31  -     -     -    0.00%  

Other Operating Income 4.32  -     1,402,622.15   1,402,622.15  0.00% 
 Recognition of Gain on modification of ROU 

Assets  

Total Operating Income   725,012,966.32   705,797,232.18   (19,215,734.14) -2.65%  

Impairment Charge/(Reversal) for 
Loans and Other Losses 

4.33  38,541,504.78   49,366,425.86   10,824,921.08  28.09% 
 Impairment charge  adjusted by Nepal Rastra 

Bank  

Net Operating Income   686,471,461.54   656,430,806.32   (30,040,655.22) -4.38%  

Operating Expense       

Personnel Expenses 4.34  256,656,969.97   255,755,396.98   (901,572.98) -0.35% 

 Effects of Acturial Valuation of Long term Staff 
Obligations, salary provisioned for resigned 

staff and Change in Staff Bonus after Change in 
Operating Profit  

Other Operating Expenses 4.35  85,141,695.48   82,809,281.25   (2,332,414.23) -2.74% 

 Reclass and Regroup after NFRS 16 
implementation regarding Lease, income form 

sale of fixed assets, Share Issue Expenses 
directly charge from retained earning   

Depreciation and Amortisation 4.36  19,351,087.32   21,570,019.60   2,218,932.28  11.47% 
 Recognition of amortisation of ROU Assets & 

depreciation adjusted on some asset.  

Operating Profit   325,321,708.78   296,296,108.48   (29,025,600.29) -8.92%  

Non Operating Income 4.37  34,949,520.13   34,929,903.16   (19,616.97) -0.06%  Regroup of income from sale of fixed assets  

Non Operating Expense 4.38  -     -     -    0.00%  

Profit Before Income Tax   360,271,228.91   331,226,011.64   (29,045,217.26) -8.06%  

Income Tax Expense 4.39  120,565,428.36   110,605,658.75   (9,959,769.61) -8.26%  

Current Tax   120,565,428.36   112,119,751.42   (8,445,676.93) -7.01% 
 Change in Income & Expenses after Audit and 
disallow of expenses as per Income Tax Audit  

Deferred Tax   -     (1,514,092.67)  (1,514,092.67) 0.00%  Deffered Tax recognition for the year  

Profit for the Year   239,705,800.55   220,620,352.90   (19,085,447.65) -7.96%  

Profit Attributable to:       

Equity Holders of the Financial 
Institution 

  239,705,800.55   220,620,352.90   (19,085,447.65) -7.96%  
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k|fKt x'g cfPsf lgb{]zgx? pk/ ljQLo ;+:yfsf] tkm{af6 b]xfo adf]lhdsf k|ltpQ/x? pNn]v ul/Psf] Joxf]/f cg'/f]w 
ub{5f}+ .

k|ltpQ/x? M

-s_ g]kfn /fi6« a}+saf6 æ3Æ ju{sf] Ohfhtkqk|fKt n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yfx?nfO{ hf/L ul/Psf] PsLs[t lgb]{zg, 
@)*! sf] lgb]{zg g+= )@÷)*! df ePsf] Joj:yfsf] k"0f{ ?kdf kfngf u/L dfq shf{ k|jfx ul/g] Joxf]/f cg'/f]w 
5 .

-v_ o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] cfGtl/s / afXo n]vf k/LIfs tyf g]kfn /fi6« a}+ssf] :ynut lg/LIf0f / u}/–:ynut 
;'kl/j]If0f k|ltj]bgn] cf+}NofPsf s}lkmotx? gbf]xf]l/g] u/L ;'wf/ ub}{ nlug] Joxf]/f cg'/f]w 5 .
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ag]kf –%, sfe|]knf~rf]s .

ldlt @)*@ df3 )# ut]sf] ;qf}+ jflif{s ;fwf/0f ;efdf k|:t't k|:tfljt ;+zf]wgx? ;DaGwL
o; ljQLo ;+:yfsf] k|aGwkq tyf lgodfjnL @)^^ df cfjZos ;+zf]wgsf] nflu 

k|aGwkq tkm{sf] ;+zf]wg

:j/f]huf/ n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yf lnld6]8

ltg dxn] ljj/0f

lgodfjnL tkm{sf] ;+zf]wg

bkmf ljBdfg Aoj:yf k|:tfljt ;+zf]wg sf/0f 

^ 
-s_ 

n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yfsf] clws[t k'FhL ?= 
*),)),)),)))÷– -cIf/]kL, c;L s/f]8 dfq_  
x'g]5 . ;f] k'FhLnfO{ k|lt ;]o/ ?= !))÷– b/sf 
*),)),)))÷– -c;L nfv_ yfg ;fwf/0f ;]o/df 
ljefhg ul/Psf] 5 . 

n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yfsf] clws[t k'FhL ?= 
!)),)),)),)))÷– -cIf/]kL, Ps c/a dfq_ 
x'g]5 . ;f] k'FhLnfO{ k|lt ;]o/ ?= !))÷– b/sf 
!)),)),)))÷– -Ps s/f]8_ yfg ;fwf/0f 
;]o/df ljefhg ul/Psf] 5 . 

af]gz 
z]o/ 

ljt/0f u/] 
kZrft 

kF'hL j[l4 
x'g] 

ePsf]n]] 
 

^= 
-v_ 

n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yfsf] hf/L k'FhL ?= 
&*,#(,@$,$)#÷– -cIf/]kL, c7xQ/ s/f]8 
pgfGrfln; nfv rf}la; xhf/ rf/ ;o ltg dfq _ 
x'g]5 . ;f] kF'hLnfO{ k|lt ;]o/ ?= !))÷– sf b/sf] 
&*,#(,@$$=)# -cIf/]kL, c7xQ/ nfv pgGrfln; 
xhf/ b'O{ ;o rjfln; bzdna z"Go+ ltg _ yfg 
;fwf/0f ;]o/df ljefhg ul/Psf] 5 . 

n3'ljQ ljQLo ;+:yfsf] hf/L k'FhL ?= 
*(,%^,##,^#)=$# -cIf/]kL, pgfGgAa] s/f]8 
5kGg nfv t]QL; xhf/ 5 ;o lt; bzdna 
rf/ ltg dfq _ x'g]5 . ;f] kF'hLnfO{ k|lt ;]o/ ?= 
!))÷– sf b/sf] *(,%^,##^=#) -cIf/]kL, 
pgfGgAa] nfv 5kGg xhf/ ltg ;o 5lQ; 
bzdna ltg z"Go _ yfg ;fwf/0f ;]o/df 
ljefhg ul/Psf] 5 . 

^= 
-u_ 

ljQLo ;+:yfsf] r'Qmf k'FhL ?= &*,#(,@$,$)#÷–  
-cIf/]kL, c7xQ/ s/f]8 pgGrfln; nfv rf}la; 
xhf/ rf/ ;o ltg dfq_ x'g]5 . 

ljQLo ;+:yfsf] r'Qmf k'FhL ?=
*(,%^,##,^#)=$# -cIf/]kL, pgfGgAa] s/f]8 
5kGg nfv t]QL; xhf/ 5 ;o lt; bzdna 
rf/ ltg dfq_ x'g]5 . 

 

lgod ljBdfg Aoj:yf k|:tfljt ;+zf]wg sf/0f 

#@= 

!= 

-s_ 

;ldltsf] a}7sdf pkl:yt eP jfkt cWoIf / 
cGo ;+rfnsn] kfpg] a}7s eQf k|lt a}7s qmdz 
M ?= &,)))÷– / ?= ^,%))÷– x'g]5 . 

;+rfnssf] ;+of]hsTjdf ul7t ;ldlt÷pk–
;ldltsf] a}7sdf pkl:yt eP jfkt ;+rfnsnfO{ 
;+rfns ;ldlt ;/x a}7s eQf k|bfg ul/g]5 . 

;ldltsf] a}7sdf pkl:yt eP jfkt cWoIf 
/ cGo ;+rfnsn] kfpg] a}7s eQf k|lt a}7s 
qmdz M ?= (,%))÷– / ?= (,)))÷– x'g]5 . 

;+rfnssf] ;+of]hsTjdf ul7t ;ldlt÷pk–
;ldltsf] a}7sdf pkl:yt eP jfkt 
;+rfnsnfO{ ;+rfns ;ldlt ;/x a}7s eQf 
k|bfg ul/g]5 . 

jt{dfg 
;dosf] 
ahf/ d'No 
cg';f/ s]lx 
j[l4 ug{ 
k|:tfj 
ul/Psf] 
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1

 

zfvf sfof{no 6+sLl;gjf/L

 

a'l9u+uf–)@, df]/ª

 

9801977259

 

tankisinbari.slbsl@gmail.com

 

2

 

zfvf sfof{no ;'Gb/ x/}rf

 

;'Gb/ x/}rf –)$, df]/Ë

 

9801977260

 

sundarharaicha.slbsl@gmail.com

 

3

 

zfvf sfof{no O{g? jf

 

O{g?jf –)$, ;'g;/L

 

9801977261

 

inaruwa.slbsl@gmail.com

 

4

 

zfvf sfof{no ufO{3f6

 

lqo'uf–!#, pbok'/

 

9802334223

 

gaighat.slbsl@gmail.com

 

5

 

zfvf sfof{no g]tfrf]s

 

u|fdyfg–)&, df]/Ë

 

9802334230

 

netachowk.slbsl@gmail.com

 

6

 

zfvf sfof{no d+unaf/]

 

sdn–)^, emfkf

 

9802334231

 

mangalbare.slbsl@gmail.com

 

7

 

zfvf sfof{no lzju+h

 

lzj;tfIfL–)%, emfkf

 
 

shivaganj.slbsl@gmail.com

 

8

 

zfvf sfof{no /fhu9

 

jf/bzL–)#, emfkf

 
 

rajgadh.slbsl@gmail.com

 

9

 

zfvf sfof{no ;f]daf/]

 

ky/L zlg:r/] –)*, df]/Ë

 
 

sombare.slbsl@gmail.com

 

 

10

 

zfvf sfof{no a]njf

 

lj/u~h –#!, k;f{

 

9801977229

 

beluwa.slbsl@gmail.com

 

11

 

zfvf sfof{no dgxjf{

 

lhtk'/ l;d/f –!*, af/f

 

9801977230

 

manaharuwa.slbsl@gmail.com

 

12

 

zfvf sfof{no ;v'cjf wdf}/f

 

j[Gbfjg –)^, /f}tx6

 

9801977231

 

sakhuawadhamaura.slbbsl@gmail.com

 

13

 

zfvf sfof{no cd[tu+h

 

l;d|f}gu9–)&, af/f

 

9801977244

 

amritgunj.slbsl@gmail.com

 

14

 

zfvf sfof{no ufbL

 

k6]jf{ ;'uf}nL –)@, k;f{

 

9801977233

 

gadi.slbsl@gmail.com

 

15

 

zfvf sfof{no nIdLlgofF

 

kmt'jf ljhok'/ –)*, /f}tx6

 

9801977232

 

laxminiya.slbsl@gmail.com

 

16

 

zfvf sfof{no rGb|k'/

 

rGb|k'/ –)%, /f}tx6

 
9801977236

 

chandrapur.slbsl@gmail.com

 

17

 

zfvf sfof{no sn}of

 
sn}of–)!, af/f

 
9801977238

 

kalaiya.slbsl@gmail.com

 

18

 

zfvf sfof{no l;d/f
 

lhtk'/ l;d/f –)@, af/f
 

9801977239

 

simara.slbsl@gmail.com

 

19

 

zfvf sfof{no ax'c/L
 

k/jfgLk'/–)*, a f/f
 

9801977240

 

bahuwari.slbsl@gmail.com

 

20

 

zfvf sfof{no lnkgLdfn
 

k/jfgLk'/–)!, af/f
 

9801977241

 

lipanimal.slbsl@gmail.com

 

21

 

zfvf sfof{no /fdk'jf{
 

sf]xNjL–)!, af/f
 

9801977237

 

rampurwa.slbsl@gmail.com

 

22

 

zfvf sfof{no u+hejfgLk'/
 

dxfu9LdfO{ –)$, af/f
 

9801977245

 

ganjabhawanipur.slbsl@gmail.com
 

23
 

zfvf sfof{no ;]9jf
  

9801977246
 

sedhawa.slbsl@gmail.com
 

24
 

zfvf sfof{no kf]v/Lof
 

9801977247
 

pokhariya.slbsl@gmail.com
 

25
 

zfvf sfof{no ax'cjf{ ef7f
 

9801977258
 

bahuwarawabhata.slbsl@gmail.com
 

26
 

zfvf sfof{no nIdLlgofF wg'iff
 

9801977262
 

laxminiyadhanusa.slbsl@gmail.com
 

27
 

zfvf sfof{no e|d/k'/f
 

9801977263
 

bhramarpura.slbsl@gmail.com
 

28
 zfvf sfof{no uf}zfnf 9801977264

 
gausala.slbsl@gmail.com

 

29
 zfvf sfof{no j/xyjf  9801977265

 
barahathawa.slbsl@gmail.com

 

30 zfvf sfof{no hn]Zj/  9801977274  Jaleswor.slbsl@gmail.com  

31 zfvf sfof{no nxfg 9801977273  lahan.slbsl@gmail.com  

32 zfvf sfof{no km'nufdf 

lh/fejfgL–)!, k;f{
kf]v/Lof–)(, k;f{

 

ljGbjfl;gL–)(, k;f{
 

nIdLlgofF–)&, wg'iff
 

nf]xf/k66L–)&, dxf]Q/L
 

uf}zfnf–)$, dxf]Q/L 

j/xyjf –)&, ;nf{xL  

hn]Zj/ –)@, dxf]Q/L  

nxfg–)*, l;/xf  

gu/fO{g –)$, wg'iff 9802334204  phulgama.slbsl@gmail.com  

33 zfvf sfof{no a6]Zj/  a6]Zj/ –)$, wg'iff 9802334205  bateshwar.slbsl@gmail.com  

34 zfvf sfof{no /fduf]kfnk'/ /fduf]kfnk'/–)%, dxf]Q/L 9802334206  ramgopalpur. slbsl@gmail.com  

36 zfvf sfof{no hgsk'/wfd  hgsk'/wfd –)$, wg'iff 9802334208  janakpurdham.slbsl@gmail.com  

37 zfvf sfof{no s7f}gf zDe'gfy–)^, ;Kt/L 9802334207  kathauna.slbsl@gmail.com  

38 zfvf sfof{no wgf}hL wgf}hL–)@, wg'iff 9802334209  dhanauji.slbsl@gmail.com  

39 zfvf sfof{no Ps8f/f Ps8f/f–)!, dxf]Q/L 9802334211  ekdara.slbsl@gmail.com  
40 zfvf sfof{no xl/jg xl/jg –)&, ;nf{xL  9802334217  hariwan.slbsl@gmail.com  
41
 

zfvf sfof{no uf]8}6f uf]8}6f–)&, ;nf{xL  9802334218
 

godaita.slbsl@gmail.com  
42

 
zfvf sfof{no k'ikjnk'/ ldlynf–)$, wg'iff 9802334219

 
pushpawalpur.slbsl@gmail.com

 
43
 

zfvf sfof{no ;a}nf
 

;a}nf–)*, wg'iff
 

9802334220
 

sabaila.slbsl@gmail.com
 

44
 

zfvf sfof{no nudf
 

sdnf–)#, wg'iff
 

9802334221
 

lagama.slbsl@gmail.com
 

45
 

zfvf sfof{no en'jfxL
 

l;/xf–!!, l;/xf
 

9802334222
 

bhaluwahi.slbsl@gmail.com
 

46 zfvf sfof{no ag]kf ag]kf–)%, sfe|]knf~rf]s 9801977217 banepa.slbsl@gmail.com

9802334235

9802334236

9802334237
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47 zfvf sfof{no e/tk'/
 

e/tk'/ –!), lrtjg
 

9801977218

 

bharatpur.slbsl@gmail.com

 

48

 

zfvf sfof{no x]6f}F8f
 

x]6f}8f–)$, dsjfgk'/
 

9801977219

 

hetauda.slbsl@gmail.com

 

49

 

zfvf sfof{no 6fF8L
 

/Tggu/ –)@, lrtjg
 

9801977220

 

tandi.slbsl@gmail.com

 

50

 

zfvf sfof{no kgf}tL
 

kgf}tL–)^, sfe|]knf~rf]s
 

9801977222

 

panauti.slbsl@gmail.com

 

51

 

zfvf sfof{no rgf}nL
 

e/tk'/ –@), lrtjg
 

9801977223

 

chanauli.slbsl@gmail.com
 

52

 

zfvf sfof{no k;f{
 

v}/xgL –)*, lrtjg
 

9801977224

 
parsachitwan.slbsl@gmail.com

 

53
 

zfvf sfof{no lutfgu/
 

e/tk'/ –)%, lrtjg
 

9801977221
 

gitanagar.slbsl@gmail.com
 

54
 

zfvf sfof{no vf]n]l;dn
 

sflnsf–)^, lrtjg
 

9801977225
 

kholesimal.slbsl@gmail.com
 

55
 

zfvf sfof{no dgx/L
 

dgx/L –)&, dsjfgk'/
 

9801977226
 

manahari.slbsl@gmail.com
 

56
 

zfvf sfof{no ljb'/
 

ljb'/ –)@, g'jfsf]6
 

9801977252
 

bidur.slbsl@gmail.com
 

57
 

zfvf sfof{no dn]v'
 

a]lg3f6 /f]/fª –)#, wflbË
 

9801977253
 

malekhu.slbsl@gmail.com
 

58
 

zfvf sfof{no snd;L
 

ag]kf–)!, sfe|]knf~rf]s
 

9802334216
 

kalamashi.slbsl@gmail.com
 

59
 

zfvf sfof{no d'Nsf]6
 

;'gsf]zL–)%, l;Gw'nL
 

9765040157
 

mulkot.slbsl@gmail.com
 

60
 

zfvf sfof{no ef]6]rf}/
 

d]nDrL–)@, l;Gw'kfNrf]s
 

9802334227
 

bhotechaur.slbsl@gmail.com
 

61
 zfvf sfof{no :o'rf6f/  Gffufh'{g–!), sf7df8f}+ 9802334233

 
syuchatar.slbsl@gmail.com

 

62
 zfvf sfof{no gf/fo0fL  dWoljGb' –)$, gjnk'/  

9801977227
 

narayani.slbsl@gmail.com
 

63 zfvf sfof{no afO{;hfFu/  efg'–)(, tgx'F  9801977228 baisjagar.slbsl@gmail.com  

64 zfvf sfof{no j]gLd0 fLk'/ ljgoL lqj]0fL–)$, gjnk'/  9801977234 benimanipur.slbsl@gmail.com  

65 zfvf sfof{no vf]KnfË kfn'ª6f/ –)!, uf]/vf  9801977235 khoplang.slbsl@gmail.com  

66 zfvf sfof{no sfjf;f]tL sfjf;f]tL–)#, gjnk'/  9801977242 kawasoti.slbsl@gmail.com  

67 zfvf sfof{no j]lz ;x/ j]lz;x/–!!, ndh''Ë  9801977250 beshisahar.slbsl@gmail.com  

68 zfvf sfof{no bdf}nL Jof;–)!, tgx'F 9801977251 damauli.slbsl@gmail.com  

69 zfvf sfof{no /hx/  b]jr'nL–!^, gjnk'/  9801977248 rajahar.slbsl@gmail.com  

70 zfvf sfof{no lqj]0fL ljgoL lqj]0fL–)^, gjnk'/ 9802334214 tribeni.slbsl@gmail.com  

71 zfvf sfof{no ;]d/L  jb{3f6 –!$, gjnk/f;L 9801977243 semari.slbsl@gmail.com  

72 zfvf sfof{no ;'gjn  ;'gjn –)#, gjnk/f;L  9801977249 sunawal.slbsl@gmail.com  

73 zfvf sfof{no /fdk'/  /fdk'/–)%, kfNkf 9801977254  rampur.slbsl@gmail.com  

74 zfvf sfof{no /];'Ëf  /];'Ëf–)&, u'NdL  9801977256 resunga.slbsl@gmail.com  

75 zfvf sfof{no ;lGwvs{  ;lGwvs{ –)@, c3f{vfFrL  9801977257 sandhikharka.slbsl@gmail.com  
76 zfvf sfof{no u9Þjf  u9Þjf–)^, bfFª  9801977266 gadawa.slbsl@gmail.com  
77 zfvf sfof{no >Lk"/ sf]xnk'/–)%, afFs] 9801977267 shreepur.slbsl@gmail.com  
78

 
zfvf sfof{no d}gfkf]v/  a9}oftfn–)^, alb{of  9801977268

 
mainapokhar.slbsl@gmail.com  

35
 

zfvf sfof{no /fhfk'/  /fhfk'/–)#, alb{of  9801977269
 

rajapur.slbsl@gmail.com
 

79
 

zfvf sfof{no ltnf]Qdf ltnf]Qdf–)&, ?kGb]]xL  9801977270
 

tilotama.slbsl@gmail.com
 

80
 

zfvf sfof{no ;}gfd}gf  ;}gfd}gf–)$, ?kGb]xL  
9801977271

 
sainamaina.slbsl@gmail.com

 
81

 
zfvf sfof{no jf0fu+uf

 
jf0fu+uf–)#, slknj:t'

 
9801977272

 
badganga.slbsl@gmail.com

 
82

 
zfvf sfof{no dw'jg

 
dw'jg –)(, alb{of

 
9802334215

 
madhuwan.slbsl@gmail.com

 
83

 
zfvf sfof{no af/alb{of

 
af/alb{of –)*, alb{of

 
9802334226

 
barbardiya.slbsl@gmail.com

 
s0ff{nL k|b]z

 
84

 
zfvf sfof{no la/]Gb|gu/

 
la/]Gb|gu/ –)&, ;'v{]t

 
9802334232

 
birendranagar.slbsl@gmail.c om

 
85

 
zfvf sfof{no l5Gr'

 
e]l/u+uf–)$, ;'v{]t

 
9802334234

 
chhinchu.slbsl@gmail.com

 

86

 
zfvf sfof{no af}lgof

 
ab{uf]l/of –)!, s}nfnL

 
9801977276

 
bauniya.slbsl@gmail.com

 87

 

zfvf sfof{no rf}dfnf
 

uf}l/u+uf–)!, s}nfnL
 

9801977255

 

chaumala.slbsl@gmail.com
 88

 

zfvf sfof{no emnf/L
 

z'SnfkmfF6 –!), s~rgk'/
 

9801977279

 

jhalari.slbsl@gmail.com

 89

 

zfvf sfof{no k'gjf{;
 

k'gjf{;–)#, s~rgk'/
 

9801977216

 

punarwas.slbsl@gmail.com

 90

 

zfvf sfof{no uf]bfj/L
 

uf]bfj/L–)#, s}nfnL
 

9802334224

 

godawari.slbsl@gmail.com

 91 zfvf sfof{no l;;}of 3f]8f3f]8L–!!, s}nfnL sisaiya.slbsl@gmail.com9802334238
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